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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Se<
-

LR\ / ~
$ Ny DIVISION OF .
Public [ ealth Services

Iinprgung healih, preventing disease, reducing costs for anl

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6503
663-271-4612  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4612
Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Mareella Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

June 13, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into an agreement with the vendors listed below for the provision of home visiting services to
expectant women and newly parenting individuals in an.amount not to exceed $2,102,199, effective

| July 1, 2016 or upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, whichever is later, through June 30,
) 2018. 100% Federal Funds.

| . ‘\_Iendor _ Vendor Code Agdress . Amount
ComaTy Sty SRS | o socs | SO | oo
R maont | st | ranan
Family Resource Center at Gorham | 152412-B001 G;f:’aﬂaﬂjgggg 1 $328,560
VNA at HCS, Inc. 177274-B002 > je“rf:,ﬂrggoo%gg?t $272,115
Total: $2,102,199

Funds are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2018 upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office without further Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-0831 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES, ACA MIEC HOME VISITING

Fiscal Class Title Activity Code Amount

Year

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083100 $1,045,167

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs 90083100 $1,057,032
Total: $2,102,199




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to enter into agreements with the four (4) vendors listed above
for the provision of home visiting services that support pregnant women and their families through
heaith and parenting education programs.

Home visiting services are designed to improve maternal and child health, prevent child abuse
and neglect, encourage positive parenting and promote child growth and development. Home
visitation programs can be an effective early-intervention strategy to improve the health and well-being
of children, particularly if they are embedded in comprehensive community services to families at risk.

These contracts were competitively bid. A Request for Proposal was posted on the
Department's website on December 16, 2015 through February 5, 2016. Four (4) proposals were
received. A team of individuals with extensive program knowledge reviewed the proposals. All four (4)
vendors were selected. The bid summary is attached.

These agreements contain language that allow the Department to renew the contracts for up to
two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
services and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

The selected vendors will provide home visiting services to pregnant women and newly
parenting families with children up to the age of three (3). Nurses and family support workers will visit
families in their homes to provide educational information, depression and developmental screening,
and connect families, as needed, with community services such as prenatal care, employment
programs and the New Hampshire Tobacco Helpline.

These vendors have been providing home visiting services in their respective counties and
have developed collaborative referral networks, which can provide new mothers and their families with
additional assistance programs available in their community.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, over 700 New Hampshire
families may not receive the proper education and access to the resources necessary to raise children
who are physically, socially and emotionally healthy, which can reduce juvenile delinquency, family
violence and crime.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.505, U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); FAIN # D8OMC26361 (Sept 1, 2013
through Sept 30, 2016) FAIN # D8SMC28272 (Mar 1, 2015 through Sept 30, 2017)

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support these agreements.

Respectfully Submitte

7
arceila Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

Approved by:

rey A. Mevyers
Commissioner

fhe Lgé-p-ér_'tmént éf Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and famifies
in providing opponrtunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Home Visiting New Hampshire - Health Families America (17-DHHS-DPHS-MCH-0{-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

bl
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health & Human Services 129 Pleasant Strect
Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, PO Box 1016
Inc. 2 Industrial Park Drive
Concord, NH 03302-1016
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 225-3295 05-95-90-902010-5896 June 30, 2018 $254,170
0%9)
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin, Director (603)271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
@ % N Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowled@ement: State of New Hampshire, County of Merrimack

On  June1,2016 ,before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven io be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

- KATHY L. HOWARD Notary Public, New Hampshire
jf' My Commission Espires October 16, 2018
- {5ea / J

1.13.2 Name and Title of MNotary or Justice of the Peace

Kathy L. Heward, Notary Public

1.14  State Agency Signgtur, 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Date: 6/?//{0. %”"’f/“g“}ofﬁ-‘% I)4pﬁ£m7 rfcgg?/

1.16 Aglproval by the W.f1. Departmedt of Adminisfration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approvdl by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

o el by 131

1.18 Approval by the Governor Executive igouncil (if applicable) \

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED, The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, ideratified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. Inthe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipat authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination,

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials K_%_
Date &1" { _L(ég




Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contmcting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

3. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2} days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

16. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers” compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its scle expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Page 3 of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insuranca for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of

i insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are

‘ incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of

insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30} days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{“Workers' Compensation").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy. |

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and

inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective

successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement

is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual |
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or |
in favor of any party. |

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials é‘Q
Date CF"I‘@




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

e *
.

Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

1.3 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.4 The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) requires all grantees
receiving funds through this program to use the following acknowledgement and
disclaimer on all products produced by HRSA grant funds:

“This project isfwas supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount (specify grant number, title,
total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental sources).
This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and should
not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any
endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”

2. Scope of Work

21 The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to pregnant w and Q)@Q n‘w)“
newly parenting families with children up to the age three (3) in N\"( .,«S‘T‘QS
to improve health and development outcomes for at-risk children through - Co

evidence-based home visiting programs, with priority given to individuals who:
2.1.1  Are first time mothers.

2.1.2 Have low incomes.

2.1.3 Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

2.1.4 Have a history of child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

2.1.5 Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment.
2.1.6 Are users of tobacco products in the home.

2.1.7 Have or have had children with low student achievement.

2.1.8 Have children with developmental delays or disabilities.

Exhibit A — Scope of Services
Page 1 of 7 Date:
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Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

2.1.9 Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have formerly
served in the armed forces, including such families that have members of
the armed forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the
United States.

2.2 The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services using a two-step process.
The Contractor shall:

2.2.1 Accept referrals from referral sources that have been screened for
services.

2.2.2 Utilize the Parent Survey on the first visit/intake to gather comprehensive
information about the family and prioritize clients for services.

2.3 The Contractor shall maintain enroliment at a minimum of 85% capacity, through
monthly reviews of caseloads. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1 Review the capacity report on a monthly basis.

2.3.2 Implement strategies around outreach when enroliment rates fall below
85% capacity.

24 The Contractor shall ensure program staff establish a relationship with each
family in order to keep families interested and connected over time. The
Contractor shall:

2.4.1 Provide flexible service delivery, including late afternoon and early
evening visits for families who have no other option but to meet during
those times.

2.4.2 Foster respectful partnerships between parents and home visitors.

2.4.3 Engage all family members and promote the involvement of all family
members, including fathersffather figures, while explaining the importance
of their role within the family.

2.4.4 Remain consistent with visits and supports, in order to build on existing
strengths while encouraging and coaching families to build on skills,
including but not limited to communication skills that are needed for self-
sufficiency and to advocate for their children.

25 The Contractor shall provide home visiting services that include home visits by
nurses during the prenatal and post-partum. The Contractor shall ensure the
nurse:

251 Conducts one home visit per trimester in order to focus on specific
pregnancy health issues to ensure the mother’s understanding of:

251.1 All health and nutritional recommendations.

2.5.1.2 Signs and symptoms of premature labor.

2513 The effects of harmful substances including, but not limited to,
tobacco, alcohol, and drugs, on the unborn child.

2.5.1.4 Risk factors including but not limited to:

CAP of Belknap — Merrimack Contractor Initials: 4 Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.6

2.7

252

253

254

The Contractor shall collaborate with families to ensure participation based on
parent availability. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1

262

26.3

2515

Conducts one (1) nurse visit within three (3) months of the baby's birth in
order to conduct a maternal and newborn health assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2521
2522

Conducts a minimum of two (2) additional visits prior to the baby turning
one, which will focus on:

2531
2532
2533

Administers the Edinburgh screening at regular intervals, which may be
administered by either the nurse or home visitor staff:

2.54.1
2542
2543

Use text messaging to communicate the scheduling of visits, as
appropriate and preferred by the family.

Reach out to families on a weekly basis using hand written notes at the
family home to respectfully reach out to families who may not be home at
the scheduled visit time.

Explain the HFA level system to families at enrollment, emphasizing the
first six (6) months of involvement with a family, after a baby’s birth, is
critical for:

2.6.3.1
26.3.2
26.33

25141 History of depression.
25142 Symptoms of postpartum depression.

Importance of receiving early treatment for depression.

The Edinburgh screening for postpartum depression
Assessment of breastfeeding success, as applicable.

The maternal-infant attachment.
Family planning.

Child health and safety issues, including but not limited to, well-
child visits and immunizations.

Prenatal visit.
Within three (3) months postpartum.

Follow up within two (2) weeks from the date of receiving
positive results.

Parent-infant relationship development.
Newborn care and safety.

Adjustment to parenthood.

Provide home visiting services in accordance with HFA Best Practice Standards.
The Contractor shall:

2.71

implement Creative Outreach to reach out to families for ninety (90) days
when necessary as described in the HFA Model.

CAP of Belknap — Merrimack
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.7.2 Create Family Goal Plans with the family that show family-identified
measurable goals broken down into small steps.

2.7.3 Work to attain HFA Accreditation. The Contractor shall:

2.7.3.1 Complete Step 2 — The Site_Visit in the Accreditation process by
January 1, 2016 and submit a copy of the Accreditation Site Visit
Report (SVR) to MCH.

2.7.32 Complete Step 3 — Response Period in the Accreditation
process within the time period indicated in the Accreditation SVR
and submit a copy of final approval by HFA to MCH.

2.7.4 Implement, at minimum, one of the following curricula for home visits:

2.7.41 Parents as Teachers (PAT) as an annually trained approved
user.

2.7.4.2 Growing Great Kids (GGK) with certification training.
2.7.5 Develop creative outreach efforts to engage families to receive services.

2.7.6 Provide services that support the parent, parent-child interaction and chifd
development.

2.7.7 Coordinate with other local service providers including health care
providers, social workers and early interventionists.

2.7.8 Collaborate with other early childhood serving agencies including those
that provide home visiting and family support services.

2.7.9 Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the Healthy Families America Model (HFA) are addressed
in agency policies.

2.8 The Contractor shall provide case management services, which shall include, but
is not limited to:

2.8.1 Entering participant health data into the Home Visiting Data System
(ETO).

2.8.2 Documenting case notes for all home visits.
2.8.3 Making referrals to other agencies, as appropriate.
2.8.4 Following up on referrals to other agencies.

29 The Contractor shall develop a broad-based advisory group with a variety of
stakeholders to collect input that will assist with the planning, implementation and
assessment of sit-related activities.

210 The Contractor shall develop a release of information authorization form for
Department approval. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1 Ensure the Department-approved release of information authorization
form is properly executed by program participants and maintained in the
client's case file.

CAP of Belknap — Merrimack Contractor Initials: é éE
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.10.2 Maintain the release of information authorization form in the client file in
accordance with federal requlations and state laws.

2.11  The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to collect participant and
program data and other pertinent information used for the purpose of program
evaluation. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1 Utilize staff and family surveys to solicit feedback on programs and
services offered.

2.11.2 Review program files on a quarterly basis to determine whether each
family is receiving the appropriate level of services, in accordance with
the HFA modei.

2.11.3 Evaluate the progress of program participant, performance of programs
and services provided on a quarterly basis.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall hire staff in accordance with the HFA Best Practice
Standards. The Contractor shall providing staff training that includes, but is not
limited to:

3.1.1 Cultural Competency

3.1.2 Reporting Child Abuse

3.1.3 Home Safety

3.1.4 Substance Abuse

3.1.5 Managing Crisis Situations
3.1.6 Domestic Violence

3.1.7 Responding to Mental Health
3.1.8 Drug-exposed infants

3.1.9 Community services availability

3.2 The Contractor shall ensure staff receive supervision in accordance with the
requirements of the HFA Best Practice Standards, including, but not limited to:

3.2.1 Weekly individual supervision that includes, but is not limited to,
discussions that reflect brainstorming to overcome barriers to:

3.2.1.1 Completing home visits.
3.2.1.2 Referrals.
3.2.2 Bi-weekly team meetings for support, reflection and case review.

3.3 The Contractor shall ensure direct service staff supervisors and program
managers meet the minimum qualifications outlined in the HFA Best Practice
Standards.

Exhibit A — Scope of Services
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Exhibit A
Scope of Services

3.4 The Contractor shall ensure Registered Nurses (RN's) have a minimum of two
(2) years of maternal and child health nursing experience and are currently
licensed to practice in accordance with RSA 326-B.

3.5 The Contractor shall ensure staff attend meetings and trainings as required by
the Division of Public Health Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, which
shall include but not be limited to:

3.5.1 Maternal Child Health (MCH) Agency Directors’ Meetings.
3.5.2 MCH Home Visiting Meetings.
3.5.3 MIECHYV Staff Training.
3.5.4 MCH Home visiting CQI coaching calls.
4. Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall provide a monthly caseload analysis report for each
individual staff member who provides home visits.

4.2 The Contractor shall complete and submit data reports using form Exhibit A-1, on
a quarterly basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the unmet
targets for the performance measures outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance
Measures.

43 The Contractor shall provide a narrative report that includes, but is not limited to:
4.3.1 Highlights of program activities conducted.
4.3.2 Goals for the following quarter.
4.3.3 Goals met for the previous quarter.

4.4  The Contractor shall complete and submit Exhibit A-1, Reports on an annual
basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the performance measures
outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance Measures along with a narrative that
includes, but is not limited to:

4.4.1 Information regarding accomplishments and challenges for the program.
4.4.2 Systemic barriers.
4.4.3 Acticn plans to address barriers.

4.4.4 Family satisfaction survey results that demonstrate a minimum of eighty
(80) percent rating of consumer satisfaction each year.

4.5 The Contractor shall complete three (3) quarterly reports and one (1) annual report
as described in Section 4, Reporting, according to the following schedule:

451 Quarter 1, July — September DUE 10/15/2016
4.5.2 Quarter 2, October — December DUE 1/15/2017

453 Quarter 3, January — March DUE 4/15/2017
454 Quarter 4, April — June DUE 7/15/2017
455 Annual, July — June DUE 7/30/2017

CAP of Belknap — Merrimack Contractor Initials: é '{
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

5. Deliverables

5.1 The Contractor shall complete and submit the Inputs, Activities, and Evaluation sections
of Exhibit A-1 within thirty {30) days from the contract effective date.

52 The contractor shall maintain at least 85% of HFA defined capacity based on the
number of Home visitors listed in the staffing plan.

53 The Contractor shall complete a minimum of three (3) nurse visits after a baby's
birth prior to the baby's first (1%) birthday

5.4 The Contractor shall ensure each pregnant program participant receives a
minimum of one (1) nurse visit per trimester.

55 The Contractor shall submit the release of information authorization form in
Section 2.10 to the Department for approval within ten {(10) business days from
the contract effective date.

56 The Contractor shall attend 100% of meetings, as described in Section 3.5 or
submit an action plan describing the reason for absence and a plan to obtain the
information/materials presented.
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| Exhibit A-1
| Maternal and Child Health Title V
‘ Home Visiting NH-Healthy Families America Report

AGENCY NAME: SERVICE AREA:
REPORT COMPLETED BY: [] Quarterly Report [ ] Annual Report
INPUT/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE MEASURE ACTION PLAN
{OUTCOME) FOR IMPROVEMENT

Performance Measure #1
{HF A Standard 7-5.B}:

70% of women enrolied in the
program received at least one
Edinburgh Postnatal Depression
Scale screening between 6-8

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES | weeks postpartum.

SFY 16 Target_ 70%

Quarter 1 (July — September)
NUMERATOR

DENOMINATOR

Quarter 2 (October - December)
NUMERATOR,

DENOMINATOR _______
Quarter 3 {January — March)
NUMERAT

DENOMINATOR

Quarter 4 (Aprl - June)

NUMERATOR
DENOMINATOR

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials: Q - g
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Exhibit A-1
Maternal and Child Health Title V
Home Visiting NH-Healthy Families America Report

INPUT/RESOURCES

ACTIVITIES

PERFORMANCE MEASURE
(OUTCOME)

ACTION PLAN
FOR IMPROVEMENT

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

Performance Measure #2
(HFA Standard 34.A):

Increase the percent of
families who remain enrolled
in HFA for at least 6§ months
from the baseline.

SFY 15 Actual is baseline

Quarter 1 (July ~ September)
NUMERATOR ‘
DENOMINATO

Quarter 2 (Octoher ~
December)

NUMERATOR
DENOMINATO

Quarter 3 (January — March)
NUMERATOR
DENOMINATOR
Quarter 4 (April - June)
NUMERATOR
DENOMINATOR

Exhibit A-1
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Exhibit A-1
Maternal and Child Health Title V
Home Visiting NH-Healthy Families America Report

INPUT/RESOURCES ACTIVITIES PERFORMANCE MEASURE ACTION PLAN
(OUTCOME) FOR IMPROVEMENT

Performance Measure #3

(HFA Standard 6-7.A):

95% of chiidren who receive
further evaluation after scoring
below the "cutoff” on the ASQ-
3.

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES
SFY 16Target_ 95%

Quarter 1 (July - Sepﬂember)
NUMERATOR. .
DENOMINATOF_!

Quarter 2 (Octﬁber -
December) :
NUMERATOR
DENOMINATOR,

Quarter 3 (January - Mamh)
NUMERATOR_
DENOMINATOR . .
Quarter 4 (April ~ June)
NUMERATOR -

DENOMINATOR

Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials: é E_e
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Exhibit A-1
Maternal and Child Health Title V
Home Visiting NH-Healthy Families America Report

INPUT/RESOURCES

ACTIVITIES

PERFORMANCE MEASURE
(OUTCOME)

ACTION PLAN
FOR IMPROVEMENT

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

PROCESS Measure:
(HFA Standard 12-1.B)

All direct service staff receive
a minimum of 75% of required
weekly individual supervision
according to the HFA
Standards.

Quarter 1 {July — Sepﬁember)
NUMERATOR
DENOMINATOR
Quarter 2 (October—
December)

NUMERATOR_
DENOMINATOR

Quarter 3 (Januaty - March)
NUMERATOR,
DENOMINATOR__

Quiarter 4 (April — Jum_a)_
NUMERATOR -

DENOMINATOR, "

Exhibit A-1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit B
Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to supporting funding for this
project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.505 (hitps://www.cfda.qov}, U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form
P37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for allowable costs, as |
detailed in Exhibit B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-2, Budget.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10") working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month along with any monthly and/or quarterly reports due in accordance with
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Financial Administrator

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

E-mail: dphscontractbilling@dhhs.state.nh.us

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days after the
Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result
in honpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
the adjustment of the amounts between budget line items within the price limitation of
Exhibits B-1 and B-2, can be made by written agreement of both parties without further
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

CAP of Belknap/Merrimack Exhibit B Contractor Initials é E
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Exhibit B-1 Budpst

Budget Pariod: July 1. 2016 through June 20, 2017

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIGD

BidderProgrem Name: Tammnity Adtion Program Befknap-Memimack Counties. dnc.

Budget Request for: Hame Vising New Hampshire - Hoakhy Family America

1. Total Salary\Wages

—
O 347,00

Tiatch

37,128.00

vofer

Fl:':l;-

- 75000

= —
11. Stnlf Educuboh and Tralbing

12 SubcoriractsiAgreamants

10,000.00

13_Other {specific datalls mandatory)

1,560 00

TOTAL

Indirect A3 A Pereant of Divect

Community Action Program - Beflnap-Merrimiack Caunnes, Inc.

Exhibit B-1 Budgel
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Exhibl B2 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
CONPLEYE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Bidder/Program Name: Commwrdty Action Program Belnap-blerrmack Countiec, boc.
Bueget Request for: Hame Viziing Hew Hamprchire - Healtt Family America
Budget Peslod: July 1. 217 tiwough Junc 20, 01
Tiad I

e Ram Jnersrnentsl o | ncoamental Pixad Incwnital Flued
1. Toial Salary/ages 70,347.00 - 13 70,347.00 - - - 70.347.00 - 70,47 00
2__Employes Benefite 37,126.00 - 3 27,128.00 - - - FERFCTE) - 37100
2. Gonsuttante. - B ) N N . - . ,

Renial N N N _

Repai tind - - - - - - - -

Purchase/Depreciation 1000 - 81000 - - £1000 - 210.00
5, S = - - - - - - - -

Educational 960.00 - 960.00 - 960.00 - 26000

Lab - - - - - - -

Pharmacy - - -

1] - N N _

6. Traval 1.200.00 - 1,200.00 - 1,200.00 1,200.00
H N - ,
8 Current Expensas - - N - - - , . ~

Telephons 74000 - 740:00 - - - 740.00 - 740.00

Audi and Legal B £ = _

Iresurance - - N -

Board Expanses = - - 5
& Software - - - ” 5
10 2 750.00 N 75G:00 - - 75000 - 75000
11._Siafl Education and Tralning 3,500.00 = 3,500.00 - - : 2,500.00 - 3,500.00
12_Sul 18,000.00 - 18,000.00 - - - 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
13_Other {specific detalls mandariory) - N - - N 5 . - 5

1,580.00 - 1,550.00 - - . 155000 - 1,550.00
TOVAL T 68600 |3 - TR - : - T RL®

Indiract A% A Parcenl of Direct 0.0%

Cantractor Intiate 4 i
Communtty Adion Program - Batknap-Merimack Counties, Inc
Exhibtt B-2 Budgel
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state iaws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hersunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Ceontractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuats or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

=
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department te the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

| 8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility {including ali forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shail return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

06/27/114

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the repert and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the ohligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foilowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs {OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

17.

18.

19.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEQOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEQP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEQOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www .ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert. pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title V| of the Civil
Rights Act of 1864, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.8.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in al
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate
19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials éﬁ
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194. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 4 i
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not imited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Pian submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governer and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-890, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissicner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viclation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1873, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

June 1, 2016
Date

Name: Rylph Litt
Title: Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

.The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

June 1, 2016 QLQQ\

Date Name: Ralph Littffield
Title; Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract). the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

» o T

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

” i

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant ina
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; viclation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have nof within a three-year period preceding this application/propesal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract}.

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

june 1, 2016 .
Date Nameé Ralg Littieﬁelé %

Title:  Executive Director
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: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
: WHISTLEBL OWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national crigin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.5.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
-against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

| The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
; representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
| certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

June 1, 2016
Date

Namex, Ralph Tittlefield
Title: “Executive Direct
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the impasition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

June 1, 2016
Date alph L
Title: xecutive Director
Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials "‘%
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

{n Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials &

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Assoclate Agreement re
Page 10f6 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(@)

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Heaith Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below, or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i} an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Exhibit 1

| * Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
| _ remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made,;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

C. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including

| the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {l). The Covered Entity

| shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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- pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten {10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten {(10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI| available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHi and limit further uses and disclosures of such PH to those

| purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business 2-&%
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Exhibit 1

* Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

{4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

h. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

C. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. Z
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s} or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the

| terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.
Community Action Program

m—c o
vic=;  Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Name of the Contractor

Signature of Authdfized Representative

Marce [/ a J gabf;tsb_u Ralph Littlefield

Name of Authorized Representatiffe Name of Authorized Representative
A"—plﬁa g rre e Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Qzu//«k_ ?,,4?0/(0 June 1, 2016
Datg Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unigue identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

YNk onN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees te provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

June 1, 2016
Date

alph Dittlefield

Title: xecutive Directo

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

- As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the

below listed questions are true and accurate.

1

2.

4.

The DUNS number for your entity is:

In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials € a
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Gompliance 6
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State of Nefo Hampshirve
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. 1s a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 28, 1965. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5™ day of April A.D. 2016

Zey Gkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

[; Dennis T. Martino, Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. (hereinafter the “Corporation™), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) | maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) | am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have

authorized, on _01/14/2016 . such authority to be in force and effect until __6/30/2018
{contract termination date). (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation

this _1st day of __June .2016 .
fﬁ-i{(yv %’féﬁ’/’
Secretary-Clerk
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF MERRIMACK
Onthis _1st day of June ,2016 , before me, _Kathy I Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation
and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hereunto set my hand and official seal.

77 A o

Kathy L. oward Notary Public
' 4 'c/Justlce of the Peace

KATHY L HOWARD

Notary Public, New Hampshire
My Commission Explres October 16, 2018

Commission Expiration Date:
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DOIYYYY)
6/6/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street

ESHE‘CT Karen Shaughnessy

PHONE _ (603) 669-3218 HBE Nop (6036454351

EMAL s kshaughnessy@crossagency . com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURERANational Union Fire Insurance 19445
INSURED INSURER B AmGuard Ins Co 42390

Community Action Programs

INSURER ¢ Hanover Ins Co.

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc. INSURER D NHMMJUA

P. 0. Box 1016 INSURERE :

Concord NH 03302 INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:15-16 AllL w/ 16-17 Crime REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TC CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDU CED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INER ADDLTSUBR] POUCY EFF | POLICY EXP
K TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | Wy POLICY NUMBER {MRIDONYYYY) | (MI/DOIYYYY) LiMTs
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,600,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
29-LX-067991165-0 10/1/2015 | 10/1/2016 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APFLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
poucy || B Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: NFPO086654- (D&0) Directors & Officers § 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMTT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {En ancident $ 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
Ahggmen SGHEQULED 29-CA-084608752-0 10/1/2015 | 10/1/2016 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS Per accident}
Uninsured motorist combined $ 1,000,000
X | UMBRELLA LIAB b4 OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3 5,000,000
DED [ X | RETENTION § 10,000 29-UD-016698260 10/1/2015 | 10/1/2016 5
WORKERS COMPENSATION COWCE0056Q X | EfRume 1 2
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY YIN
g;l;gggfﬂ@ﬁ‘égg!g;guEE:I‘:I)E':)I(ECUTIVE EI NIA {3a.) NH E L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
B |{Mandatory in NH) ' All officers included 6/17/2016 | 6/17/2017 | gL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER § 500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
C |Blanket Crime BDV1945863 3/27/2016 | 3/27/2017 | Limit 500,000
D | Professional NHJUA11882 12/30/2015|12/30/2016 | Limit 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Dept of Health & Human
Services

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PCOLIGIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IiN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

e TS

Chris Sharpe/JSC

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSO25 2n1anm

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Belknap—Merrimack Counties, Inc. =7

PO.Box 1016 ¢ 2 Industrial Park Drive ¢ Concord, NH 03302-1016
Phone (603) 225-3295 ¢ Toll Free (800) 856-5525 ¢ Fax (603) 228-1898 ¢ Web www.bm-cap.org

Community cAction Program 'é“‘

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction
of poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through planning
and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other assistance
(including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the organization
of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals, so
that these services may have a measurable and potentially major impact on the
causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals fo achieve self-
sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income communities
and members of the groups served to empower such residents and members to
respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities; and to securc a
more active role in the provision of services for private, religious, charitable, and
neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and business, labor, and
professional groups, who are able to influence the quantity and quality of
opportunities and services for the poor.

CAPBMCI Statement of Purpose

ALTON CONCORD FRANKLIN NEWBURY PITTSFIELD
Santor Center_.....ciweun B75-T102 Arsa Centear ... ... 225-8880 B Nawbury Commons Senior Cadnter...
Prospect View Housing ... 876-3111 Head Start ., ..........224-04!2 [T, TO—— 5 k] Head Start .. m—eﬂt
Earty Head Btlrt. --224-8492 Early Hend Shn... 435-5611
BELMONT Concord Area Senior Center ... 053|pEE
ORI ORI erronr ZET-SBET Meals-on-Wheol ............226-8082 Rivorside Housl — Family Plﬂmhg Famity P"'“"W . BY0.7BE2 SUNCQOK
Heritage Terr, Housing ... 267.8801  Concord Ares Tranai...... 2251949 Pranatal .. Pronstal ......... .BY-7862  Ares Certer .. ABS-7824
Horseshow Pond Pl.cu ... 228-8958 KEARSARGE VALLEY Whnlpu-uh- Trmﬂt ul-zl!t Sanior Conter... T ABS-4154
BRADFORD WICICSFP... e TIEZOE0  pren Cantaro,  asgzzo7  'WOrkplace uccees....S524-4M7 PEMBROKE
Senior Center saszipe  oreelace Succews..—..2032908  Hoed Surl. 4882208 Viege at Pomiroke Farme T!LTON
i — Notth Ridge Houslng ......486-3309 MERED]TH HOUBINGcccoreremrrmr i ABBABAZ SO COMT s STT -2
EPSOM Area Conter.... 2794096

Masdow Brook Housing ....T18-8250




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Budget Analyst, Chief Accountant, President, Vice-
President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the State of New
Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal #269 and #272
Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the following:

»  Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
¢ Department of Education for nutrition programs
¢ Department of Health and Human Services
— Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
~  Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
— Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
~  Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
— Division of Public Health Services for public health programs
Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
Department of Transportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
Department of Resources and Economic Development
Governor’s Office of Energy and Planning for Head Start, Low Income Energy
Assistance, Weatherization and Block Grant programs
New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
New Hampshire Secretary of State
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U. S. Department of the Treasury — Internal Revenue Service
and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on January 14, 2016, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

June 1, 2016 gﬂsz;\Eth1:%22?é:%2225““

Date Dennis T. Martino
Secretary/Clerk

SEAL

Agency Corporate Resolution
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To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Congcord, New Hampshirc

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Staterments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. {a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise
the statements of financial position as of February 28, 2015 and 2014, and the related
stalements of cash flows for the vears then ended and the statement of actvites and the
related notes to the financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2015,

Mariagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is tespansible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibiiify

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniled States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free fram material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assesstment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessmeanls, the auditor
considers internal control refevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial slatements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's interal contrel. Accordingly, we expiess no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
sigrificant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We beliove that the audit evidence we have oktained is sufficient and approgriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinton.




Opinion

In our opinion, the financia! stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2015 and 2014, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in
its net assets for the year ended February 28, 2016 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc’s
2014 financial stalements, and we expressed an uninodified audil opinion on those audited
financial statements in our repart dated Gctober 2 2014, In our opnion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended February 28 2014 13
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has boen
derived.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial stateman‘s as
a whote. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as requited by Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-132, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and the schedules of revenues and expenditures, and refundable
advances are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such informalion is the responsibilily of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The infarmation has been subjected to the auditing procadures appliad in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records uscd
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in tha United
States of America. In our opinion, the informaticn is fairly stated, n all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whols.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audiiing Standards, we have also issucd our report dated
Octaber 2, 2015, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Mernimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal contral over financial
reperting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or en compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporiing

| M,WCWEKWJ

October 2, 2015
Cancord, New Hampshire




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAF - MERRIMAGK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
2013 2014
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash S BB3,946 3 1,048,391
Accounts receivable 2,905,020 2,625,718
Prepaid expenses 221,988 233,047
Total current assets 3 790,854 3,817,156
PROPERTY
Land, builldings and improvements 4,618,285 4618238
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 5,812,868 2,153 197
Total propery 10,531,158 10,771,486
t.ess accumulated depreciation (6,515,032} (6,393,172)
Proparly, net 4016128 4,378,314
OTHER ASSETS
Investments 70,8497 G4 430
Due from related parly 139,441 139,441
Teta! other assels 210,338 233,880
TOTAL ASSETS § 8017418 § 8529350
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of notes payable | 3 145,551 3 137,236
Accounis payable < 628 657 15787569
Accrued expenses 893,053 1120302
Refundable advances 916,503 512,848
Totai current habilities 3.604,774 3,748,145
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current postion shown above ~1,4B5.279 1,608,954
Tolul habilities 5,150,053 - 5,358,098
NET ASSBETS
Unrestricted 2,317,222 2829700
Temgporarily restricted 550,143 541,551
Total net assets 2,867,385 3,471,251
§ 0,528,350

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 8017418

See Notes to Financial Statemenls
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COMMLINITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, ING,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FERRUARY 28, 2014

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards
Cther funds
n-kind
United Weay

Total revenues and olhier support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES
Campensation
Payroll faxes and benefits
Trawed
Qeocupancy
Pregram services
Other costs
Depreciation
In-kind

Talal expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Temporarily 2015 2014

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
5 16,673,978 5 16,673,978 $ 16,7920 582
3,313,800 § 2,442 312 ST7L2 92 7,487 335
848,954 848,954 793,868
94,850 94,850 86,102
20,928,382 2442 312 23,370,694 25167 267

2,433,720

(2,433,720)

23,362,102 8,592 23,370,694 25,167 287
8,177,738 £,177,739 2,042,123
7,186,454 2,186,454 2,398,215

295,726 295,726 269,138
1,297,227 1,297,227 1,195,834
8,923,081 8,923,081 10,867,215
1,530,175 1,530,175 1,771,081

415274 415 224 455,359

848,94 848,954 793 868

23,674,580 25,674,600 25812833

(312,478) 8,592 (303,886 (645,548)
262,700 541,551 3,171,251 3,516,747

$ 2317222 § 5850143 3 2867365 § 3171251

i |

See Notes to Financial Statements




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ 0 (303,586) 0§ (045,
Adjustiments to reconcile change in n2t assets Lo
net cash provided by operating activities’

-
[,
P
[$2]

Deprecialion 415,224 455,35¢
(Gain] loss on sale of property {22.350) 4,514
Loss on investment 32.335
{Increase’ docrease o current asscts
Accounts receivable {269.302) 845 143
Prepaid expenses 11,059 164,320
Increase idecrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable n0.908 (443,293)
Accrued expenses {127,249} {£9.324)
Refundabje advances 3,555 (157,176}
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES (209 608) 194 997
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property (50,4505 (214,202)
Imvestment in partnership {8,793 (12,320)
Proceeds from sale of property 28,764 1,700
NET GASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES C(3gATey (224,527)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term debt (135,380 (127.536)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1353800 (127.536;
NET DECREASE IN CASH {384,445] (157.0617;
CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR . .1.048,391 1,205,452
CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 663946 § 1048391
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interes! $ 139,724 § 118,011

See Notes to Financial Statements




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organjzation

Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit arganization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as weil as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial suppert of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are preparcd on the aceruai basis of accounting in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAR of the United States.

Financial Statement Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Staterments of Not-For-Profit
Organizations  Under FASB ASC No. 858, the Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activitios according to threg classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanantty
restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined by the presence or
ahsence of donor restrictions.  As of February 28, 2015 the Organization had no
permanently restricted net assets and had temporarily restricted net assets of $550,143.

The financiai statements include certain prict-yedr summalized comparative information
in total but not by nat asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with cenerally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should te read in conjunction with the Organization's
financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2014, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Income Taxes

Caommunity Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501{c)(3) The mileinal Revenue Sarvice has delermined them to be
other than a private foundation.

Comrmunity Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. files information returns
in the United States and the State of New tlampshire. Community Action Pragram
Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. is no longer subjecl to examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2011.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 [ASC 7403, Aceaurnting for income Taxes,
estabiished the mmimum threshold for recognizing, and a system fol measuring, the
benefiis of tax return pasitions in financial statements. The OCrganization has anatyzed
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its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2011 through 2014}, and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Qrganization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Asscts purchasced with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lowsr threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Deprecialion is computed cn the straight line basis over the estimated
useful tives of the relaled assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Fquipment, furniture and vehicles 3 -7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United  States generally
accepted accouniing principles requires management 1o make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and lahilities and disclosure
of conlingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows. the Organization considers afl liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less 10 be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Crganization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect 1o these accounts.

Contributions

Al contributions are considered to be avallable for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
petiods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permansntly
restricted support, depending on ihe nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction Is
fulfiled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Confributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
658, Accounting for Coniributions Received and Conttibutions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skiils, and would
ctherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services ang supplies arc reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the ecrileria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, suaplizs and space that the Organization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Crganization received $848,954 in donated
facilities, services and supplies for the year ended February 28, 2015 as follows:
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The Organization receives contributed professianal services that are required tc be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair vaiue of these
sefvices was determined to be $424,017 for the year ended February 28, 2075,

The Organization also receives contributed food commaodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
velue of these faod commodities and goods was determined to be 341 3,905 for the year
ended [February 28, 2015.

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facllities. 1 accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the difference between ameounis paid for the
use of the facilities and the fair market value of the rental space has been recorded as
an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
statements. The estimatled fair value of the donation was determined to be $11 032 for
the year ended February 28, 20156,

Advertising
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are tncurred. Total advertising

costs for the year ended February 25, 2015 amounted to $34.336,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount managemeant expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reascnable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was cstimated to be zerc at February 28, 2015 The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts.

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred.  Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being mat aggragated
$915,503 zs of February 28, 2015

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees.  The cost of the plan is charged to pregrams administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2015 totaled
$336,795,

LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to every
two years. For the year ended February 28, 2015, the annual lease expense far the
leased facilities was $465 840




The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leascs are as follows:

. Year Ended
February 28 Amount
2016 § 107483

ACCRUED EARNED TIME
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employeas

have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $415,810 at February 28,
2015.

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization ihas a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the fing) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.25% for the year ended February 28,
2015) plus 1%, but not iess than 3% per annum.  The line is secured by all the

Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
2015,

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2015:

575% note payable to a financial institution in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $12,373 through JJuly,
2023, The note is secured by properly of the Organization for
Lakes Region Famiy Cenler. $ 1,108,079

Note payable to a bank i monthly installments for principal and
interest of $4 842 through May, 2023, Interest is stated at 1%
above the prime rate as published by the Wall Strest Journal,
which resulted in an interest rate of 4 25% at February 28, 2015,
The note is secured by a first real estale morigage and
assignment of rents and leases on property located in Goncord,
New Hampshire for Early Head Start, 390,829

3% note payable {o tha City of Concard for leasehold
improvements in monthly installments for principal and interest
of $747 through May, 2027. The nole is secured by properly of
the Organization for the agency administrative  building
renovations, 91,766




4.75% nole payadle to Rural Development in monthly
instaliments for principal and interest of $148 per month through

|
|
June, 2031 The note is secured by property of the .
Organization for Franklin Community Services building. 20156 '
Tatal 1,610,830
Less amounts due within one year o145 551
Long term portion $ 14585279
The scheduled maturities ot long term debt as of February 28, 2015 were as follows:
Year Ending
February 28 Amount
2016 3 145551
2017 154,380
2018 163,752
2019 173,70¢
2020 134,280
Thereafter 789,157
..1.810.830
9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2015
Land & 168,676
Building and improvements 4449613
Fauipment and vehinles 5812 869
10,531,158
Less accumulated depreciation (6,515,032)
Property and equipment, net $..4.018,125
Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2015 was $415 224,
10. CONTINGENCIES
The Organization reccives yrant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to usc the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and requlations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be reguired to repay the funds No provisions have becn made for this
contingency because specitic amounis, if any. have not been determined o assessed

— —as of-kebruary 28, 2015, Monitoring has not indicated any discrepancias.
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11.

12.

13.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year ended February 28 2015, approximately 570,600,000 {45%) of the
Grganization’s total revenue was received from the Departiment of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of tha Organization is dependent ubon continued
support from this depantment.

The QOrganization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions in southern
New Hampshire. At February 28, 2015, the halances were insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corperation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Effective July 1, 2010, one of
the financial institutions agreed to collateralize all deposits with them in excess of the
EDIC limit. Another financial institution agreed to collateralize the Organization's sweep
repurchase account up to 110% of the account balance with US Government Agencies.
At February 78, 2015, there were no deposits in excess of the uninsured limits.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
At February 28, 2015, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following
unexpended, purpose restricted donations:

Restricted Purpose

Senfor Center 5 120,826
Elder Services 220314
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,071
Common Pantry 6,605
Community Crisis 34578
Caring Fund 12,649C
Agency-F/AP 12,164
Agency-HIG 157 487
Agency-FP/PN 8774
FGPISCP Assoc. Region 1 1,183
Other Programs . L448
. .550.143

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES _ _
The Staternent of Activities discloses expenses by natural classification. The
dlassification of expenses by funciion is summarized below:

Program Management Total

Salaries and wages % 7,781,954 5 395 785§ 8177.739
Benefits and payroll taxes 2,040,608 145,796 2,186 454
Trave! 292,103 3623 245728
Occupancy 1,189,639 107 588 1,297 227
Program services $,923,081 2,823,081
(Other costs:

Accounting tees - — - 16416 32 670 44 086

Legal foes 1770 5G2 2,362

Supplies 221,230 26,802 247 832
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14,

15.

16.

Poslage and shipping h8 481 1.099 G0, 580
Equipment rental and
maintenance 1,691 2 591 4,282
Printing and publications 3,274 1,747 51
Conferances, conventions ard
meetings (,889 5,845 12 834
nterest 126,452 13,272 139 ¥24
Insurance 206,524 29 h85 235.10¢
Membership fees 10,837 1,480 12317
Utility and maintenance 5,042 53514 58,560
Other 683,716 17756 014772
Depreciation 413,758 1 466 4157224
In kind 848954 848 854

2.22.833.474  §_ 8411068 § 23674580

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Community Action Program Belknap — Menimack Counties, Inc. is relaied to the
fallowing eorporation as a resu't of common management:

Related Party Funection

CAPBMC Development Carporation Real Estate Develapment

There was $139 441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at February 28,
2015,

RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior vear financial statements have bean
reclassitied {o enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating {o its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fai; value of the mutual funds
totaled $70,897 at February 28, 2015

ASC Topic No. 825-10. Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framowork
in genorally  accepted accounting principles for measuring faic value which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-bascd measurement, not an entity-specific
maasurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.
In accordance with FASR ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation techniques
consistent with market, income and cost approaches o measure fair valus., As a
basis for considering marke: participant assumptions in fair value measurements.
FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used -
in measuwing fair values. The Werarchy gives the highest priority o Level 1
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17.

18.

maasurements and the fowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three ievels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as {ollows:

Leval 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices availabzle in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date,

Level 2 - Inputs 1o the vaiuation methodalogy are other than quoted markst prices
in actve markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of modeis or other
valuation rnethodoiogies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the assel or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimales and assumptions related to the pricing of the assel or
kability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2015, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1 and were
hased on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observabie Inputs {Level 1)

Beginning balance — mutual funds 5 59,439
Total gains (losses) - realized /unrealized 6,175
Purchases - 5,283
Frding Balance - mutual funds $ . 706887

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current Sabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Frankiin Cammunity Services Bullding
(Frankin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Caoglition, the NH Rotary Food Chailenge and FGP/SCP Associztion Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and aversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency SRIVICEs).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or raneactions that occur afler the statement of financial
position date, but befare the financial statements are avaitahle to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherant in the process of preparing tinancial statements. Nonrgcognized
subsequent events are events that proviae evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after thal date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through October 2, 2015, the date the financial
statemenis were available 10 be issued,
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

{(See Independent Auditors’ Report)




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAN BELKNAP - MERRIMALK COUNTIES, INC,

SCHEDULE OF FXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2015

FEDERAL GRANTOR!

PROGRAM TITLE

1JS DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUWMAN SERVICES
Head Start

Through State of New Hampshire
Waathenzation-HRRF
Fuel Asgistanc?
Fuel Assisianca-SLAS
Tille ki Fzr, C
Comymiutity Services Block Grant
Title XX - Blod: Grand
amily Piznning
Family Planning
Farmily Planning
Titte Ul Part 8 Rurad Tiaesportalion
Home Vigting
Mrenatal

Merrimack Counly Senice Link Procram
Marrimack County Seivice ik Procram
Magrirsack Counly Serdce  ink Pracran
Merrirmack Counly Sepdice (K Proarsn
Merrimack County Service ink Pragrar
Merrirmack l"fmnty Service ink Brogram
Merrirmack Counly Seivicn . ink Prageam
Senior Medicare Patral Pragiam Capacdy By ding

Eider ServicasMSIF

Through Southern Now Hampshire Services
\Workplace Success

Through L akes Region Partnership for Public Health
Tanketpicoe Mosister Geneoes

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUL TURE

Through State of New Hampshire
Wi
GSFF
Senier Farmers Marke!
Surplus Food- 1EFARPA M
Surplus Food-TEFAP
CACF Head Star?USDA
Summer Food. EDA

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL SERVICES
Senior Companicn

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Through State of New Hampshire
Caneerd Area Transil
Concord Area Tiansit-New reedom
Caoncord Area Transit
Whrnipesatkes Teansid Systom
Wirnipesaukee Transil System

Through Connty of Merdimack
Rural t:anspoiabcn
—- s Aohmsaer-Tniver ProgionT

CFDA
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US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Through ¥ew Hampshire Housing Finance Authority

Statewide Luad Abalnimest & A fa G}

Through State of New Hanpshire

Oulraach Frogrim NI
Emergency Salutiors Sraet Mif
Hemeless Preventun NI
Suppartive Housing Serines
Through National Center for Healthy tlousing
Radon Program 14908
US DEPARTMENT OF FNERGY
Through State of New Hampshire
Veatherization BG4z 551095
US DEPARTMENT OF L ABOR
Through Stale of News Hanipshire
Senior Community Service Craplayrment 172358 C1Q063
Through Southern New Hampshire Services
WIA-AdAull Peogram 172648 N2A
WIA-Dislorates Woker Procsm 1720 MM

HOMELAND SECURITY
Through United Way

wmen gency Food il Saelle Progran, BRI
TOTAL AWARDS EXPENDED

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The schedule of Cxpendiures of Fagera) Aviuds includes fedoral award aclvity of Community Action Frogram
Belkimap - Merrimack Countes, Ing for ihe yoor ended Fobruary 26, P15 The minmnation in this sehoduie is
presented in accordance with tho reqitirements of OMB Clrclar A-133, "andits of States, Laoal GCovermmenis
and Not-Profit Organizations.” Because the scheduls fresents oriy & selecien porlion of the cperations of
Community Actior: Program Batknap Merrimach Courtes, Inz itis st inbended te ond dees nol mesent the
financial posiion. changes n net 85seis, or cosh flows of Community Action Frog-am Belknap-Merrimack
Ceunzias, Inc.

NOTE 8 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures repored on the schedalz ane epannd on the acarual basis ol acoruming Suck: expendtilures are
tecognized following the cos! princisles containes in OB Chedlar A-122, Cost Priaciyes far Non-Prefl
Oryganizations, whurein certain types of expenditures zre nol allawable or e inibwd 25t relmbumemonl Pass-

through enlity fdentifying numbers ase presented where availahls,

NOTE C - SUBREGIPIENTS
Gf the federal cxpenditures presented in the schedule. Community Acticr Fregram Oefk-ap-Merimazk
Counties, Inz. provided {ederal awards to subracipients 2 follows:

Armount
GEEA Number Pragran Name Provided
4900 Stalewice Lead Abatemer! Proarm T a2, 466

NOTE b - FOOD COMMODITIES

Normonetary ass'slanee is reported in 1he scheduis at the Tair vaius of the commediies received end
disinbuled

8 ARG
64250

_. 1480

Yo ez

189,574

184,674




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable (o flinancial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Cornptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Acbon Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (2 New
Hampshire ponprofit organization), which comprisc the statement of financial position as of
February 28, 2015, and the related statemenls of activities and changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the year then ended. and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2015,

Internal Control Qver Financial Repotrting

In planning and performirg our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counlies, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal cantrol) to determine the aucit procedures thal are appropriaie in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing cu opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinien on the effectivensss of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counlies, [nc's inlernal control. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Qrganization’s inlernal control

A deficiency in intornal control exsts when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nounal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on 3 timely basis. A material vseakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal sontrol, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that & material misstalemenl of the enlity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis A significant deficiency 1s a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enought to merit altention by those charged with governarnce.




Cur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was nct designad to identfy all deficiencies in internal control
that might be matenial weaknesses or significant deficicncies. Given these limitations. during
our audit we did not identify any deficicncies in internal contro! that we consider to be material
weaknesses. Howaver, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Complianice and Other Mattcrs

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cormmunity  Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Ine’s financial statements are free fom material misslatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with cerain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
complance with thase provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinian. The results of onr tests disciosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of aur testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and rot to provide an cpinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization’s interna! control or o compliancea. This report is an integral part of an audit
performad in  accordance with Gowvernment Auditing  Standards  in considering  the

Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordirgly, this communication is not suifable
for any other purpose.

fig"?"“" RS STy Y ’IW:;/MT&J

October 2, 2015
Concord, New FHampshire




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Mertimack Counties, tnc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-iMerrimack Counties, Inc.’s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circufar A-133 Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on sach of Community Acticn Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc’s major federal programs for the year ended February 28,
2015. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.'s major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accempanying schedite of
findings and questionad coests.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and granls applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsivility is to express an opinich on compliance for each of Cormrmunity Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted pur audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMR Circular A-133, Audits of States,
{ ocal Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require thal we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and malerial effect on a maior federal program occurred. An audit includes exarrining,
on a tesl basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s complianca with those requirements and perferming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Howoever, our audit does not provide a legal determination - of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Prograrm
In our opinion, Community Action Program Bel<nap-Merrimack Counties, Ine. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requiremnents referred to above that couid have

a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended Febraary
26, 2015,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counfies, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpase of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and ‘o test and report on internal control over comphliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose af 2xpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinian
on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
confrol over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned funclions, to prevent. or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requiremant of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness i
internal conlre! over compliance s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
controf over compliance, such that there is a rcasonable possibiiity that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not he
prevented, or detected and comected, an a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
conirol over compliance s a deficiancy, or a combination of deficiencies, Iy internal centrel
over compliance with a type of compliance regquirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in infermnal control over compliance, yet knportant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Cur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internzl control over compliance thal we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal contral over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose. XQW( 7}({@»%&\1 /M/ ;

October 2. 2015
Concord, New Hampshire




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

£

=)

The auditors’ repert expresses an unmodified opinion cn the financial statements of
Communily Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Repart on Internal Canirol Over Financial Repaorting
and on Compliance and other Matfers Based on an Auwdit of Financial Slatements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses
are repored,

Neo instances of noncompliance material to the financial staternents of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Governiment Aucditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

Mo significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reporied in the dependent Auditors’ Report an Compiiance for Each Major Program and
Cn Internal Conirel Over Complance Required by OMB Circular A-133. No material
weaknesses are reported.

The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Frogram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opirion on all
Major programs.

There were no audit findings which the auditor would be required to report in accordance
with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major programs include:
02.600 Head Start/Early Head Start
10.557 Special Supplement Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children
(WICH
93,558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF}
20.5613 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuais With Disabilities
20.521 New Freedom Program
20509 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $515,067

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk audiise,
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Mone

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRANMS AUDIT

None




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - CFDA 93,568

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Revenues
Division of Human Resources
Cther

Expenditures
Persanne!
Fringe benelds
Travel
Occupancy
Direct program costs
Other costs

10/1/13-8/30/14

Grant Period

Grant Period

10/1/14-9/30115

22

Total

% 860873 F 5134065 § 3994936
547 786 1,323

$ 0 OB51410 5 3134849 § 3.996259
§ 167832 F 194450 & 362,282
24,423 52,906 57,329

2 181 737 2,918
23,423 33,448 56.871
505072 2,346,095 3,455,167
4479 27,213 61,692

£ EGIAN0 S 5104849 § 3,096,259




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE Of REVENUES AND CXPENSCS
FOR THE SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM - CFDA 94.016
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Grant Period Grant Period
7113 - 6/30M4 711114 - 6/30{15 Total

Revenues

LCorporation for National Services F 0 89160 3 285579 T 354744
Expenditures

Personnel 3 78761 R 180,167 $ 258 928

Fringe benefits 2 6306 18,664 21,050

Travel 6./4 60,774 675Uk

Other costs o - Ga7 5774 6.761

& g 165 3 265078 b 354 744




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, ING,

SCHEDULE OF REVEMUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE HEAD START PROGRAM - CFDA 93.600
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Grant Period Grant Period
1141203114 /11512131115 Total
Revenues
U.5. Department of Health and Human Services 5 3,018936 s 653.239 3 3673.1756
In-Kind 1,114,333 42,738 1.207 071
Other 8,800 - 8,800
b A13066  §  7A5877 § 4880046
Expenditures :
Parsannel 3 2077618 ¥ 433,280 § 2507502
Fringe benefits 319,130 73 688 392,418
Travel 36 775 9,384 46,160
fn-Kind 1,114,330 62,738 1,207,071
Other costs 545215 140,204 735,419

§ 4143089 5 748,301 8 4889370
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE NUTRITION ANE ELDER SERVICES PROGRAM -
CFDA 93.045, 83.667 and 93.053

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEERUARY 28, 2015

Revenues
Nl Department of Health ang Human Services
Title XX
Title IH Part C
NH Jepartment of Health anc Human Services
Other

Expendifures
Personnel
Fringe banafily
Ceecupancy
Travet
Other costs

25

Grant, Period

Grant Period
THMM3 -6/30M1M4  7/1M14 - 6130015

Tatal

156,527 333832 F 0 495360
256,907 640,301 887,208
111,932 92,528 204,460

- 539753 _ | 830,783

$ 5257355 $ 1582415 § 2117781

5 329819 T 6706951 $ 1,005,770
32,985 63,039 96,034
45229 102,144 157 377
42 475 81,101 123576
262,141 509,132 771,323

Voo 7e2850 b 1431421 § 2154080



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC,

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE ELECTRIC ASSISTANGE PROGRANM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

|
Grant Period Grant Period
10/1/13-92/30/14  10/1/14-9/30/15 Total
Revenues 5885042 § 1074868 3 1959010
Expenditures
Persaonnel b3 177,286 K] 142 589 $ 319,885
Fringe berefits 33612 20 444 58,9560
Travel 2,183 463 2,826
Oceupancy 5,735 D162 10 897
Other cosfs 656,336 401,061 1,667,397
L 8B5042 % 1074718 51,959,761
|
i |
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMAGK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Twin River Community Corp (054 & G65)
Cottage Hatel (0G5 & 066)

Sandy Ledga (094 & 095)

Oranam (105 & 1G5

Seniar Center Program (1358

Franklin Intergenerational {185 & 130)

senior Companion Program - Non Fedsral {224 & 2253
Senior Companion Program - State (274 & 235)
Frankiin Community Scrvices (794 & 235)

Head Start - Childoare (354 & 145)

Lakes Region Farmily Cantar (384 & 385)

REIP {402}

N Modular Ramp (437 & 434

Sun Safety {(484)

New Hampshire Housing Guarantee Program (494 & 493)

Care Program (304 & 505)
NH Rotary (540}
Commen Pantry (554 & 355)

Oral Health WiC (300

Epsom Lidetly Housing (844 & 845)

Revenues

44,184
144,184
21,042
24,195
1,018,945
160,297
56,634
35,990
1,355
211,333
BET 463
1,061
126
3135

1416

Expenditures’

B 42945

14,083
20674

22547

T8, 740
1€0.297
23.19
24522
718
2112333

916 787

41
460

V1,416




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BEI KNAP - MERRIMAGK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY PROGRANM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

| ’ Revenues Expenditures
‘ Eelmont Housing (654 & 655) b G7 141 3 H7 141
Alton Housing (864 & 689) 48 485 48,465
Kearsarge Housing (G74 & 675) 60, 768 60,768
Riverside Housing (684 & 685) 63,808 653,608
Pembiake Housing (/00 & 709) £2 108 52,106
Homeless Revolving Loan (728) 3147 5,147
Ares Conters (764 & 765) 250 487 210,220
THE FIXIT Program (834 & 835) 3,105 1278
Loan Guarantee Program (847) 41,208 41,208
MC Loan Cuarantes Program (848} 3,016 3.016
The Canng tund (464 & 865) 2416 1,501
FGPSC Associalion Region 1 (875) 1,183 O
Agency WICICSHE (842) {4,443) 898
Newbury Elderly Housing (884) 55 888 72497
Agency Account {911 & 930, (30,174 L858 412
Agency Account FAP (922) 03,938 98,218
Agency Account SCE (933 & 934) 13911 5,589
HIS Agency (944 & $45) | 141,425 5,077
Agency FP/PN (9G3) 945 U
Agency Developmeant Fund (981) 182 455 105214

Agency biorseshoe Pond Flace (985 & 9806} 16,827 15,527




FUND #

a47
114
126
146
157
186
225
354
455
195
508
546
575
5GS
615
e
28
726
765
835
847
856
383
306
545

COMMUNITY_ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2015

FUND NAME

Suppodive Fousing Services
Radon Program

EAP - Lead Agency

Merrimack County Service Link
Merrmack County Service Link
Electrie Assistance Program

Senior Companion Program - Mar: - Fodera

Home Visiting - 1A

Housing Preservation Fung

MNH Haousing Guarantee Pragram
Core Progran

Surminer Foeding

FFuel Azsistance Program
Hameless Praventian

Women Infant & Chiddren
Concor Area Fransit

Horneless Revalving Loan Fund - Belknap County
Hemeless Revolving Loan Fund - Serimack Geunty

Area Center Program

Fixit frogram

Loan Guarantee Hrogramn

Mesy Start Crogram

Aguncy Account - WG SFR
Zommunity Scrvices Brock Srant
Ageney Account - Fead Statt

HHS PROGRAM CFDA# AMOUNT

z £358

175

18,204

G338 {F2,471 of deferred armomt is net ‘ederal) 4 £43
83,778 (duferred amount is nol fedoral) 1,647
&9 w18

1,063

93358 (deferrad amount is not federall 47
"4 540
034082
T
30,919
50,200
334,707
a 204
54 173
39672
3,770
1476

21874

30

253 118

i

G3 559 F2H13
1.250

93.568 (92,910 of deferred amount is not facz:al

TOTAL

B AN 503




Effective May 2016

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Sara A. Lewko, President Susan Koerber
Vice President - Vacant Bill Johnson
Dennis Martino, Secretary-Clerk David Siff
Kathy Goode, Treasurer Diana Lacey
Heather Brown Christine Averill
Nicolette Clark Donna Barnett
Theresa M. Cromwell




EDUCATION

EMPLOYMENT

RALPH LITTLEFIELD

High School — Winnacunnet High School, Graduated June 1966
College — Keene State College, Keene, NH, Graduated May 1971
Degree — Bachelor of Education

January 1980 — Present
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Executive Director

Responsible for the general administration of the agency which is
comprised of 85 major programs and has an annual budget in
excess of $37 million dollars and a staff of 410 employees.

June 1978 — January 1980
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire

Deputy Director

1976 — June 1978
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire

Head Start Director

1974 — 1975

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire

Program Coordinator-Food Stamp Program, Green Thumb Project,
Nutrition West

1974 — Head Counselor, Summer Neighborhood Youth Corps

1972 — Assistant Head Start Director, Cheshire County Head Start
Claremont, New Hampshire

June 1971 — General Services Director




Elizabeth M. Hennessey

Nov. 2014 — Present Director, Head Start/Early Head Start/Child Care
| Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
| Concord, New Hampshire

Directly supervise all aspects of the Head Start/Early Head Start/Child Care program
Provide leadership to approximately 85 staff members

On-going supervision and support of 4 Content Area Specialists
Oversight of Head Start/Early Head Start annual budgets

Sept. 1993-Nov. 2014  Health/Nutrition Specialist-Head Start/Early Head Start/Child Care
Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

¢ Directly supervise all aspects of the Head Start/Early Head Start/Child Care program
health and nutrition content areas for approximately 450 children and families.

e Develop and implement policies and procedures to ensure compliance with Federal
Performance Standards and NH Child Care licensing regulations.
On-going supervision and support of Health Services Coordinators.

»  Work closely with Education/Disabilities and Family Services Specialists to ensure
coordination of services to children and families.

¢ Organize and facilitate regular meetings of Health and Family Services Advisory Board.

Maintain inter-agency agreement and coordinate services with WIC program.

Oversight of USDA Child and Aduit Care Food Program including annual grant

application, monitoring, claim review and contract renewals.

Ensure quality food service, training and technical assistance to menu production staff.

Development, education and training of staff on specific health and nutrition topics.

Oversee tracking of all health data utilizing ChildPlus software.

Ensure children receive timely screening, assessments and follow-up medical and

nutritional care.

Support and assist families in obtaining needed services

Complete all necessary administrative tasks and management team responsibilities.

Cross-content and area management supervision as needed.

Participate on state and local committees when relevant to the Head Start program.

September 2003-May 2010 Consultant, Health/Nutrition/Safety/Transportation Services
Danya International Inc., Silver Spring, Maryland




Review Head Start/Early Head Start programs throughout the United States for
compliance with Federal Performance Standards.

Independent observation of centers and classrooms.

Write reports documenting areas of non-compliance

Team participation in overall assessment of the quality of the programs.

September 1992-August 1993 School Nurse, SAU #19

e & & o o &

Dunbarton, New Hampshire

Supervise health services for 175 elementary school children and faculty.
Maintain all health and immunization records to meet state requirements.
Annual vision, hearing and health screenings for all children.

Coordination of on-site dental and vaccine clinics.

Development and implementation of health and safety policies.

Administered Free and Reduced School Lunch program.

lilness and injury assessment and daily medication administration to children.

Education:  Bachelor of Science, Magna Cum Laude

Saint Anselm College
Manchester, New Hampshire

Business Administration (completed 90 credit hours)
George Mason University
Fairfax, Virginia

NH License: Registered Nurse

Member: Delta Epsilon Sigma (National Scholastic Honor Society)

Sigma Theta Tau (International Honor Society of Nursing)

Continuing Education:

Head Start Institute for Healthy Programs and Healthy Families (March 2014)
Public Health Symposium (April 2014)

Psychiatric Disorders in Children (February 2014}

Children who Live with Trauma (January 2014)

Healthy Futures: Improving Outcomes for Young Children (October 2013)
Data Driven Decision Making in Head Start (June 2013)

Family Engagement and School Readiness (May 2013)




EDUCATION

Plymouth State University « 2004
« Bachelor of Science Early Childhood Studies
« Kappa Delta Pi, International Honor Society

EXPERIENCE

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Community Action Program

Early Head Start

Education & Disabilities Services Specialist, Birth to Three 1/2013-present

« Supervision and oversight of the entirety of the Early Head Start Program,
lead a team {(managers, teachers, and home visitors) to provide the highest quality of
care for infants, toddlers, and their families.

« Ensure compliance with Head Start Performance Standards, NAEYC accreditation, NH
State Lisecning.

« Plan and Conduct trainings for staff and families.

« Provide training, technical assisantce, and support to management, teaching and home
visiting etaff in regard to prenatal development, child development, disabilities, and
school readiness goals. Oversee development of the training and technical assistance
budget for Early Head Start center based and home hased program options.

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Community Action Program

Home Visiting NH-Healthy Families America

Prgram Supervisor 1/2013-present

+ Conduct monthly supervisions with the FAW/Home Visitor/Manager.
« Oversight off Health Families America budget and program.

Belknap-Merrimack Countics Community Action Program

Farly Head Start 10/2010-12/2012

Education & Disabilities Services Manager

« Provided ongoing technical assistance and support to 9 EHS classrooms, monthly
supervisions.

« Oversight of The Creative Curriculum for Infants, Toddlers and Twos, TS Gold assessment
gystem, implementation of screening tools, and proper documentation in our data system.

« Ensured compliance with HS Performance Standards, State Lisencing, and NAEYC
accreditation.

Early Head Start 9/2005-10-2010

Lead Teacher, Early Head Start, multi-aged classroom, 6 weeks to three plus years

« Designed and maintained classroom environment that met Head Start Performance
Standards, NAEYC Accreditation, and NH State Lisecning regulations.

« Engaged in responsive, supportive, and respectful adult-child interactions that were
inclusive of children’s individual needs and interests.

. Used tools such as observations, screenings, assessments, and family input to guide in
developing curriculum plans.

« Used “Individualized Weekly Planning form” to develop individual written goals for each child,
documentation included experiences to achieve thesc goals and materials required to carry
out the experiences.
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+  Facilitated the use of interpreters, according to the family’s prefercuce when the primary language spoken by the

farnily was other than English.

. Kept portfolios and child observations up to date for all children with whom [ worked.
. Worked with Part C and LEA specialists to ensure quality programming for children with exceptionalities.
Facilitated the inclusion of all children to ensure that a natural learning environment was provided and

implemented the goals of each child’s IFSP/IEP.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & SPECIALIZED TRAINING

+ Pyramid Model Training » PIWI (Parents Interacting with
» Motivational Interviewing Infants)
« ASQ-3 and ASQ-SE « NAEYC-Member
+ Teaching Strategies GOLD « HFA Core Training/Supervisor
o Parents as Teachers (Home Based Training

Curriculum) + The Creative Curriculum

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST




EDUCATION
Plymouth+State University » Current Student
. W?rking toward my M.Ed. in Mental Health Counseling

University of New Hampshire » 2006
« B.A. in Psychology
« Double minor in Race, Culture, & Power and Women's Studies

EXPERIENCE

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Community Action Program

Healthy Families America Program Home Visitor & Family Assessment Worker 10/2012-current

« Complete assessments to determine eligibility into the HFA program through interview.

+ Home visits with prenatal women, their partners, and families to provide support,
referrals, and information on child development and assist with development of goals.

Early Head Start Program

Early Head Start Home Visitor 3/2012-10/2012

«  Conduct weekly visits with families of children 0-3 with focus on nutrition, family
gervices, health, mental health, safety, and parent involvement.

« Assess children using Creative Curriculum Gold

Family Service Worker » 8/2010 — 10/2012

« Conduct monthly visits with families of children in center based programming.

+ Work as part of a team with teachers, mental health consultant, and health coordinator.

Home Vigitor for Home Visiting New Hampshire 8/2010-6/30/2012

« Conduct weekly and bi-weekly visits of Medicaid eligible prenatal families and children up
to age one.

. Participated in outreach to community partners and possible clients of HVNH.

+ Met regularly with healthcare providers and social workers to enhance poaitive outcomes
for families involved in HVNH.

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Community Action Program
Fanily Planning Program 6/2007-8/2010

Site Manager

+  Developed and implemented curriculum for educating the community on reproductive health.
« Maintained office, including billing, records, and reception.
+ Supervised peer educators, volunteers, and interns.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & SPECIALIZED TRAINING

+ Maternal Depression » Refugee Connections Committee
+ Motivational Interviewing « Diversity Institute Planning

« Cultural Sensitivity Committee at PSU

» Lactation Counseling » Immigration Integration Group
+ Parents as Teachera « HFA Core Training

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST




SIOBHAN CONNELLY

-
EDUCATION

L)
EXPERIENCE
VOLUNTEER WORK

LESLEY UNIVERSITY CAMBRIDGE, MA PSYCHOQLOCY, 2011 - NOV 25, 2015
NAROEPA UNIVERSITY BOULDER, CO — INITERDISCIPUNARY STUDIES, 2008 - 2009
KEEME STATE COLLEGE KEENE, NH — PSYCROLQGY, 2005 - 2006

BELKNAP COUNTY HEALTHY FAMILIES AMERICA, Laconta, NH 3/2015-Present

Home VisitortFamily Resatirce Specialist
Devised and imylements program specific Individual Family Support Plan for BMCAP-HFA

Assists families to overcome barriers via community resources and promotes self-directed growth

EnhancesFaren;-cuullerqd development with child-centered advocacy including promoting aware-
ness of safe family practices

Ensures safety of children through home-based visits and reparts appropriately in cases of evidenced
child abuse or neglect

COMMUNITY BRIDGES: FORENSIC DEPARTMENT, Cancord, NH 12/2014-Present
Intern
Updated consumer information via HRST, AWARDS, and DocSTAR

Verilied copswner’s ISP and Behavioral pla als are implemented properly throughout progress
not:"s.\nrrrn:‘s‘nﬁw[iy reports plan go P ec properly Throug Prog

Continues 1 attend this agency’s Human Rights Committee meetings and oversee the restrictions
impused on consumers with behaviaral plans

SUDDHA STUDIO, Meredith, NH 6/2014-Present
Lead Yoga Instructor
- Coordinates with local studios for workshops and guest teaching opportunities

Knowledge of planning foHow-through
- Displays emational stability throughoul stressful situations

Encourages a healthy lifestyle by provigdin ational suppqrt to practitioners with active listening,
cenlerinE motivalio al lcc%ning and a g:ﬁi erate physLum pra:.’!i(u &

COMMUNITY BRIDGES, Bow, NH 9/2009-12/2011
Group Home Direct Care Support Staff

coounted for the care of three non-ambulatory and nonverbal individuals with different genetic
tlegenerative conditions

Advocated for the individuals during community activities and in medical settings

. Maintained a sanitary and positive environment, ADL's, and transportation to extracurricular pro-
grams

COMMUNITY BRIDGES, Bow, NH 6/2007-4/2008

Private Direct Care Support Staff
. Partof a diligent 24 hour care team for a woman experiencing progressed Multiple Sclerasis

- Provided transportation to appointrments and leisure activities
- Authorized Medication Administrator Exam completed (score: 100%)

- Assisted with daily life needs, medication administration, and regularly guided meditation tech-
niques

CAMP TIMBERLANE FOR BQOYS, Woadruff, Wi 6/2009-8/200%
Yoga Instructor
- Duvised and implemented a yoga-asana program for B - 15 year old boys

- Provided assistance anddsup ort to all co-workers in a variety of intramural activities including
equine, arts & crafts, and pottery

Encouraged self-care among colleagues by catering free yoga-asana classes to all staff at the camp
MAINSTAY: INGRAHAM INC., Portland, ME 2/2010-5/2010
Yoga Instructor

- tnstructed yoga to girls living in a youth safe house

modeled a healthy life style. £ncouraged positive change




Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Department of Health and Human Services
. Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

(17-DHHS-DPHS-MCH-01-01)
7/01/2016 — 6/30/2018

Key Personnel Salaries and Allocation

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid
this Contract | from this Contract
Ralph Littlefield Executive Director $140,639 0% $0
Beth Hennessey HS/EHS/CCC Director 566,261 0% $0
Vanessa Gordon ED/DS Services Specialist 0-3 $38,968.80 0% $0
HVNH Program Supervisor
Aurelia Moran Program Supervisor/Mgr./FAW | $37,409 100% $37.,409
Siobhan Connelly Home Visitor $32,938 100% $32,938

dl- key personnel salaries 6-2010




FORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 5/8/15)

Subject: Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America (17-DHHS-DPHS-MCH-01-02)

Hotice  This agrecnront and all of itz attaclirenss shall becorr e public upon submizzion to Gavernar and

Exceutive Councl for approval. &ny inforr ation thats private, cenfidential or proprictary must

be clearly identified wo thic apency and agrood to 10 WHONE PRON o signing the contrace,

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as tollows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 ' Contractor Nm.nc ) 1.4 Contractor Address

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 464 Chestnut Street, PO Box 448

Manchester, NH 03105

1.5 Contractor Phone Number 1.6 Account Number: 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

603-518-4000 05-95-90-902010-56%8 | jne 30, 2018 $1,247 354
05|

1.9 Contracting Ofticer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

Eric D. Borrin 603-271-9558

1.J0 Contractor Signature 112 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

w\/_ @m\f\ AL ¥ TV o

. 1%} AT X EQ
1.13 Ack[‘]m\'ledgcmchl: State OI‘N_H____. County of /7’/ Z/ﬂﬁ"’r‘“@l‘

On Ma ¥ 27, ?—U"Q. before the undersigned officer. personally appeared the person identified in block .12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in biock 1,11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

:Q&(\qﬂlﬁﬂ lmygck 1.12.

//ﬁg‘

H })f Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

e Pﬁ%{?o,/ éj @W

N
u\\\\ 3

‘.liHH!/,'/,/
Ay

\
&\“\“

s cal]
:I 3. ne gpal T ﬂ. of Notary orJustice ol the Peace

. %%‘Y&eﬁv D/4m'¢u /40,’”'”'?/2)"?7(’“‘? /[55’5’4-:#

It

Z‘qﬂam@ Signature 1.15 NamL and Title of State A;:UZ\ Signat

,”
Iy | seeln Macee la alomJA] )fﬁ- Yor

1.16  Apprdval by the N.I LVI)epartmem of Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Atlorney General (Form. Substance and Execution)

118 Approxdl by the Governor gid Excculive dmnul

/ Mw%wl\ﬂm \p{\sl)lu

By On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New llampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 {*Stale™), engages
contractor identified in hlock 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform. the work or sale of goods. or
both. identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{"Services k.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary. and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New [lampshire. if
applicable. this Agreement. and all obligations of the partics
hereunder. shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1,18, unless no such approval is required. in which case
the Agreement shall become cffective on the date the
Agrcement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
.14 (~LEffective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date. all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor. and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective. the State shall have no liability 1o the
Contractor. including without limitation. any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including.
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
ol funds, and in no cvent shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the cvent of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds. the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available. if ever. and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination.  The State
shall not be required to transter funds trom any other account
1o the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price. method of payment. and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof. and shall be the only and the complete
compensation 1o the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no lability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

[Document Version 03/153

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitied by N1 RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement 1o the
contrary. and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized. or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND  REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance ol the Services. the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes. laws. regulations.
and orders of federal, state. county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor.
including. but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement Lo utilize auxiliary
aids and services to cnsure that persons with communication
disabilitics. including vision. hearing and speech. can
communicate with. receive information from. and convey
information t¢ the contractor. In addition. the Contractor shall
comply with all applicable copyright laws.

0.2 During the term of this Agreement. the Contractor shall
not discriminate against emplovees  or  applicants  for
cmployment because of race. color. religion. creed. age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affiemative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 I this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
Uinited States. the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions  of  Executive  Order No.  Hi246  (“Equal
Employment  Opportunity™).  as  supplemented by the
regulations of the United $tates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts tor the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules. regulations and orders.
and the covenants. terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary (o perform the Services. The Contraclor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services. and shall be properly
Hicensed and otherwise authorized te do so under all applicable
faws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement. and tor a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other persen. [irm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official. who is materially involved in the
procurement.  administration  or  performance ol this

Page 2 ol' 4 (K
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Agreement, This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement,

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her suceessor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation ol this Agreement,
the Contracting Ofticer’s decision shall be final tor the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ol default hercunder
("livent of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisiactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder: and/or
8.1.3 tailure to perform any other covenant. term or condition
ot this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default. the State
may take any one, or more. or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Fvent
of Default and requiring it to be remedicd within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time. thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice: and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied. terminate this Agreement. effective two
{2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination:

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all pavments o be made under this
Agreement and erdering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe 10
the Contracter any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursuc uny of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement. the word “data”™ shall mean all
intormation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reasen of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports.
files. formulae, surveys, maps. charts, sound recordings, video
recordings.  pictorial  reproductions.  drawings.  analyses.
graphic  representations, compuler  programs.  computer
printouts. notes. letters. memoranda, papers. and documents.
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been reccived from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement., shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason,

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.IH. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law.  Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an carly termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services. the Contractor shall deliver 1o the Contracting
Otlicer. not later than fifteen {13) days afier the date of
lermination. a report {(“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services pertormed. and the contract price carned. o
and including the date of termination. The form. subject
matter, content. and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical 1o those of any Final Report
deseribed in the attached EXTIBIT AL

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor. and is neither an agent nor
an employvee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers. employees. agents or members shall huve authority to
bind the State or receive any benetits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12.  ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign. or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Scrvices shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
consent of the State.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend.
indemnify and holl harmless the State, its officers and
emplovees. from and against any and ail losses suflered by the
State. ity officers and cmplovees. and any and all claims.,
liabilitics or penalties asserted against the State. its officers
and emplovees. by or on behalf of any person. on account of.
based or resulting from. arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the aects or omissions of the
Contructor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State. which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.,

14.1 The Contractor shall. at its sole expense. obtain and
maintain in force. and shall require any subcontractor or
assignce to obtain and maintain in Jorce, the lollowing
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general lability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury. death or property damage. in amounts
of not less than $1.000.000 per occurrence and $2.000.000
aggregate: and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein. in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 hercin shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New  Hampshire by the N Department of
Insurance. and issucd hy insurers licensed in the State of New
Hlampshire.

A
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer (o
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor. no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requircments of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers’ Compensation”).

152 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes (o
undertake pursuant to this Agreement.  Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thercof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by refercnce. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compecnsation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor. or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New lampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by thc State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent FEvent of Default.  No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in wriling signed
by the parlies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment. waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Ixccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applicd against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hercto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposcs only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modity, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached CXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the cvent any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any statc or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemcni. which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the cntire Agreement and
understanding belween the parties, and superscdes all prior
Agreements and understandings relaling hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisiative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public scurces of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Cantractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

1.3  The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

14 The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) requires all grantees
receiving funds through this program to use the following acknowledgement and
disclaimer on all preducts produced by HRSA grant funds:

“This project isiwas supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount (specify grant number, title,
total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental sources).
This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and should
not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any

endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”
2. Scope of Work . \[ ¢ov‘f
2.1 The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to pregnant woma&(\ “\ w\\.&or/

newly parenting families with children up to the age three (3) in Strafferd-etnty- \“n
to improve health and development outcomes for at-risk children through S ,&r\“f’

evidence-based home visiting programs, with priority given to individuais who: }
2.1.1  Are first time mothers. ‘
2.1.2 Have low incomes. |
2.1.3 Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

2.1.4 Have a history of child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

2.1.5 Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment.
2.1.6 Are users of tobacco products in the home.

2.1.7 Have or have had children with low student achievement.

2.1.8 Have children with developmental delays or disabilities.

~
Chitd & Family Services of NH Contractor 1nitia|:@“

Exhibit A — Scope of Services -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.1.9 Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have formerly
served in the armed forces, including such families that have members of
the armed forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the
United States.

22 The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services using a two-step process.
The Contractor shall:

2.2.1 Accept referrals from referral sources that have been screened for
services.

2.2.2 Ulilize the Parent Survey on the first visit/intake to gather comprehensive
information about the family and prioritize clients for services.

2.3 The Contracter shall maintain enrollment at a minimum of 85% capacity, through
monthly reviews of caseloads. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1 Review the capacity report on a monthly basis.
2.3.2 Implement strategies arcund outreach when enroliment rates fall below
85% capacity.

2.4  The Contractor shall ensure program staff establish a relationship with each
family in order to keep families interested and connected over time. The
Contractor shall:

241 Provide flexible service delivery, including late afternoon and early
evening visits for families who have no other option but to meet during
those times.

2.4.2 Foster respectful partnerships between parents and home visitors.

2.4.3 Engage all family members and promote the involvement of all family
members, including fathers/father figures, while explaining the importance
of their role within the family.

2.4.4 Remain consistent with visits and supports, in order to build on existing
strengths while encouraging and coaching families to build on skills,
including but not limited to communication skills that are needed for self-
sufficiency and to advocate for their children.

25  The Contractor shall provide home visiting services that include home visits by
nurses during the prenatal and post-partum. The Contractor shall ensure the
nurse:

2.5.1 Conducts one home visit per trimester in order to focus on specific
pregnancy health issues to ensure the mother's understanding of:

2.5.1.1 Al health and nutritional recommendations.
2.5.1.2 Signs and symptoms of premature labor.

2513 The effects of harmful substances including, but not limited to,
tobacco, alcohol, and drugs, on the unborn child.

2.5.1.4 Risk factors including but not limited to:
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Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.6

2.7

Page 3of 7

25141 History of depressicn.
25142  Symptoms of postparturn depression.
2.5.1.5 Importance of receiving early treatment for depression.

2.5.2 Conducts one (1) nurse visit within three (3) months of the baby's birth in
order to conduct a maternal and newborn health assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.21 The Edinburgh screening for postpartum depression
2522 Assessment of breastfeeding success, as applicable.

2.5.3 Conducts a minimum of two {2) additional visits pricr to the baby turning
one, which will focus on:

2.5.3.1 The maternal-infant attachment.
2.5.3.2 Family planning.

2.5.3.3 Child health and safety issues, including but not limited to, well-
child visits and immunizations.

2.5.4 Administers the Edinburgh screening at regular intervals, which may be
administered by either the nurse or home visitor staff.

2541 Prenatal visit.
2.5.4.2 Within three (3) months postpartum,

2543 Follow up within two (2) weeks from the date of receiving
positive results.

The Contractor shall collaborate with families to ensure participation based on
parent availability. The Contractor shail:

261 Use text messaging to communicate the scheduling of visits, as
appropriate and preferred by the family.

2.6.2 Reach out to families on a weekly basis using hand written notes at the
family home to respectfully reach out to families who may not be home at
the scheduled visit time.

2.6.3 Explain the HFA level system to families at enrollment, emphasizing the
first six (6) months of involvement with a family, after a baby's birth, is
critical for:

2.6.3.1 Parent-infant relationship development.
2.6.3.2 Newborn care and safety.
2.6.3.3 Adjustment to parenthood.

Provide home visiting services in accordance with HFA Best Practice Standards.
The Contractor shall:

2.7.1 Implement Creative Outreach to reach out te families for ninety (90) days
when necessary as described in the HFA Model.

7
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Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.8

2.9

210

2.7.2

273

274

275
276

277

278

2.7.9

Create Family Goal Plans with the family that show family-identified
measurable goals broken down into small steps.

Work to attain HFA Accreditation. The Contractor shall:

2.7.3.1 Complete Step 2 — The Site Visit in the Accreditation process by
January 1, 2016 and submit a copy of the Accreditation Site Visit
Report (SVR) to MCH.

2.7.3.2 Complete Step 3 — Response Period in the Accreditation
process within the time period indicated in the Accreditation SVR
and submit a copy of final approval by HFA to MCH.

Implement, at minimum, one of the following curricula for home visits:

2.7.41 Parents as Teachers (PAT) as an annually trained approved
user.

2.7.4.2 Growing Great Kids (GGK) with certification training.
Develop creative outreach efforts to engage families to receive services.

Provide services that support the parent, parent-child interaction and child
development.

Coordinate with other local service providers including health care
providers, social workers and early interventionists.

Collaborate with other early childhood serving agencies inciuding those
that provide home visiting and family support services.

Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the Healthy Families America Model (HFA) are addressed
in agency policies.

The Contractor shall provide case management services, which shall include, but
is not limited to:

281

28.2
2.8.3
2.84

Entering participant health data into the Home Visiting Data System
(ETO).

Documenting case notes for all home visits.
Making referrals to other agencies, as appropriate.

Following up on referrals to other agencies.

The Contractor shall develop a broad-based advisory group with a variety of
stakeholders to collect input that will assist with the planning, implementation and
assessment of sit-related activities.

The Contractor shall deveiop a release of information authorization form for
Department approval. The Contractor shalf:

2.10.1 Ensure the Department-approved release of information authorization

form is properly executed by program participants and maintained in the
client’s case file.

.
-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.10.2 Maintain the release of infarmation authorization form in the client file in
accordance with federal regulations and state laws.

‘ 2.11  The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to collect participant and
program data and other pertinent information used for the purpose of program
evaluation. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1 Utilize staff and family surveys to solicit feedback on programs and
services offered.

2.11.2 Review program files on a quarterly basis to determine whether each
family is receiving the appropriate level of services, in accordance with
the HFA model.

2.11.3 Evaluate the progress of program participant, performance of programs
and services provided on a quarterly basis.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall hire staff in accordance with the HFA Best Practice
Standards. The Contractor shall providing staff training that includes, but is not
limited to:

3.1.1 Cultural Competency

3.1.2 Reporting Child Abuse

3.1.3 Home Safety

3.1.4 Substance Abuse

3.1.5 Managing Crisis Situations
3.1.6 Domestic Vioclence

3.1.7 Responding to Mental Health
3.1.8 Drug-exposed infants

3.1.9 Community services availability

3.2 The Contractor shall ensure staff receive supervision in accordance with the
requirements of the HFA Best Practice Standards, including, but not limited to:

3.2.1 Weekly individual supervision that includes, but is not limited to,
discussions that reflect brainstorming to overcome barriers to:

3.2.1.1 Completing home visits.
3.2.1.2 Referrals.
3.2.2 Bi-weekly team meetings for support, reflection and case review.

33 The Contractor shall ensure direct service staff supervisors and program
managers meet the minimum qualifications outlined in the HFA Best Practice
Standards.

/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A
Scope of Services

34  The Contractor shall ensure Registered Nurses (RN's) have a minimum of two
(2) years of maternal and child health nursing experience and are currently
licensed to practice in accordance with RSA 326-B.

3.5 The Contractor shall ensure staff attend meetings and trainings as required by
the Division of Public Health Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, which
shall include but not be limited to:

3.5.1 Maternal Child Health (MCH) Agency Directors’ Meetings.
3.5.2 MCH Home Visiting Meetings.
3.5.3 MIECHV Staff Training.
3.54 MCH Home visiting CQI coaching calls.
4, Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall provide a monthly caseload analysis report for each
individual staff member who provides home visits.

4.2 The Contractor shali complete and submit data reports using form Exhibit A-1, on
a quarterly basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the unmet
targets for the performance measures outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance
Measures.

4.3 The Contractor shall provide a narrative report that includes, but is not limited to:
4 3.1 Highlights of program activities conducted.

4.3.2 Goals for the following quarter.
4.3.3 Goals met for the previous quarter,
4.4 The Contractor shall complete and submit Exhibit A-1, Reports on an annual

basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the performance measures
outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance Measures along with a narrative that
includes, but is not limited to:

4.4 1 Information regarding accomplishments and challenges for the program.
4.4.2 Systemic barriers.
4.4 .3 Action plans to address barriers.

4.4.4 Family satisfaction survey resuits that demonstrate a minimum of eighty
(80) percent rating of consumer satisfaction each year.

4.5 The Contractor shall complete three (3) quarterly reports and one (1) annual report

as described in Section 4, Reporting, according to the following schedule:

451 AQuarter 1, July — September DUE 10/15/2016
4.5.2 Quarter 2, October — December DUE 1/15/2017

4.5.3 Quarter 3, January — March DUE 4/15/2017

454 Quarter 4, April — June DUE 7/15/2017

455 Annual, July — June DUE 7/30/2017 /< _
Child & Family Services of NH Contractor Initials; 2™

Page 6 of 7

Exhibit A — Scope of Services Date:S(}ﬂ [{ h




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A
Scope of Services
5. Deliverables
5.1 The Contractor shall complete and submit the Inputs, Activities, and Evaluation sections

of Exhibit A-1 within thirty (30} days from the contract effective date.

52  The contractor shall maintain at least 85% of HFA defined capacity based on the
number of Home visitors listed in the staffing plan.

53 The Contractor shall complete a minimum of three (3) nurse visits after a baby's
birth prior to the baby's first (1*) birthday

5.4 The Contractor shall ensure each pregnant program participant receives a
minimum of cne (1) nurse visit per trimester.

5.5 The Ceontractor shall submit the release of information authorization form in
Section 2.10 to the Department for approval within ten (10) business days from
the contract effective date.

56 The Contractor shall attend 100% of meetings, as described in Section 3.5 or
submit an acticn plan describing the reason for absence and a plan to obtain the
information/materials presented.

s
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit B
Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Depariment access to supporting funding for this

project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.505 (https://www cfda.gov), U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form

P37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contracter pursuant to
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for allowable costs, as
detailed in Exhibits B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, B-5 and B-6.

Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10™) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior manth along with any manthly and/or quarterly reparts due in accordance with
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

NH Cepartment of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Financial Administrator

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

E-mail: dphscontractbilling@dhhs.state.nh.us

Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days after the

Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result
in nonpayment.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
the adjustment of the amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related
items, and amendments of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of
both parties and do not required additional approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Coentractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and decumentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressiy understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed tc obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contracter has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Stafistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligikility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circutar A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nan
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Cffice {GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their cfficial duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

—
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11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsocever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposai
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Heailth and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.qg., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, videc, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zening codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEQOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500.000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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17.

18.

19.
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EECP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEQP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEQP, Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://iwww .ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persens with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLFBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.8.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.5.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph {c}, in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, deiegated functions and
respansibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contracter Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPGSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract,

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

—
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or maodify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor natice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reasan, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide engoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to ctients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governar and Executive Council.

—
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.8.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees tc have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Warkplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}. The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
216881-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, suh-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, passession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
warkplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for viclation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph {a},

1.4, Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

"
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any emplayee who is so cenvicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1373, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7, Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6,

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
cannection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each |location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:UHiLD AND ““p‘wl? XS Qv
q&\% r\qﬂm\/‘
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Pregrams (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title I\V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title |V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer ar employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
maodification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractar).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid ta any person for
influencing ar attempting to influence an officer or emplayee of any agency, a Member of Cangress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or coaperative agreement {(and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accardingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure.

Contractor Name: C\N\ld M& ?‘i\j\hb\\ ") &J\AL% "\ o
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12543 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Respaonsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification ar explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. [f it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
wham this propasal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has became erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

noo HH "o

5. The terms "covered transaction,” “"debarred,” “suspended,” "ineligible,”" "lower tier covered
transaction,” "participant,” "person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,” "proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter intc any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, uniess authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for iower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transactian, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhihit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspensicn Contracter Initials i?é! i
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if 2 participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with abtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{Federal, State or local) with commission of any cf the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I\{b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective paricipant shall attach an explanation to this propesal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the praspective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transacticns.

Contractor Name:C\A;\ld a’\pd gi\p\)u\h SU\'\LQA ﬂ N
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Oppaortunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.5.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.5.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.5.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommaodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 CF.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Oppaortunity, Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principtes and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighberhood organizations;

-28 CF.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Qrganizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.5.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G ’
Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, colar, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

ntractor Name: (/\f\/\\d Arn J'CKAM\\'] &SU\/‘@\ D N)ig

S/l ’M\/V

Date Name: ‘ﬁ;’hl \p KNl Nj ‘)\96}\)0
Title: —
2y faad ¥ 0

A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacca Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal pragrams either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and partions of facilities used far inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil menetary penalty of up to
31000 per day and/or the impositicn of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fallowing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

ntractor Name: C/\M\L)\Md? QV\/'\A/V\ \L/Yﬁﬂﬂ N U o

Qgﬂ AW\AW
Date Name: \,ﬁ\

Na \ FWNefe L A7 WUM
itle:
R v flant & -0

S/ (y

—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

{1 Definitions.
a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “"Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Heaith Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually |dentifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j.  "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Muman Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate fram or on behalf of Covered Entity. %

Contractor Initials

<
3/2014 Exhibit ) \
Health insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

. "Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

o To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHl to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. 1f Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(3)

312014

Associate shal! refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Assaciate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, inciuding
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials iﬁ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement,

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
reguirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writien request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

|
f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,

1. Within ten (10} business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busines

I5 i&:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

4)

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164,506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed tc in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PH! provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

—
Exhibit | Contractor Initials Q |

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement l
Page 5 of 6 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e, Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {(P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

INWITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

ook () Hooni> " f\m\fﬁméultﬁmv”\&/\n% QM’

Sigg{ature of Auttﬁfiz,ed Repredentative ignatufe of Authorized Representative
b — —
M\ AP ARET AT TOUD
Name of A thorized Rep esentative Name“of Authorized Representative
A‘ﬂf)nﬁ lbffefﬂe/ ,\7% MAAT s Wy
Title of Althorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
v/v/se sir[lo
Date r7 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over |
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. |
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the f
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)Y must report the following information for any |
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
|
\

SN A LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Caontractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees {o comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 {(Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above tc the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable pravisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: C\/\/\\d C\,\,\(f %\/\J\/‘U\ "\SK(\!\&" (7 ‘\DJf

</ y

A
Date | Name: Gy Q‘P(\\M.RIN “\QM

Title: P"\.ﬁ,'&-d_l/»\_T s M

—
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 00\ ’§§O - §ﬁ‘0 S

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

34 NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NG YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foilowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business ar
arganization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Cantractor Initials @'{

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA} Compliance (,lq
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State of Netw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed September 235, 1914. I further certify that it is in
good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 20" day of May A.D. 2016

2y Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




I, __WILLIAM CONRAD , do hereby certify that
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NH
{Agency Name)

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __ 1/28/2014
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

___BORJAALVAREZ DE TOLEDC __ is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEOQO
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in fult force and effect as of

the)/Alay of ZM% !;6{40,
2’/—’“

{Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of&lﬁuﬁwg@« L7%

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this é Z)L/) day of -/L'7'1 , 20 Z( o

it b (opece

N({yry Public/Justice of the Peace)

By //) Jliam Om D

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

|
|
‘ (NOTARY SEAL) W \““‘l’ﬂ'g””
| S -
| | Q Y .--"'--.,/j /"’
‘ 3 / (s / / 6) S ?&?‘; SNE G %
Commission Expires: / : oMM ;E
=l EXPIRES :=
= i MARCH 8, D=
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations = ‘%)1’ 2018 \q‘;-u = July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management 3 o HAMP“"&‘:O §
Certificate of Vote Without Seal Z, 0,. ‘\§'




DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

Y e
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 4/11/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVEDR, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT Linda Dacey, CIC
FIAI/Croas Insurance Pm".‘,g”,'fo By (603)669-3218 (FNAé Noj; (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street ML 5. ldaceylcrossagency . com
INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A :Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED INSURER B:AIG Specialty Insurance Co.
Child & Family Services of New Hampshire INSURER ¢ :Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of |31191
Po Box 448 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Manchester NH 03105 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:15-16 All w/16-17WC & F/F REVISION NUMBER.:
THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
TNSR ADDL|SUBR| -
|.1§n TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER DY 1Y mﬁﬁxﬁ, LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED o
A CLAIMS-MADE IEI QCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) 3 100,090
| X | Ligquor Liability PHPK1356559 7/1/2015 | 7/1/2016 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 0
] PERSOMAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poLicy D S D LOC ; PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
| oTHER: h
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY C[Eg"';ggfj'g'l?,tf'”GLE uMmm - Ty 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person} | $
le_ng\NED iﬁ#ggULED PHPK1 356559 7/1/201% 7/1/2016 | BODILY INJURY (Per accidert) | $
% NON-OWNED I"PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident}
Madical payments 3 5,000
UMBRELLALIAB | X | gecur EAGH OGCURRENGE $ 4,000,000
ALX EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3 4,000,000
DED | X I RETENTION 10,000 PHUBS04723 /172015 7/1/2016 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION 033571192 x | BER QTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATWTE ‘ ‘ ER —
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E NIA {3a.) WH E.L EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
B |(Mandatory in NH} Rll officers included 4/4/2016 | 4/4/2017 |EL DISEASE-EAEMPLOYEE S 500,000
'[’,gg%gf;%,’g‘g lg}g 'OPERATIONS beiow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 500,000
C |Fidelity & Forgery 105912196 4/1/2016 | 4/1/2017 | Limit $200,000
A | Professional Liability PHPK1356559 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 | Aggregate: $2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
(603}271-5139

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

The State of New Hampshire
. LICY PROVISIONS.
Department of Health and Human Services ACCORDANGE WITH THE PO
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121 River Front Drive
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Independent Auditors' Report

Additienal Offices:

To the Board of Trustees Nashua, NH

Child and Fami j i Andover, MA
! amily Services of New Hampshire ot MA

Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Child and
Family Services of New Hampshire, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2015, and the related consolidated statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these con-
solidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial state-
ments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoli-
dated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In-making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not




for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signifi-

cant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

- Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire as of December 31, 2015, and the changes in net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Child and Family Services of New Hampshire's 2014
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated March 31, 2015. In our opinion, the sum-
marized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The Consclidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the con-
solidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
staternents themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required bj/ Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated March 23, 2016 on our consideration of Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compli-
ance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Meloson Heotd

. March 23, 2016
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Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2014)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Restricted contributions
Realized (gain) loss on investments
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Change in beneficial interest in trust
Change in interest rate swap
(Gain) loss on sale of asset
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Provided By (Used By) Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Restricted contributions
Cash advance on line of credit
Payment on line of credit
Payment of long term debt
Payment on annuity

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest Paid

2015

$ (1,089,195)

306,607
(31,705)
(528,934)
1,575,633
129,755
(19,257)

(21,245)
(2,080)
63,268
84,156

467,003

(2,356,532)
2,690,808

" (456,845)
(122,571)

31,705

(240,000)

(208,285)
136,137

830,520

PR Ll At Ly

$_ 1,026,657

$_ 299743

2014

$  (451,480)

352,689
(105,399)
(51,820)
642,325
7,022
388,999
(269,892)

185,183
(26,159)
(64,335)
(150,591)
60,175

516,717

(2,599,937)
2,077,128
731,894

{(140,951)
68,134

105,398
5,850,785
(5,850,785)
(128,983)

(362)

(23.947)
560,804

328,616

$__ 890520

$_ 339,881

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

' Notes to Conso!idate.d Financial Statements

For the Year Encfed December 31, 2015

1. Description of Organization

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization, founded in 1850, that currently aids more than 20,000 individu-
als, statewide, through an array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be
grouped into four basic categories:

1. Early Childhood — Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting,
strengthen families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy
development of children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disad-
vantage received critical services to ensure a good beginning and to opti-
mize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs focused on
early childhood include:

Early Support and Services — Early Support and Services provides
family-centered support and therapies to infants and toddiers who

have developmental disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental
delays. Services work to optimize baby’s cognitive, physical, emotional
and social development, and chance for success. Services are provided
in the child’s natural environment (home, daycare, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services — A number of different prevention programs
are offered in the home during those critical early years of a child’s
life. A spectrum of services includes support to new mothers and
those struggling to parent; services for children with chronic health
conditions; prenatal services for babies being born at a disadvantage
into low-income families; and programs to encourage positive early
parent/child relationships and promote optimal early childhood devel-
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, develop-
mental specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and
home visitors.

Adoption — A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has
been forming families through adoption since 1914. The Organization’s
adoption professionals provide home studies and adoption services for
families looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to birth-
parents who are considering the adoption option.

8




2. Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal
government, and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services
for children, adolescents and young adults. Programs are delivered in the
home, schools, or community, and include mental health counseling and
substance abuse treatment, as well as a complex system of family stabili-
zation and preservation programs, child protection services, and services
for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster care — The Organization works with the State of New
Hampshire in placing children who've been rescued from dangerous
home environments, into safe, stable, loving homes. The Organization
recruits and supports foster families and works to facilitate perma-
nency for each child.

Home Based Services — The Organization has a number of programs
provided in the family home that are designed to help families who are
struggling through daily life - where children are at risk. Services work
to thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve family
functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and
resources they need to provide for their children and become self-
sufficient. '

3. Runaway and Homeless Youth Services
The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and home-
less youth in Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services
features outreach to at-risk youth that includes survival aid on the streets
and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-in center, as well as crisis inter-
vention, educational and vocational advocacy, housing, and case manage-
ment. The Organization also provides behavioral health and substance use
counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systems,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire's
homeless youth.

4. Senior Care and Independent Living
The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or dis-
ability to live at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life.
Under the title of Home Care, services are delivered by homemakers, com-
panions, personal care service providers, and LNAs. The Organization’s
caregivers go to client homes to help with everything from cooking and
cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders, mobility, travel to
appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and communication with
family members. '




2,

Additionally, the Organization runs two unique programs:

-Camp Spaulding — Since 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers
from all types of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident
camp experience. In 2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the
YMCA of Greater Nashua whereby the Organization will own the camp
and the YMCA will handie daily operations and summer programming.
This collaboration will combine a 84 year camp history, and exceptional
facility, strong community support, and the expertise of two premier New
Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children’s Lobby — Established in 1971, the New
Hampshire Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Child and Family
Services. The program’s mission is to improve the lives of children and
families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This com-
bination of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the
Organization to serve the best interest of New Hampshire children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Organization prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance |
with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated in the United States
of America (GAAP) for nonprofit organizations. The significant accounting and
reporting policies used by the Organization are described subsequently to
enhance the usefulness and understandability of the consolidated financial
statements.

Net Assets

The consolidated financial statements report net assets and changes in net
assets in three classes that are based upon the existence or absence of
restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets are resources availabie to support operations.

The only limits on the use of unrestricted net assets are the broad limits
resulting from the nature of the Organization, the environment in which i
operates, the purposes specified in its organizing documents and its appli-
cation for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting from contractual
agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course
of its operations. )

Temporarily Restricted Nef Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by
donors for use for a particular purpose or in a particular future period.
The Organization's unspent contributions are classified in this net asset

10




class if the donor limited their use, as are the unspent appreciation of its
donor-restricted endowment funds.

When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in
the manner specified by the donor or by the passage of time, the expira-
tion of the restriction is reported in the consolidated financial statements
by reclassifying the net assets from temporarily restricted to unrestricted
net assets. '

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are resources whose use by the Organ-
ization is fimited by donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by being
used in accordance with a donor's restriction hor by the passage of time.
The portion of the Organization’s donor-restricted funds that must be
maintained in perpetuity are classified in this net asset class, as is the
Organization’s beneficial interest in perpetual charitable trusts. Uniess
restricted by the donor, income earned on permanently restricted net
assets is expendable to support operations, subject to certain restrictions.

All revenues and net gains are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
in the Statement of Activities unless the use of the related resources is subject
to temporary or permanent donor restrictions. All expenses and net losses,
other than losses on endowment investments, are reported as decreases in
unrestricted net assets. Net losses on endowment investments reduce tempo-
rarily restricted net assets to the extent that temporarily restricted net gains
from prior years are unspent and classified there; remaining losses are clas-
sified as decreases in unrestricted net assets. If an endowment fund has no
net gains from prior years, such as when a fund is newly established, net
losses are classified as decreases in unrestricted net assets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the
accounts of Child and Family Services of New Hampshire and Child and
Family Realty Corporation, a commonly controlled organization. All inter-
organization transactions have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short term, interest bearing, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, unless the investments are

held for meeting donor restrictions. Temporarily restricted cash investments
held within investment portfolios are excluded from cash equivalents.

Investments

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowments. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the

11




endowment to the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as
adjusted for additions to or deductions from those accounts.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue

Accounts receivable is recognized when qualifying costs are incurred for
cost reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided
for performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to
independent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform.
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in
the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grants or reductions
of future grant awards. Based on prior experience, the Organization's man-
agement believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization's management and
adjusted as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt
expense). In determining the amount required in the allowance account for
the year ended December 31, 2015, management has taken into account a
variety of factors.

Beneficial Interest

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The bene-
ficial interest in the trust is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the
fair value of the underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from the trust
assets are restricted to use and are reported as increases in temporarily
restricted net assets until expended in accordance with restrictions. The value
of the beneficial interest in the trust is adjusted annually for the change in its
estimated fair value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in
permanently restricted net assets because the trust assets will never be
distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is reported at cost, if purchased, and at fair value

at the date of donation, if donated. Any such donations are reported as unre-
stricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset for a spe-
cific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and

contributions of cash that. must be used to acquire property and equipment,
are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how

long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expi-
rations of donor restrictions over the useful life of the asset. The Organization

|
| :
individual endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each.
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reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that
time.

Property and equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $1,000 or more and a
useful life when acquired of more than one year. Repairs and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 — 50 years

Furniture, fixtures, and 5—10 years
equipment

Vehicles 5 years
Software 5 years

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairment is present. No
impaimment losses were recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the current period.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized when
received. All contributions are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future periods or for
specific purposes are reported as increases in either temporarily restricted or

" permanently restricted net assets, consistent with the nature of the restriction.

Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an implied
restriction to be used in the year the payment is due, and therefore are reported
as temporarily restricted until the payment is due unless the contribution is
clearly intended to support activities of the current fiscal year or is received with
permanent restrictions. Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not
recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which
they depend are substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Conftributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than
cash. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its
estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset
and its estimated useful life meets the Organization’s capitalization policy.
Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the
estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the
use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional prom-
ise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term of
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use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as
expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services to the Organization’s program operations and in its fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed
services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinaricial assets or

(b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by contribution,
require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those
skills.

Expense Recognition and Allocation

The cost of providing the Organization’s programs and other activities is
summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities
and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. Expenses that can be
identified with a specific program or support service are charged directly to
that program or support service. Costs common to multiple functions have
been allocated among the various functions benefited.

Management and general expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall sup-
port and direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
On an ongoing basis, the Organization’s management evaluates the esti-
mates and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other
factors and circumstances. The Organization’s management believes that the
estimates and assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances; however,
the actual results couid differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire is exempt from federal income
tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
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an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in
Section 501(c)(25).

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken

or expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s consolidated financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after filing. :

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements

‘The Organization reports its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy, estab-
lished by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, requires that entities
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs used to measure

fair value are as follows:

e [Level 1. Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
- markets to which the Organization has access at the measurement
date.

» Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs include: '

— quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

—— quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are
not active; :

— observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or .
liability (for example, interest rates and yield curves); and
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— inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable
market data by correlation or by other means.

» Level 3. Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable
inputs should be used to measure the fair value to the extent that
observable inputs are not available.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. How-
ever, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities that
the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example, uncondi-
tional promises {o give and in-kind contributions). :

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization’s consolldated
financial statements are:

o [nitial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional promises to give.

» Recurring measurement of endowment investments (Note 5).
» Recurring measurement of beneficial interests in trusts (Note 6).
» Recurring measurement of bonds payable (Note 9).

. » Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 10).

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institutions
was $1,026,657 at December 31, 2015. The difference between the carrying
amount and the bank balance represents reconciling items such as deposits
in transit and outstanding checks, which have not been processed by the
bank at December 31, 2015. The bank balance is categorized as follows:

Insured by FDIC $ 354,890
Uninsured and uncollateralized 851,176
Total Bank Balance $ 1,206,066
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Accounts Receivable

Receivables consisted of the following at December 31:

2015 2014
Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net
Grants receivabie § 578,576 § (5,855) % 572,721 $ 539,091 $ (4727) § 534364
Fees for service 85,423 - 89,423 107,813 (1,428) 106,385
Travel advances - - - 150 - 150

$ 667,999 § (5855 $_662144 $ 647054 §_(6155) ¥_ 640,899

Investments

Investments at fair vaiue consist of mutual funds totaling $15,530,019 at
December 31, 2015.

Under the terms of the Organization’s line of credit agreement (Note 8), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any
other debt.

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, expenses relating to
investment revenues, including management fees, amounted to $66,675 and
$91,915, respectively, and have been netted against investment revenues in
the accompanying Statements of Activities.

The Organization’s policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of
Trustees is 5% of the average fair market value of all investments over the
previous twelve quarters.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organ-
ization is required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels,
which are based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization’s valuation techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of
inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
identical investments as of the December 31, 2015. Level 2 is for investments
measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices
for the identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at
net asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for invest-
ments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations
for which there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.
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‘The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of

the last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at
that date.

6.- Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered
by the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds
is to provide assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital
improvements to the camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions
from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received,
was $779,238 and $833,116, respectively. The Organization received
$31,674 and $24,247 from the funds in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder
trusts. The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the
trusts. The fair value of these beneficial interests is determined by applying
the Organization's percentage interest to the fair value of the trust assets as
reported by the trustee. -

Percentage
Trust Interest 2015 2014
Greenleaf 100% $ 377,884 3§ 405,687
Spaulding 100% 324,270 351,865
Cogswell 50% 254706 ~ 275185
Total $ 956,860 $_1 ,032,737

In 2015 and 2014, income distributed by these trusts was $15,926 and
$18,881, respectively. Beneficial interest in funds held by others is reported
at its fair value, which is estimated as the present value of expected future
cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in Note 2, the valuation tech-
nique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no -
observable market transactions. Changes in the fair value of assets meas-
ured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs
are comprised of the following:
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7.

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 1,872,875
- Change in value of beneficial interest (7.022)

Balance at December 31, 2014 1,865,853
Change in value of beneficial interest {(129,755)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 1,736,098

Property. Equipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below: .

2015 2014

Land and land improvements $ 1,114,949 - § 1,114,949
Buildings and improvements 7,821,572 7,413,804
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 697,565 662,586
Vehicles 88,391 97,022
Software 166,592 166,590

Subtotal 9,889,069 9,454,951

Less: accumulated depreciation (3,363,994) (3,080,114)

Total $ 6,525075 $ 6,374,837

Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a
bank. The line of credit expired on June 30, 2015, and was extended through
June 30, 2016. The line carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street
Journal prime rate (3.5% at December 31, 2015), adjusted at each change in
the index. At December 31, 2015, the balance on this line of credit was $0.

’

Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority
(the "Authority”) sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family
Services Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the
Organization to refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain
improvements to the Organization's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were
issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to
issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap
agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counter-
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated
with the Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the
Organization to pay the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange,
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the Counterparty will pay the Organization a variable rate on the notional
amount based on the 67% of one month LIBOR. Counterparty payments to
the Organization were intended to offset Organization payments 6f variable
rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit worthiness and market
variability can impact the variable rates received and paid by the Organiza-
tion, with the potential of increasing Organization interest payments. As a
result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2015 and 2014 is added to inter-
est expense in the statement of functional expense. The bonds mature in
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any,

in the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For
example, during the bond's 30-year holding period, the annually calculated
value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest rates increase above
those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and as an unrealized
gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indic-
ative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is below
market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The
swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli-
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect
on the date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that
the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market
expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The annual
accounting adjustments of value changes in the swap transaction are non-
cash recognition requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the end
of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Organi-
zation recorded the swap liability position of $1,306,823 and $1,326,080,
respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating
of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a
temporary conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a
bank purchase mode under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement
agreement. Since it became evident that the credit markets would not soon
return to normalcy, the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007
Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase mode. This new bank
purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series 2007 Bonds bear
interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of the,
adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank pur-
chase mode commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014
however, the expiration date was extended by the Counterparty and the
Organization had the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode. The
Series 2007 Bond documents require the Organization to comply with certain
financial covenants. As of December 31, 2015, the Organization was in com-
pliance with these covenants. ' K
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10.

1.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
bonds payabie:

Year Amount
2016 $ 125,000
2017 135,000
2018 140,000
2019 140,000
2020 150,000
Thereafter 3,915,005
$ 4,605,005

Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
June 7, 2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Dover, New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
May 22, 2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire.

Endowment Funds:

The Organization’s endowment consists of various individual funds estab-
lished for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endow-
ments. As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets
associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the,
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. '

Board-designated Investments

As of December 31, 2015, the Board of Trustees had designated $13,728,041
of unrestricted net assets as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization. Since that amount resulted from an internal designation
and is not donor-restricted, it is classified and reported as unrestricted net
assets.




Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation
of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted
endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result
of this inferpretation, the Organization classifies as permanently restricted net
assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment,

(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and

(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is
added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment
fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for
expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Organiza-
tion considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or
accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preserva-
tion of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment
funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and

- deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of

mvestments (6) other resources of the Orgamzatlon and (7) the Organiza-
tion’s investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accord-
ance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, deficiencies of this
nature are required to be restored from either temporarily restricted or unre-
stricted net assets, depending on donor stipulations. These deficiencies result
from unfavorable market fluctuations that occur causing the original donor
restricted contribution, plus accumulated investment eamings that, in accord-
ance with donor stipulations, are required to be added to the original contri-
bution, to fall below the accumulated balances. Donor stipulations for perma-
nently restricted-income restricted funds require the reclassification of realized
and unrealized eamings to temporarily restricted net assets. Based on donor
stipulations, there are no temporarily or permanently restricted funds in deficit.

_ Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a
total return (income plus capital change) necessary fo preserve and enhance
the principai of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source
of support for current operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund
in support of current operations is expected to remain a constant percentage
of the total fund, adjusted for new gifts to the fund. :
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In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversifica-
tion is sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and
inflation rates are cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved
through investment styles. Asset allocation parameters have been developed
for various funds within the structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity
needs, and time horizon for intended use.

. Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be
‘computed on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction
costs. Total return is defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and

unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy
The Organization's spending policy is 5% of the average total endowment
value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This

includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment investments as of December 31,
2015 is as follows:

Total Net
Temporarily Permanently  Endowment

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assetls
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $ 416,360 § 1,385618 § 1,801,978
Board-designated endowment funds 13,728,041 - - 13,_728,041
Total funds $ 13728041 $ 418,360 $ 1385618 % 15,530,019

‘Changes in endowment net assets as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Total Net
Temporarfy  Permanently Endowment
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets
Endowment net assets, beginning of year § 14,963,027 § 594,052 § 1,353,813 3§ 16,910,092
Contributions 370,535 - 31,705 402,240
Investment income (866,823} - - (866,823)
. Net assets released from restriction {738.698) (177,692 - (916,390

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 13,728041 § 416,360 § 1,385618 § 15,530,018
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12. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at December 31 were comprised of the

following:
2015 2014
Program restrictions: .
Camp . .9 59,009 § 48,702
Child abuse prevention 251,015 96,079
Early Intervention : 52,130 -
- Family counseling 33,851 19,584
Homecare 96,304 61,299
Teen and youth 204,344 148,587
Training 9,210 -
Subtotal 705,963 374,261
Capital campaign restrictions:
Camp Pavillion 273,929 282,178
Camp Spatulding ‘ 348,776 398,552 |
Renovated teen center 248,611 - i
Teen center - 82,005 |
Union Street 217,802 224,608
Subtotal 1,089,118 987,343
Cumulative appreciation on permanently
restricted net assets 416,360 594,052
Total $ 2,211,441 $ 1,955,856

13. Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets ére released from restrictions by incuiring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose, or by the passage of time.

14. Defined Confribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Planis a

defined contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make

elective participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution

is permitted by employees up to limits imposed by the [nternal Revenue Code

and other limitations specified in the Plan. There were no contributions made .
to the plan by the Organization for the years-ended December 31, 2015 and |
2014, respectively.
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15.

-+ lease agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2018.

16.

Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-canceilable

The Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis.
Rent expense under these agreemenis totaled $150,685 and $120,966 for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments on the above ileases are as
follows:

Year Amount
2016 $ 82,707
2017 16,217
2018 3,621

Total . $ 102,545

Concentrations of Risk

17.

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the
State of New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability fo generate
resources via grants is dependent upon the economic health of that area
and of the State of New Hampshire. An economic downturn could cause a
decrease in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the
Organization's services.

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment
securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and
credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of

_investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could

materially affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. :

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 23, 2016, which is
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Events occurring after that date have not been evaluated to determine
whether a change in the consolidated financial statements would be required.
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‘ 603-518-4000
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Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03105/ 603-518-4300
alvarezdetoledob@cfsnh.org

Professional Profile

« Aseasoned leader with more than 15 years of senior level non-profit management experience. .

« Strong business acumen with emphasis on developing processes to ensure the alignment of
strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development.

« Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervision
and conflict resolution. '

Professional Experience

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH December 2013- Present

~ President and CEQ

» Responsible for program pianning and development, insuring that CFS meets the community needs.

« Advance the public profile of CFS by developing innovative approaches and buiiding preductive
relationships with government, regional and national constituencies. -

» Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards

» Respansible for all aspects of financial planning, sustainability and oversight of CFS' assets

« .Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implement all fundraising
activities, including cultivation and solicitation of key individuals, foundations and corporations

Riverside Community Care . :
Dedham, MA 2009- 2013

~ Division Director, Child and Family Services :
« Responsible for strategic vision, planning and implementation of the programmafic, operational and
financial sustainability of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.
» In partnership with The Guidance Center, Inc.'s hoard of directors, played leadership role in
" successfully merging with Riverside Community Care, through a process that involved strategic
| planning, analysis and selection of a viable partner.
' « Provide supervision to managers using a strength based approach and a collaborative coaching
model to leadership development .

The Guidance Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998 - 2008

« Hired inttially as Director of an intensive home-based family program and through successive
promotions became responsible for all operations in the organization. -
« Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new
initiatives.
» Developed strategic relationships with state and local funders, and partnered with community
* agencies to support the healthy growth of children and families.

|
|
~ Chief Operating Officer 2007 - 2009

Private Practice in Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation

Madrid, Spain : 1992 - 1998




Universidad Pontificia de Comillas
Madrid, Spain 1991 - 1998

~Adfunct Faculty

» Taught graduate level courses in. Family and Couples Therapy program

s Practicum program supervisor: Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live -
supervision in the treatment of multi-problem families.

Centro Médico-Psicopedagégico ' ‘
Madrid, Spain , 1994 - 1997

~Clinical Coordinator/Director of Training.
* Member of a muli-disciplinary team that provided assessment and treatment to families victims of
terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. -

ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment), )
Madrid, Spain 1991- 1994

~ Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program

» Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.

~ Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program

» Worked as a family therapist in the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1989 - 1991

~ Senior Family Therapist, Home Based Family Treatment Program.
Education

Graduate Certificate of Business

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.

Master’'s Degree in Education

Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1988.
B.A. in Clinical Psychology

Universidad Pontificia de Comillas, Madrid, Spain. 1888

Publications

2009 Ayers,S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Community Based Mental Health with Children and Families. In A.
R. Roberts (Ed.) , Social Worker's Desk Reference (2™ ed.),New York: Oxford University Press, 2008

2006 Topical Discussion: Advancmg Community-Based Clinical Practice and Research: Leaming in the
Field. Presented at the 18™ Annual Research Conference: A System of Care for Children’s Mental
Health: Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, FL.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Siegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Avers, S.; Mikula, J. How to be little and sﬂ!f think
big: Creatlng a grass roofs evidence based sysfem of care. Symposium presented at the 14"
Annual Research Conference in Children’s Mental Health, Research and Training Center for
Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, FL.

2006 Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecology of intensive commumty based intervention. In
Lightburn, A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Clinical Practice. Oxford University
Press, 20086, England

2001 Lyman D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk facfors and treatment outcomes in a stmteglc
intensive famrly program. In Newman, .C, C. Liberton, K. Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expandlng the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research
and Training Center for Children’s Mental Health, University of South Florida, Tampa, FL.

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals in Spain

Languages

Fluent in Spanish, French and [talian.




Maria Gagnon, MSW
464 Chestnut Street m Manchester, NE 03105 m (603) 518-4362 m gagnonm@cisnh.org

SKILLS SUMMARY .

~Project Management ~Non-Profit Operations . ~Strategic Planning
~Project Evaluation. _ ~Budget Development ~Staff Recruitment
~Data to Manage ~Local/Federal Grant Writing ~Staff supervision
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

© Child and Family Services — Manchester, New Hampshire (2013 to present)
Senjor Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
e Work with management teara to ensure acceptable standards of professional practice & responsiveness
to community needs. ’
« Support and consult with management team in the assignment, supervision, evaluation & termination of
employees. '
e Participate in preparation of the annual budget, ensure agency programs are administered within
budgetary provisions and maintain proper accounting of funds. : ] '
« Participate in developing and coordinating sound welfare programs in the community.
e Participate in community collaborations on the local, regional and national level to increase
understanding of agency programs.

FIRST — Manchester, New Hampshire (2011 to 2013)
Director, Corporate & Foundation Relationships .

e Manage team of eight to develop and cultivate strategic relationships with donor organizations to raise
$16 million annually. Responsible for hiring, training and supervising staff, Complete employee
evaluations and develop goals for professional growth. : ' '

e Maintain and grow existing donor accounts by providing strategic vision, leadership, and direction. Set
support level goals, develop short & long-term strategies and implement action plans to meet the growth
objectives of FIRST. Work across departments to ensurs adequate finding.

o Personally grew several major accounts by 3 0% in fixst year of posTtion. Companies included Boeing,

. United Technologies, 3M and Grainger. :

o Cultivated new relationships with several large companies inclnding: Deloitte, Tatel, MasterCard,
Hitachi, Good Samaritan Society, AARP and the military.

» Cyeate annual business plan, maintain accurate donor database, develop reports for 2gency leadership
and participate in major event planning. Serve as spokesperson. for the agency at natiopal events. )

CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER — Hillsborough County, New Haropshire (2010 to 2011)
Executive Director -

. TProvide strategic leadership & day to day management of the agency. Supervise 4 staff, 2 Americorp
Advocates, & student intemns. Report directly to the board of directors. Recruit & provide orientation to
new board members. :

o Grew agency in first year of leadership to include an. additional staff person and three new services
incinding: case management, extended forensic interviews and district court advocacy. Met rigorous

o« Create annnal work plan & budget. Manage fnding to support 2gency operations, Write grants and
insure appropriate reporting to funding sources.

e Increased budget by 12%in FY2011; exceeded fundraising goals by 66% & served 10% more children.
Secure agency funds through grants, contributions by cities & towns, fundraising events and business &
individual donations. ' :

o Successfully execute large fundraising events, utilizing staff and volunteer resources. Events include
annual gala, {riathlon, dance recital, special events & web-based appeal.




» Serve as spokesperson for the organization in the community, through local media outlets and social
networks. Provide-training to individuals working with children to help with identification of child
abuse and to promote responsible reporting.

NEW FUTURES — Exeter, New Hampshire (2005 to 2009)
Director, Adolescent Treatment Initiative and Closing the Treatment Gap Initiative
«  Manage $5 million dollar investment of the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation & $600,000
investment of the Open Society Institute. Manage & supervise 6 agencies and 15 staff across NH to
implement this project. :
= Tmplement evidence based treatment in five communities across the state. Have expanded use of
evidence based practice from 1 agency to 7 in three years. Have provided training to more than 100
clinicians in New Hampshire on the use of evidence based treatment approaches.
= Project demonstrated successful outcomes consistent with or above national standards. Success includes
reduction in substance use, decrease in illegal activity and alleviation of mental health symptoms.
Clients report high tredtment satisfaction.
«  Create annnal work plan and budget. Provide annual progress report to the New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation & Open Society Institute. ' '
= Develop data collection methods and identify target indicators. Utilize outcome data to make
adjustments to programs to better serve youth, adults and their families.

RECLAIMING FUTURES — Concord, New Hampshire (2002 to 2005)
State Director

= Wiote graut to secure $1.3 million from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation for Reclaiming Futures.

x  Responsible for hiring, supervising and evaluating work of 6 program staff.

« Demonstrated success in 8 out of 13 project indices including: data sharing, parfner involvement, client
information, targeted treatment, treatment effectiveness, assessment, family involvement, accessto
services and involvement with pro-social activities.

»  Facilitated 5 year strategic planoing process in collaboration with state level advisory board. Developed
and implemented yearly work plans.

« TInstitutionalized screening and assessment protocol in juvenile court system reaching 95% of youth
across seven jurisdictions. Screen for risk and protective factors to facilitate connection to appropriate
services. Expanded juvenile drug courts from 2 sites to 7 in four years with no additional resources.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

THE YOUTH COUNCIL — Nashua; New Hampshire (1998-2002)
Director of Operations and Program Development/ Clinical Social Worker

RIVIER COLILEGE — Nashua, New Hampshire (2009 to 2011)
Adjunct Faculty, Commumications Department Grant Writing Skills

NATIONAL CONSULTANT & TRAINER. — Train on substance abuse assessment tools in various

" {ocations across the country consult on. adolescent {reatment issues in juvenile justice (2005- 2011)

Completed feasibility study for the NH Dental Association (2011)

EDUCATION
Master’s Degree in. Social Work (MSW)
University of New Hampshire, 1998

Bachelor’s Degree in Social Work (BSW)
Rivier College, 1991




ANTHONY F. CHEEK, JR.
464 Chesfnut St
Manchester, NH 03105
Phone: (603) 5184113
Email: cheekt@cfsnh.org

EXPERIENCE: Child & Family Services Manchester, NH
01/11- Present V'ce President/CFO

Oversee ﬁnance human resource and information techno!ogy functions for a private non-profit
. human services agency with 300 employees and a budget of $12 Million.

. Fountains Amerca. lnc., Pitisfield, NH
3/07-1/11 Vice President/Director of Finance

Overall responsibility for the corporate finance, human resource and information technofogy
functions of a US holding company and its three operating divisions, all subsidiaries of fountains
plc headquartered in the UK.

US budget responsibility $7 Million, Group budget $100 Miliion.

Prepare and monitor annual budgets.

Provide monthly financial analysis and forecasts to US President and UK group CFO.

Manage corporate risk matters including legal, insurance and compliance issues.

Oversee corporate tax matters and accouriting standards compliance.

. Manage accounting department staff of six for maximum efficiency and
responsiveness to intemal and external stakeholders.

. Manage all human resource and payroll functions.

Manage IT infrastructure and support needs.

Work with US President and Division Presidents on strategic issues, company growth

initiatives, product and regiona! cost analysis and acquisition/due diligence projects.

Lakes Redion Community Services Council, Inc., Laconia, NH
2/36- 3/07 Director of Finance (3/98-3/07)

" Oversee finance, human resource and mformatron technology functions for a private non-profit
human services agency with 300 employees, involving four corporate entifies and a budgef of $20
- Million.

. Prepare and monitor annual budgets, and report monthly to Board of Directors.
Negotiate funding with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-
Services.
Prepare and manage contracts with funding sources and vendors.
Supervision of 15 staff in finance, human resources and other administrative
functions.
Administer the agency's personnel polities, compensation and benefit plans.
Ensure compliance with state and federal labor regulations.
Oversee the installation and support of agency computer systems and networks. *
Implemented new IT network infrastructure for sateliite offices to improve




11/87 - 2/96

EDUCATION:

1986

communication and optimize operations.
Implemented new Medicaid billing and data coliection software system.

Manage all corporate risk management including legal issues, insurance coverage
and corporate compliance matiers. ' :

Assistant Controller {2/96-3/98) :
Manage Accounting department responsible for five interrelated corporations.
Oversee general iedgers for all corporations including timély monthly closings and
account reconciliations.
Present financial statements at monthly Board meeting.
Manage staff of five including A/R, A/P, and G/L staff.
Responsible for coordination of annual audits.
Assist in preparation and maintenance of annual budgets.
Converted general ledger software from an in-house system to Solomon IV, a Windows
based multi-company software systermn.
Responsible for the startup of two new corporations.
Provide Executive Directors with accurate and timely operating statements and financial
analysis.
Responsible for daily cash management and banking relationships.

Bovd’s Potato Chip Co.. Inc., Lynn, MA
Controller/General Manager

Prepared and analyzed monthly profit and loss statement

Monitored and controlled the flow of cash receipts and disbursements.

Researched, designed specifications for and implemented a computer system to -
automate order entry, A/R, A/P, and inventory control, reducing data entry by 25% and
improving inventory confrol. .

Coordinated annual audits. :

Administered group insurance plans and workers compensation program. Infroduced
new programs that resulted in savings to company and reduced workplace accidents.
Renegotiated union confracts with union management.

Managed all aspects of transportation and distribution, to ensure prompt deliveries and
customer satisfaction. '

Supervised a staff of 20 including office, warehouse and transportation personnel.

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

COMPUTER SKILLS:

Advanced computer skills including Microsoft Excel, Word and Access. - Solomon
Dynamics and Sage Accpac accounting systems. Crystal and FRX report writers.



Maryann Evers LICSW

40 Gould Hill Rd., Hopkinton NH 03229

617-571-7419 maryanneversb@gmail.com

Professional Overview

Clinical Social Worker/Manager with over 25 years of professional, clinical and managerial experience focusing on
trauma, child welfare, early childhood, mental health. Skilled at working with state and private nonprofits to
develop and provide a full range of services to children and families. Experienced in identifying programmatic and

systemic barriers to optimum care and developing and sustaining programs to address these challenges.

Experience

Regional Clinical Director/MA Depariment of Children and Families2010-june 2015

Responsible for oversight and implementation of agency policy and procedures in Boston MA. Direct supervision of
multi-disciplinary staff including Quality Improvement, Risk Management, Adoption, Substance Abuse, Domestic
Violence and Mental Health Consultation. Facilitate meetings with office middle and senior management. Liaison to
child serving state, municipal and private agencies. Familiar with performance based management. Oversee system

of after hours emergency response teams. Responsible for training, team building

Mental Hedlth Specialist/ MA Department of Children and Families 2001-2010

Provide consultation to staff on issues involving mental health concerns. Helped design data coliection and analysis
to understand and address problem of children “stuck” in hospitals. Liaison with acute psychiatric facilities,
Department of Mental Health and Developmental Disability Services. Developed and maintained interagency teams
and group home with focus on children transitioning from child to adult services. Key developer of child
psychopharmacology training for DCF workers. Implementation, oversight and analysis of consultation with
community child psychiatrists. Leader in critical incident management, crisis debriefing and wellness initiative in
the region. Promotes professional development of staff including intern supervision. Developed and implemented

crisis planning teams with Boston Psychiatric Emergency Service Team.

Private Practice 2001-2012
Andover and Revere Ma

Provided outpatient child and family therapy. Special emphasis on adolescent adjustment, child development, child

behavior and patrenting strategies.

i
Director Child Services/North Suffolk Mental Health 1992-2001 ‘
Clinical and administrative oversight for all child and family out patient services at this private non-profit in ‘

Chelsea, Revere and East Boston Ma. Contracts management, budget development. Created and implemented one

of the first in home family stabilization teams in the Boston area. Provided direct services, consultation and




Vista Volunteer 1977; exercise enthusiast, avid reader

License

Ma LICSW since 1990

NH LICSW application submitted




CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from } Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Borja Alvarez de CLO $162.510 0 0

Toledo

Maria Gagnon CoO $102,586 0 0

Tony Cheek CFO $100.339 0 0

Maryann Evers Program Director $71,386 20% $14.277




FORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 5/8/15)

Subject: Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America (17-DHHS-DPHS-MCH-01-03)

Hotice  This aerecreent ong all of s attochreone: shall becomr o public upon stbizsion ta Gowernor and

Exccutive Council for approval. Any inforration thao s prvate, conficontial or praprictary rust

Lo clearly identified to the apency 9n0 32000 L0 10 SMAE PROT to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Ageney Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contrat.:tor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
The Family Resource Center at Gorham 123 Main Street, Gorham NH 03581
1.3 Contraclor Phone Number 1.6 Account Number: 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
603-466-5190 05-95-90-902010- June 30, 2018 $328,560

5896 O LD\

1-9_ Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin 603-271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signaturc 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

m TH e Nathan Movin , Board Pesident

1.13 Acknowledgement: Statcof _ A, County of Coos

On G - "T- [(s .belorethe undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identificd in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily
proven 1o be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he exceuted this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1  Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
!

/3.-—-_;—4——PEGGY LEE BRICKLEY

[ Seal]

1.13.2 Name and Title ¢

ary of lustice of the Peace Wﬂw
My Commission Expires May 4, 2021

ﬁeqqu. VLee Bt C._Kl-cq )\)d'b!_h-( PLblic

1.14 State Agendy ‘g*gn\atl}/c } 1.15 Name and 1'#]e of State Agency Sigmﬁry

. ‘ ' 4 [L. £ ) '.I
Pt /B A Foray o T

1.16 prpdeI by thr. N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

%JW@fV’mmﬁme il

1.18  Approval by the Govern%‘md Execufive Cl/)unu] {

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. 'Tthe Stale of New Ilampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block [.3 ("Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identificd and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which 1s incorporated heremn by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshme, 1f
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as mdicated in
block .18, unless no such approval is required, 1n which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Apgreement 1s signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™.

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Serviees performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effeetive Date shall be performed at the sole risk ol the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no lability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any cosls meurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, ncluding,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no cvent shall the State be liable for any
payvments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reductton or termmation of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the nght to withhold
payment until such f{unds become available, if ever, and shall
have the nght to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 i the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

S CONTRACT
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXTIMBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complcte
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contraclor other than the contract
price.

PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

Page 2 ol 4
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise pavable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those hiquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
807 through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement o the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price T.imitation set forth in block
1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 Tn connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which 1mpose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not Himited to, civil rights and cqual opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with commumeation
disahlities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the contractor. In addition. the Contractor shall
comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conlractor shall
nol discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national ongin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such diserimination.

6.3 I this Agreement is funded in any part bv monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“liqual
Fmployment Opportunity™, as supplemented by  the
regulations of the Uniled States Department ol Labor (41
C.1'.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulalions and gwdelines
as the State of New [Tampshire or the United States issuc to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access lo any ol the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Serviees. The Centractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six {6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale
employee or official. who 18 materally mvolved in the
procurcment, administraion  or  performance ol this

Contraclor Initials ‘j m
b G /7] 1




Agreement.  This provision shall survive termination of this
Agrecment.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Oflicer’s decision shall be [inal for the State.

8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfaclorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submil any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the oceurrence ol any Evenl of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writlen notice specifying the Fvent
of Default and requiring 1t to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default 13
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of lermination;

8.2.2 give the Contraclor a writlen notice specifying the Event
of Delault and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agrecment and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set ofT againsl any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not himited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, piclorial  repreductions,  drawings, analyses,
graphic  represcenlations, compuler programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termmnation of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shali be governed by N.F. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law.  Disclosure of data
reqguires prior written approval of the State.

IPage 3 of 4
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
lermination, a report (“Termination Report™ describing 1in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matler, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of 1ts
officers, emplovees, agents or members shall have authority 1o
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers” compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its emplovees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writlen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior wrillen
consent ol the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
mdemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
cmployees, from and agamst any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and ail clauns.
Habilities or penaltics asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from. arising out of {or which may he
claimed 1o arise out of) the acts or omissions ot the
Contractor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing hercin
contained shall be deemed to constitule a watver of the
soverelgn immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
mainlain in force, and shall require any subcentractor or
assignee lo obtain and maintain in foree, the following
msurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000.000 per occurrence and $2,000,600
aggregate; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies deseribed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the NH. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials M
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143 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or hus or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thercof shall be attached and arc
incorporaled herem by reference.  Llach certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

151 By sigmng this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certilies and warrants that the Contraclor is in compliance with
or excmpl {Tom, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation”).

15.2  To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.II RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activitics which the person proposes to
underlake pursuant to this Agreement.  Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer 1dentificd m block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers” Compensation i the
manner deseribed m NI RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporaled herein by reference.  The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or emplovee of Contractor, which might
anse under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hercol after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the nght of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Fvent of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of maifing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval 1s required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and 1s binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
mtent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in {avor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the mterpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additional provisions sl
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions ol
this Agreement are held by a court of competenl jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or lederal law, the remainng
provisions of fhis Agreement will remain i full foree and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed 1n a number of counterparts, cach of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding, between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor [nitials A/ m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Famifies America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) requires all grantees
receiving funds through this program to use the following acknowledgement and
disclaimer on all products produced by HRSA grant funds:

“This project is/was supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount {specify grant number, title,
total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental sources).
This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and should
not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any
endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”

2. Scope of Work

241

The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to pregnant women and
newly parenting families with children up to the age three (3) in Grafton County to
improve health and development outcomes for at-risk children through evidence-
based home visiting programs, with priority given to individuals who:

2.1.1 Are first time mothers.
2.1.2 Have low incomes.
2.1.3 Are less than twenty-one (21} years of age.

2.1.4 Have a history of chiid abuse or neglect or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

2.1.5 Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment.
2.1.6 Are users of tobacco products in the home.

2.1.7 Have or have had children with low student achievement.

2.1.8 Have children with developmental delays or disabilities.

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials: W

Exhibit A — Scope of Services ’ ] '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.1.9 Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have formerly
served in the armed forces, including such families that have members of
the armed forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the
United States.

22 The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services using a two-step process.
The Contractor shall:

221 Accept referrals from referral sources that have been screened for
services.

2.2.2 Utilize the Parent Survey on the first visit/intake to gather comprehensive
information about the family and prioritize clients for services.

23 The Contractor shall maintain enrollment at & minimum of 85% capacity, through
monthly reviews of caseloads. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1 Review the capacity report on a monthly basis.

2.3.2 Implement strategies around outreach when enrollment rates fall below
85% capacity.

2.4  The Contractor shall ensure program staff establish a relationship with each
family in order to keep families interested and connected over time. The
Contractor shall:

2.4.1 Provide flexible service delivery, including late afternoon and early
evening visits for families who have no other option but to meet during
those times.

2.4.2 Foster respectful partnerships between parents and home visitors.

2.4.3 Engage all family members and promote the involvement of all family
members, including fathers/father figures, while explaining the importance
of their role within the family.

2.4.4 Remain consistent with visits and supports, in order to build on existing
strengths while encouraging and coaching families to build on skills,
inciuding but not limited to communication skills that are needed for self-
sufficiency and to advocate for their children.

2.5 The Contractor shall provide home visiting services that include home visits by
nurses during the prenatal and post-partum. The Contractor shall ensure the
nurse:

251 Conducts one home visit per trimester in order to focus on specific
pregnancy health issues to ensure the mother’'s understanding of:

2.5.1.1 All health and nutritional recommendations.
2.5.1.2 Signs and symptoms of premature labor.

2.5.1.3 The effects of harmful substances including, but not limited to,
tobacco, alcohol, and drugs, on the unborn child.

2.5.1.4 Risk factors including but not limited to:

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials: l“m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire - Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

252

253

254

25141 History of depression.
25142 Symptoms of postpartum depression.
2.5.1.5 Importance of receiving early treatment for depression.

Conducts one (1) nurse visit within three (3) months of the baby’s birth in
order to conduct a maternal and newborn health assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.21 The Edinburgh screening for postpartum depression
2.5.22 Assessment of breastfeeding success, as applicable.

Conducts a minimum of two (2) additional visits prior to the baby turning
one, which will focus on:

2.5.3.1 The maternal-infant attachment.
2.5.3.2 Family planning.

2.5.3.3 Child health and safety issues, including but not limited to, well-
child visits and immunizations.

Administers the Edinburgh screening at regular intervals, which may be
administered by either the nurse or home visitor staff:

2.5.41 Prenatal visit.
2.5.42 Within three (3) months postpartum.

2543 Follow up within two (2) weeks from the date of receiving
positive results.

26 The Contractor shall collaborate with families to ensure participation based on
parent availability. The Contractor shall:

261 Use text messaging to communicate the scheduling of visits, as
appropriate and preferred by the family.

2.6.2 Reach out to families on a weekly hasis using hand written notes at the
family home to respectfully reach out to families who may not be home at
the scheduled visit time.

2.6.3 Explain the HFA level system to families at enroliment, emphasizing the
first six (6) months of involvement with a family, after a baby’s birth, is
critical for:

26.3.1 Parent-infant relationship development.
26.3.2 Newborn care and safety.
26.33 Adjustment to parenthood.
27 Provide home visiting services in accordance with HFA Best Practice Standards.

The Contractor shall:

2.7.1 Implement Creative Qutreach to reach out to families for ninety (90) days
when necessary as described in the HFA Mode!.

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials: m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.7.2 Create Family Goal Plans with the family that show family-identified
measurable goals broken down into small steps.

2.7.3 Work to attain HFA Accreditation. The Contractor shall:

2731 Complete Step 2 — The Site Visit in the Accreditation process by
January 1, 2016 and submit a copy of the Accreditation Site Visit
Report (SVR) to MCH.

2.7.3.2 Complete Step 3 — Response Penod in the Accreditation
process within the time period indicated in the Accreditation SVR
and submit a copy of final approval by HFA to MCH.

| 2.7.4 |mplement, at minimum, one of the following curricula for home visits;

2.7.41 Parents as Teachers (PAT) as an annually trained approved
user.

2.7.4.2 Growing Great Kids (GGK) with cerlification training.
2.7.5 Develop creative outreach efforts to engage families to receive services.

2.7.6 Provide services that support the parent, parent-child interaction and child
development.

27.7 Coordinate with other local service providers including health care
providers, social workers and early interventionists.

2.7.8 Collaborate with other early childhood serving agencies including those
that provide home visiting and family support services.

2.7.9 Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the Healthy Families America Model (HFA) are addressed
in agency policies.

28 The Contractor shall provide case management services, which shall include, but
is not limited to:

2.8.1 Entering participant health data into the Home Visiting Data System
(ETO).

2.8.2 Documenting case notes for all home visits.
2.8.3 Making referrals to other agencies, as appropriate.
2.8.4 Following up on referrals to other agencies.

2.9 The Contractor shall develop a broad-based advisory group with a variety of
stakeholders to collect input that will assist with the planning, implementation and
assessment of sit-related activities.

210 The Contractor shall develop a reiease of information authorization form for
Department approval. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1 Ensure the Department-approved release of information authorization
form is properly executed by program participants and maintained in the
client’s case file.

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials: l“ n l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.10.2 Maintain the release of information autherization form in the client file in
accordance with federal regulations and state laws.

211 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to collect participant and
program data and other pertinent information used for the purpose of program
evaluation. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1 Wilize staff and family surveys to solicit feedback on programs and
services offered.

2.11.2 Review program files on a quarterly basis to determine whether each
family is receiving the appropriate level of services, in accordance with
the HFA model.

2.11.3 Evaluate the progress of program participant, performance of programs
and services provided on a quarterly basis.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall hire staff in accordance with the HFA Best Practice
Standards. The Contractor shall providing staff training that includes, but is not
iimited to:

3.1.1  Cultural Competency

3.1.2 Reporting Child Abuse

3.1.3 Home Safety

3.1.4 Substance Abuse

3.1.5 Managing Crisis Situations

3.1.6 Domestic Viclence

3.1.7 Responding to Mental Health

3.1.8 Drug-exposed infants

3.1.9 Community services availability

3.2 The Contractor shall ensure staff receive supervision in accordance with the
requirements of the HFA Best Practice Standards, including, but not limited to:
3.2.1 Weekly individual supervision that includes, but is not limited to,

discussions that reflect brainstorming to overcome barriers to:
3.2.1.1 Completing home visits.
3.2.1.2 Referrals.

3.2.2 Bi-weekly team meetings for support, reflection and case review.

33 The Contractor shall ensure direct service staff supervisors and program
managers meet the minimum qualifications outlined in the HFA Best Practice
Standards.

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

3.4

3.5

The Contractor shail ensure Registered Nurses (RN’s) have a minimum of two
(2) years of maternal and child heaith nursing experience and are currently
licensed to practice in accordance with RSA 326-B.

The Contractor shail ensure staff attend meetings and trainings as required by
the Division of Public Health Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, which
shall include but not be limited to:

3.5.1 Maternal Child Health (MCH) Agency Directors’ Meetings.
3.52 MCH Home Visiting Meetings.

3.5.3 MIECHYV Staff Training.

3.54 MCH Home visiting CQI coaching calls.

4, Reporting Requirements

4.1

42

43

4.4

4.5

The Contractor shall provide a monthly caseload analysis report for each
individual staff member who provides home visits.

The Contractor shall complete and submit data reports using form Exhibit A-1, on
a quarterly basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the unmet
targets for the performance measures outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance
Measures.

The Contractor shall provide a narrative report that includes, but is not limited to:
4.3.1 Highlights of program activities conducted.
4.3.2 Goals for the following quarter.
4.3.3 Goals met for the previous quarter.

The Contractor shall complete and submit Exhibit A-1, Reports on an annual
basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the performance measures
outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance Measures along with a narrative that
includes, but is not limited to:

4.4 1 Information regarding accomplishments and challenges for the program.
442 Systemic barriers.
4.4.3 Action plans to address barriers.

4.4.4 Family satisfaction survey results that demonstrate a minimum of eighty
(80) percent rating of consumer satisfaction each year.

The Contractor shall complete three (3) quarterly reports and one (1) annual report
as described in Section 4, Reporting, according to the foliowing schedule:

451 Quarter 1, July — September DUE 10/15/2016
4.5.2 Quarter 2, October — December DUE 1/15/2017

453 Quarter 3, January — March DUE 4/15/2017
454 Quarter 4, April — June DUE 7/15/2017
455 Annual, July —June DUE 7/30/2017
Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor Initials: Um
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

5. Deliverables

5.1 The Contractor shall complete and submit the Inputs, Activities, and Evaluation sections
of Exhibit A-1 within thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

52 The contractor shall maintain at least 85% of HFA defined capacity based on the
number of Home visitors listed in the staffing plan.

53 The Contractor shall complete a minimum of three (3) nurse visits after a baby’s
birth prior to the baby’s first (1%) birthday

54 The Contractor shall ensure each pregnant program participant receives a
minimum of one (1) nurse visit per trimester.

55 The Contractor shall submit the release of information authorization form in
Section 2.10 to the Department for approval within ten (10) business days from
the contract effective date.

5.6 The Contractor shall attend 100% of meetings, as described in Section 3.5 or
submit an action plan describing the reason for absence and a pian to obtain the
information/materials presented.

Family Resource Center at Gorham Contractor initials: M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit B
Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to suppeorting funding for this
project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.505 (https.//www.cfda. gov), U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form
P37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for allowable costs, as
detailed in Exhibits B-1 and B-2.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10™) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month along with any monthly and/or quarterly reports due in accordance with
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division ¢of Public Health Services

Financial Administrator

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

E-mail: dphscontracthilling@dhhs.state.nh.us

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days after the
Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result
in nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to |
the adjustment of the amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related |
items, and amendments of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of
both parties and do not required additional approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

The Family Resource Center at Gorham Exhibit B Contractor Initials U m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: [f the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shali furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his‘her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on hehalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreementifitis
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin
excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTICN, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period;

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, fabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2, Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

§8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Coniractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functicns, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2, Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
pubiic officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Caontractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Confractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department,

t1.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shail be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/for
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shali disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.} was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials {written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval fram DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all eriginal materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contracter shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upen the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all imes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and reguiations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEQP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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17.

18.

19.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.ojp.usdojfabout/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall appiy to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLGYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

{a) This contract and empioyees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights

and remedies in the pilot program on Coniractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as desctibed in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in ali
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function{s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compltance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials llz ﬂ I
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFiNITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, ard policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, efc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor initials l l_/ m
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in biock 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

2.
1041
102
10.3
10.4
10.5
3.

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shalt fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two additional years, subject to

the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CU/DHHSM 10713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
oceurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a} that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wili
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute oceurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Cetification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials m
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5 and 16,

)

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

(/21 YpiHa e

Date Name: Mothen Morin
Title: President
Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials m
Woerkplace Requirements rb
CU/DHHSM 10712 Page 2 of 2 Date | ¥




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

“Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disciose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and nct more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: 7;‘& 'Fami/y ResoUvee Ceh‘A‘r’V
at &orhrani

Dat Name " pgfathan Moris
Title: Boaprd President

M
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pravisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required beiow will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upen which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary paricipant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal {contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

LY "o

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules impiementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

LT

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibitity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without madification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or inveluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the cerification is erronecus. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

| 9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
| in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarmment, Suspension Contractor Initials AZ m
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings,

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered fransaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the hest of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shalt attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14, The prospective iower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

b/ 2/l Ml - Jhe~

Date Name: Aasthan Moriv
Title: Prasidend
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 3672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligattons of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Actincludes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 61086-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.5. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination, Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to |
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: “The ﬁm,/y &saufce (v~
at Gorham

e/ le bty Mo

Date Name: Nattan Movis
Title: Phec:den/'; @aD
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohe! treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Confractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name://[ng Famr/y P{,S'O(J ree Cé’m’fV
ot @Govham

216 e, FH20

Date Name: Natharn A0+
e presiden + Bod
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
inforrnation, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually |dentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor [nitiais ll_/ M
Health Insurance Portability Act
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‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

‘Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PH1) except as reascenably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii} an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contractor initials ﬂz !! z
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(3)

372014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided far by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information ar to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in wnting to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit i Contractor Initials llz m
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement @ !2 {/b
Page 3 of &6 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during narmal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten {10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164 .526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disciosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164 .528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfilt its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164 .528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as scon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s |
use or disclosure of PHI. |

b Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

C. Coavered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

H

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall repert the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscelianeous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has ne ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
3/2014 Exhibit § Contractor Initials Mm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPORNOOR LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: e dei/lf ?esaurre Center

ot Fovirar

/- s B, Tt

ate Name: Atgtran Movin
e Poard President

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
CU/DHHSH 10713 Page 1 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segreqation. {f any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable,

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

|
|
|
IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

ad‘g{ QPNOM”&”C"[ The Ff‘m"\/ Resouvce Cernter af Gorham)

Name of the Contractor

WML@@— Q(gw—q I S

$ignature of Authérized Representative  Signature of Authorized Representative

’V\mek\% biuslay/ Nathan X/lam'n

Name of Authoarized Representatlbe Name of Authorized Representative
1 Dl wen D e ste(” Board President
| Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
- %20l 6/2 [l
Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor initials AZ !! 2

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement
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Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: {2[ 9 /: i Q 5/ 2

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

l_ NO _ __YEs

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

| New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
|

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your |
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15{d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867
NO YES ‘
|
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here ‘

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: |

i Name: Amount:
‘ Name: Amount: f
| Name: Amount: i
|
|
Name; Amount:
Name: Amount;
Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance {’
CL/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date




State of Nefu Hampshive
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hercby
certify that THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAM 1s a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed April 3, 1997, [ further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the lees required by faw.

In TESTIMONY WHLEREOL. T hereto
set my hand and cause to be aftixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 27" day of January A.D. 2016

ey ke

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State

(\I?'\\ ‘ UJ/ (

i




Business Entity Page 1 of 2

Corporation Division

Search Filed Documents
; Date: 6/9/2016
By Business Name {Annual Report Histery, View Images, etc.)

By Business iD
By Registered Agent
Annual Report

Business Name History

. . Name Name Type
Fife Online
Guidelines THE FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT Legal
GORHAM

Name Availability
Name Appeal Process  Non-Profit Corporation - Domestic - Information

Business ID: 270161

Status: Good Standing

Entity Creation Date: 4/31997

Principal Office Address: 123 Main Street
Gorham NH 03581

Principal Mailing Address: 123 Main St
Gorham NH 03581

Expiration Date: Perpetual

Last Annual Report Filed Date: 12/16/2015 10:32:33 AM

l.ast Annual Report Filed: 2015

Registered Agent

Agent Name:

Office Address: No Address

Mailing Address: No Address

Important Note: The status reflected for each entity on this website only
refers to the status of the entity’s filing requirements with this office. It does
not necessarily reflect the disciplinary status of the entity with any state
agency. Requests for disciplinary information should be directed to agencies
with licensing or other regulatory authority over the entity.

Privacy Policy | Accessibility Palicy | Site Map | Contact Us

https://www.sos.nh.gov/corporate/soskb/Corp.asp?414150 6/9/2016




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Katherine Baublis, do hereby certify that:
1.  am a duly elected Officer of The Family Resource Center at Gorham.
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on May 18, 2016:

RESOLVED: That the Board President is hereby authorized on behaif of this Agency to enter into the said contract
with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,

revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of
June 7, 2018, 2016.

4. Nathan Morin is the duly elected Board President of the Agency.

Y_,/ww Bootter

Katherine Baublis. Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 7th day of June, 2016.

By Nathan Morin, Board President of The Family Resource Center orham

L 4] Z (/K‘-”‘x

(N@%y Public/Justice of the Peace;

PEGGY LEE BRICKLEY _
Notary Public, State of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires May 4, 2021

Commission Expires: OS-I/'LI /201!

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE [MM/DDIYYYY)
5/31/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}.

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC
21 Meadowbrook Lane
P O Box 7425
Gilford

INSURED

_NH _03247-7425

Family Resocurce Center at Gorhanm
123 Main Street

ﬁR,?,‘.E?CT Fairley Kenneally

PONE  Exty. (603)293-2791 TR yop (6031203-7188

ADbREss: fairley@esinsurance.com
e mveaeeren ... NBURERYS) AFFORDING COVERAGE ] NAIC &
INSURER A Great American Ins Group . },,,,,,,
INSURER B Travelers Property Casualty Co of 25674

INSURERC ;.

| INSURERD :
INSURER E : .
Gorham NH 03581 INSURER F : I
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:2016 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PCLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TG WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITICNS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFE | POLICY EXP o ’ ]
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MWDDIYYYY) | (MMWDDIYYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCOURRENGE 3 1,000,000
: - DAMAGE TC RENTED T 3nn nn
a | ] CLAIMS-MADE [ X “ OCCUR PREMISES {Ea occurrence) % 100,000
MAC3793560-10 5/10/2016 | 5/10/2017 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
R | PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY |5 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
(X ]eover [ 5% | e PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG 1§ 3,000,000
OTHER: AbMol Daycare IncAnoPA & 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ; {Ea accidenty : $ 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO i BODILY INJURY (Per parson) =~ $
ﬁbl}gngED i ES%QULED MAC3793560-10 05/10/2016! 05/10/2017 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) - $
o | " | NON-OWNED ! PRCPERTY DAMAGE g B
X | HRED AUTOS | X | AUTDS {Per accident) .
} 3
X | UMBRELLALIB | X | ocCUR | EACHOCCURRENCE S _ 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB | CLAMS MADE, AGGREGATE .8 1,000,000
DED ] RETENTIONS UMB113778401 5/10/2016 5/10/2017 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION FER CTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE ‘ ER o
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE ~ -~ ; E.L EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
CFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? | N |N/A o : e
B |{Mandatory in NH) — 6JUB2E64693-3-16 1/1/2016 | 1/1/2817 | EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 500,000
¥ yes, describe under B i o
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL DISEASE - POLICY UMIT | § 500,000
1

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Dept of Health and Human Services
Director, Div of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301-6504

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

F Kenneally/FAIRLE

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INSO258 on1dn1

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




The Family Resource Center

123 Main Street

Gorham, NH 03581

603-466-5190 (T)

603-466-9022 (F) Patti Stolte

Executive Director
Satellite Offices in Lancaster and Colebrook and Littleton, NH www. frcl23.0rg

THE FRC MISSION:

To build healthier families and stronger communities
through positive relations, programs and collaborations
in the North Country of New Hampshire.

Strengthening Families . . . Bullding Communitizs
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Leone,
To the Board of Directors MCD()nneI I

Family Resource Center at Gorham 8 ROb ertS
Gorham, New Hampshire PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT WOLFEBORO * NORTH CONVAY
DOVER * CONCORD

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Family Resource Center at Goridilid nonprofit
organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related
statements of cash flows, and notes to financial statements for the years then ended and the related statement
of activities and statement of functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Thase

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Family Resource Center at Gorham as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and its cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2015 in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Family Resource Center at Gorham's 2014 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmedified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 5,
2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2014, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been

derived. Lep ,Mc @W” p' 5‘ Aé
ﬂ‘#"ﬁd"’@'“’ﬁ

October 16, 2015
North Conway, New Hampshire




EAMILY RESOURGE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 61426 139,460
Certificates of deposit 79,647 79,488
Investments 177,349 188,804
Grants receivable 187,526 70,386
Prepaid expenses 3,851 3,625
Total current assets 509,798 481,663
PROPERTY
Leasehold improvements 72,362 72,362
Furniture and equipment 51,575 51,575
Total 123,937 123,937
Less: accumulated depreciation (70,128) (62,508)
Property, net 53,809 61,429
Total assets 3 563608 543,092
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Demand note payable $ 29,500 -
Accounts payable 11,427 7,272
Accrued expenses 10,412 8,604
Agency deposits 22179 22,177
Refundable advances 41,887 70,122
Total current liabilities 115,406 108,175
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Designated for long-term building maintenance 12,219 9,210
Undesignated 239,647 215,842
Permanently restricted - endowment 196,337 209,865
Total net assets 448,203 434 917
Total habilities and net asseis $ 563,608 543,092

See Notes to Financlal Statements
2



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2014

20186
Temporarily Permanently 2014
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT .
Grants $ - % 1098729 § - % 1,098,720 §$ 1,000,114
Donations 42,711 - - 42771 25,270
Agency rents 33,167 - - 33,167 32,104
Investment income - - 4,243 4,243 4,139
Intarest income 182 - - 182 369
Net unrealized investment gain - - {5.255) {5,255) 12,007
Net realized investment gain - - 7,296 7,296 9,859
Net assets released from restrictions 1,113,358 {1,098,729) (14,629) - -

Total revenues, support and net assels
released from restrictions 1,189,478 - (8,345} 1,181,133 1,083,862
EXPENSES

Program services 990,600 - - 990,600 908,518
Management and generat 172,064 - 5,183 177,247 155,144
Total expenses 1,162,664 - 5,183 1,167,847 1.063,662
INCREASE {DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 26,814 - (13,528) 13,286 20,200
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 225,052 - 209,865 434,817 414,717
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR § 251866 § - 3 196,337 $ 448203 § 434,917

See Notes to Financial Statements
3




EAMILY RESQURCE CENTER AT GORHAM

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
increase in net assets $ 13,286 % 20,200
Adiustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Unrealized gain on investments 5,255 (12,007)
Depreciation 7,620 7,620
(Increase) decrease in assets
Grants receivable {(117,140) 57,871
Prepaid expenses (326) 6,305
Increase {decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable . 4,155 4,238
Accrued expenses 1,808 2,222
Agency deposits 2 2
Refundable advances (28,235) {28,204)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (113,575) 58,247
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments and certificates of deposit 6,041 7.037
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 6,041 7,037
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings on line of credit 29,500 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 29,500 -
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (78,034) 65,284
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 139,460 74,176
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 3 61,426 § 139,460
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 47 § -

See Notes to Financial Statements
4




EAMILY RESOURCE CENTER AT GORHAWM

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2014

2015
Management
Program and 2014
Services General Total Total

Personnel Costs
Salaries and wages $ 541313 § 122,826 $ 664,139 3 596,491
Payroll taxes 35,102 12,194 47,296 44,168
Employee benefits 76,229 29,557 105,786 97,151
Contractors and consultants 92,454 1,435 93,889 67,830
Program activities . . 67,118 - . 67,118 80,226
Program travel 43,450 1,103 44 563 43,411
Heat and utilities 24 631 - 24,631 22,981
Program materials 23,369 - 23,369 15,067
Food and supplies 9,041 1,880 10,921 10,807
Small equipment 10,365 - 10,365 2,659
Accounting fees 9,200 - 9,200 8,000
Telephone, internet, fax and cable 8,952 19 8,971 11,453
Liabifity insurance 8,374 - 8,374 7,694
Conferences and meetings 7,632 97 7.729 8,184
Depreciation 7.620 - 7,620 7.620
Rent 7,480 - 7,480 7,250
Training 5,908 : - 5,908 5,479
Bank charges - 5,345 5,345 4,382
Printing 4,629 69 4,698 5,233
Maintenance and inspections 3,824 - 3,824 7,244
Postage and shipping 2,005 302 2,307 1,653
Property insurance 1,333 - 1,333 1,200
Technology - 1,321 1,321 3,977
Adminisirative - 827 827 1,415
interest expense - 47 47 -
Other 571 225 796 987
Total $ 990600 3 177,247 $1,167.847 $ 1,063,662

See Notes to Financial Statements
5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Family Resource Center at Gorham (the Resource Center) is a voluntary, not-for-profit
corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and
organized exclusively for tax exempt charitable and educational purposes. The principal
activity of the Resource Center is to deliver programming that empowers and educates
children and families so they can overcome obstacles fo healthy family development while

providing access to social and educational services to underserved North Country
populations. Primary programs include:

home visiting programs that deliver evidence based early child development and
parenting support curricula which empowers parents and gives them the motivations and
skills to improve parenting and foster healthy family dynamics;

afterschool programs that supporis the academic, social and emotional developmental of
students in grades K-8; and,

an IRS sanctioned Volunteer income Tax Assistance (VITA) program that provides free
tax preparation services to a continuum of the population with a focus on maximizing

income tax refunds and earned income tax credits for all individuals entitled to claim
such credits.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The Resource Center is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are
determined by the presence or absence of donor restrictions.

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Board
designated unrestricted net assets consist of cash and cash equivalents which are to be
used only with a specific vote of the board.

Temporarily Restricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed stipulations
that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or removed by actions of the
Resource Center. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long
long-lived assets must be maintained or the manner of their disposition, the Resource

6
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Center reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service. The Resource Center reports expirations of continuing

donor restrictions regarding use or disposition of long-lived assets over the assets'
expected useful lives.

Permanently Restricted: Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by the Resource Center. Generally, the donors of these

assets permit the Resource Center to use all or part of the income earned on related
investments for general or specific purposes.

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Resource Center has unrestricted and permanently
| restricted net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and liquid investments with
maturity dates of less than three months. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

investments

Investments are accounted for according to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
958-320 Not For Profit Entities — Investments — Debt and Equity Securities. Under ASC
9568-320, investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and
all investments in debt securities are valued at their fair values in the statement of
financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.

Fair values of investments are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical
investments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost if purchased and at fair value if donated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over the estimated usefu! lives of the
related assets as follows:

Furniture and equipment 5- 15 years
Leasehold improvements 20 years

The Resource Center's policy is to capitalize all assets over $2,500 with an expected life of one
year or longer. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with
the related depreciation allowance, and any gain or loss is recognized.




Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor or time restrictions.
A temporary restriction permits the Resource Center to use donated assets as specified for a
particular purpose. Permanently restricted net assets are those that are required to be
permanently maintained, but income from such investments may be used for specified
purposes. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed Services

From time to time, the Resource Center receives donated services in camrying out the
mission and fundraising activities of the Resource Center. Such donations do not meet

the criteria for recognition under ASC 958 and accordingly no amounts are reflected in the
financial statements for those services.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized
in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Refundable Advances

The Resource Center records grant/contract revenue as a refundable advance until it is
expended for the purpose of the grant/contract, at which time it is recognized as revenue.

Income Taxes

The Resource Center is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Resource Center qualifies for the charitable
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1){a) and has been classified as an organization
that is not a private foundation.

Management has evaluated the Resource Center's tax positions and concluded that the
Resource Center has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. With few exceptions, the
Resource Center is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the United States
Federal or State tax authorities prior to 2011.

Leased Facilities :

The Resource Center leases its current facility from the Town of Gorham. In lieu of rent, the
Resource Center is responsible for the cost of repairs and maintenance, insurance, utilities
and rubbish removal. The lease is for a 20 year period and expires on May 19, 2018. The
Resource Center in turn sublets space in the facility to other nonprofit and community
agencies at an average rate of approximately $10 - $14 per square foot. All participating
organizations must provide services to a client base that is at least 66% low and moderate
income.




Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from various public and other nonprofit organizations at June 30, 2015 and

2014 were considered fully collectable and therefore no provisions for bad debts have been
made in these financial statements.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 16, 2015, which is the date that the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Prior Year's Information

The financiai statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total
but not by function. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constifute a
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Resource

Center's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative
purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which focuses
on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally accepted
accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is a market
based measurement, not an entity specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures
about fair vaiue measurements. in accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, the Resource Center
may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure
fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
ASC Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the
lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC
~ Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices in
active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date,
and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other valuation
methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting entity
makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability including
assumptions regarding risk.




At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Resource Center's investments were all classified as Levet 1
and were based on fair value.

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation

techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2015 and 2014,

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the Resource Center at
year end.

The preceding method described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative
of net realizable vaiue or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Resource
Center believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of

certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

In April 2013 the Resource Center entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank. The
revolving line of credit provides for maximum borrowings up to $75,000 and is collateralized
by a certificate of deposit held at the same bank. The revolving line of credit and the
certificate of deposit both renew every six months. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the interest
rate on the revolving line of credit was stated at the bank's prime rate of 3.10% and 3.20%,

respectively. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2015 was $29,500. There was no balance
outstanding as of June 30, 2014.

AGENCY DEPOSITS

The Resource Center serves as a fiscal agent for the Androscoggin Valley Community
Partners {formerly the Berlin Area Healthcare Consortium), a collaborative effort of area
health and social services agencies intended to provide health related education, information
and communications to the communities of Berlin and Gorham. The amounts held on behalf
of the consortium as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $22,179 and $22,177, respectively

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Refundable advances from program grants and contract advances at June 30, 2015 and 2014
totaled $41,887 and $70,122, respectively.
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

The Resource Center maintains cash balances that, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000 per bank at June 30, 2015 and 2014. The Resource Center has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk

with these accounts. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, there were no cash balances in excess of
FDIC coverage.

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - DESIGNATED

By vote of the Board of Directors funds have been designated for long term building
maintenance. Unrestricted net assets designated by the board was $12,219 and $9,210 at
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Organization has entered into a one year operating lease agreement to rent satellite
office space. The Organization also rents various other office space on a month to month

basis. Rent expense under these agreements aggregated $7,480 and $7,250 for the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases is as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Amount
2016 $ 6,000
Total $___6,000
INVESTMENTS

Investments held in the form of mutual funds at Bank of America are stated at fair value.
Realized gains and losses are determined on the specific identification method. Gains and
losses (realized and unrealized) are reported in the statement of activities as increases or
decreases to unrestricted net assets, except for those investments for which their use is
restricted. Information on investments at June 30, 2015 and 2014 is presented as follows:

Excess
(Deficiency)
of Market
Market Over Investment
Year Investment Cost Value Cost Income
2015 Bank of America $152,575 $177.349 $24,774 $4.,243

2014 Bank of America $158,775 $188,804 $30,029 $4,139




PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

In 2007, the Resource Center established a permanent endowment fund for the organization
with the intent of accumulating donations and interest earnings of one million dollars. During
2013 the Resource Center began taking allowable distributions from the fund. Per the laws of
the State of New Hampshire (RSA 292-B:4), 7% of the fair market value of the endowment
fund, calculated on the basis of fair market value determined at least quarterly and averaged

over a period of not less than three years may be appropriated for operating account
expenditures.

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB ASC (ASC 958-205 and subsections) intends to
improve the quality of consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets associated with
donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are subject to an enacted version
of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has

adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also requires additional financial statement disclosures on
endowments and related net assets.

The Resource Center has followed an investment and spending policy to ensure a total return
(income plus capital change) necessary to preserve the principal of the fund and at the same

time, provide a dependable source of support to help build healthier families and stronger
communities.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, the Resource Center only invests the
fund in cash and mutual funds. The Resource Center has taken a risk adverse approach to
managing the endowment fund in order to mitigate financial market risk such as interest rate,
credit and overall market volatility, which could substantially impact the fair value of the
endowment fund at any given time.

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 the endowment fund was entirely composed of permanently
restricted net assets.

Fund activity for June 30, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Activity
for the
Balances Year Balances
as of Ended as of

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015

Permanent gifts $175,809 $ - $175,8089
Investment earnings 29,773 4,243 34,016
Realized gain 17,655 7,296 24,951
Transfer to unrestricted (26,961) (14,629) (41,590)
Investment expense (16,440) (5,183) (21,623)
Unrealized gain (loss) 30,028 (5,255) 24,774
$209,865 $(13,528) 1 37
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Activity

for the
Balances Year
as of Ended
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014
Permanent gifts $175,809 $ -
Investment earnings 25,634 4,139
Realized gain 7,796 9,859
Transfer to unrestricted (13,123) (13,838)
Investment expense (12,284) (4,156)
Unrealized gain 18,022 12,007

01.854 $ 8011
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Balances
as of
June 30, 2014

$175,808
29,773
17,655
(26,961)
(16,440)
30,029

209,865
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® Jen Buteau

¢ Motivated, dependable, and committed employee

¢ Strong and proven training and interpersonal skilis

¢ Ability to lead and motivate teaim members

e Expert advocacy, communication and case planning skills

e Successful leadership and managerial experiences

* Proficient computer skilis inciuding MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook

» Grant writing, reporting, Opinion-Editorial pieces and press releases

* Ability to multi-task, he versatile and deat with crisis situations while maintaining excellent time-
management skills and professionalism

¢« Adhere to budgets; analyze and incorporate ways to decrease expenses and increase revenue

+ Sensitivity to and clinical experience with people struggling with addiction, mental health issues,
poverty, diversity, cognitive impairments, or otherwise marginalized individuals

¢ In-depth knowledge and clinical use of Motivational! Interviewing & Dialectical Behavier Therapy

9 Professional Experience -

. 'Se“ptember 2015 - present " The f-:amily Resource Centef— Director of F:';imily Sizpport Programs

s Responsible for the overall management of multiple programs for children and families at non-
profit agency covering northern New Hampshire

March 2013 ~ September 2015 CASA of NH Training & Recruitment Coordinator
* Spread increased awareness about CASA of NH and recruiting more quality volunteers to
advocate for children who have been abused / neglected

May 2012 - March 2013 Tri-County Cap, Berlin, NH Employment Specialist
+ Coordinated meaningful work experiences through creating and matching volunteer
oppertunities to individuals receiving welfare in an effort to increase their likelihood of acquiring
gainful employment and provided job coaching and reinforcement te clients

2005- 2012 Northern Human Services, Berlin, NH Case Manager

e Through community based services, assisted people with a major mental illness manage their
social, emotional, housing, financial, legal, vocational and medical needs through assessment,
coordinating services, advocacy, crisis intervention, referrals, service monitaring and outreach

s Facilitated evidence based practice group, “llilness, Management and Recovery.” This site was
awarded highest fidelity in state with this pilot group

s Carried a niche caseload of clients who histarically were unsuccessfui of engaging in traditional
treatment by effectively employing interventions based on evidence based practices specific to
the individuals

2000 - 2005 The Wentworth, lackson, NH Director of Sales, 2002 - 2005
Dining Room Manager, 2000 -2002
e QOversaw the execution of successful, quality events by effective coordination and supervision of
multiple departments. Developed marketing strategies to brand hotel as an elegant country inn
and premiere venue for luxurious weddings and upscale corporate retreats
e Hired, trained and managed all dining room, event and bar staff. Developed and implemented
appropriate training procedures to acquire and maintain prestigious four diamond status
restaurant




1998 - 2000 Center of Hope, Conway, NH Support Facilitator 1t

» Mentored direct care staff, handled crisis situations and trained, supervised and supported staff
in a residential behaviora! unit

¢ Created schedules, assisted in developing and implementing behavior change plans, was
responsible for accounts payable and receivable, invoices and purchasing
» Interfaced with community agencies and individuals on behalf of clients

O Educatlon

BA Psychoiogy, Rlvser Co?lege Nashua NH 03060

Seminars: Motivationa!l Interviewing Dialectical Behavior Therapy
Supported Employment Assertive Community Treatment

Hness Management and Recovery  Treatment of Co-Occurring Disorders

O Community Involvement

2014 Co-recigient of the Gus Raoney Award Therapeutlc foster care prowde%r
Bicgger for Stay, Work, Play N.H. Cutreach volunteer for Believe in Books
Soccer coach for North Country Soccer League  Former Berlin Planning Board Member

Coach / coordinator for Young Athlete Program  Former Berlin City Councilor

len Buteau #275 Willard Street, Berlin, NH 03570 « 603.748.3676




PEGGY LEE BRICKLEY

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

Family Resource Center 2014-Present
Administrative Assistant

Provide administrative services to the Family Support Program:

Prepare Medicaid billing and correspondences; Support Executive Director with
grants and RFP needs; Prepare time sheets, pay stubs and weekly deposits

Mt. Madison Inn & Suites 2014-2015
Front Desk/Guest Services

Make and confirm resecvations; Greet guests as they arrive; Handie guest check-
ins and check-outs appropriately; Take calls and provide information; Clean and
maintain lobby and common areas; Balance cash at end of shift and generate
accounting reports

Old Republic Title Insurance Company 2011-2012
Title Examiner

Examine, analyze and evaluate records on titles of real estate properties;

Assign title search orders to title searchers and monitor orders

to insure turnaround requirements are met: Examine title documents filed

in the public records and prepare final title report for real estate transactions

Bank of America 2010-2011
Customer Assistance/Collections

Self Employed 2004-2010
Title Searcher

Data preparation, filing documents necessary for property settlements.
review of titles for liens, encumbrances and judgments, document

all right of ways, easements and recorded surveys affecting property,
recording of applicable mortgage and deed transfers and parcel plots

Delaware Title Services, LLC 2007-2008
Title Searcher

First American Title Insurance Company 2001-2004
Title Searcher

Gregory W. Williams, PA 1998-2001
Title Searcher

Hudson, Jones, Jaywork, Williams & Liguori 1996-1998
Title Seacher

Delaware Technical & Community College Georgetown, DE 2000
Associates Applied Science Business Admin - Graduated Magna cum Laude

Mt. Pleasant High School Wilmington, DE 1986
Diploma




Family Support Waorker

Job Description

Responsible to: Healthy Families Supervisor

Family Support Worker Responsibilities:

Maintain a clean organized work space

Maintain all client files in their work space in a locked cabinet

Complete a Family Resource Center time sheet on a weekly basis and have it turned into the
Director of Family Support Services no later than Monday morning at 10:00 am

Provide a copy of their drivers’ license, car insurance, and criminal record check in their
personnel file. ‘

Family Support Worker will attend all required staff meeting and training days

Submit a weekly calendar to the Director Family Support Services

Attend weekly check-in with Director Family Support Worker

Attend monthly clinical supervision with clinical supervisor

Attend any re-certifications to maintain curricula re(;]uirements to be a practitioner within the
confines of Family Resource Center policy and budget. '

Family support Worker will maintain and supply the Director of Family Support Services with a
weekly calendar.

Attend and participate in any community collaboration groups or initiatives assigned by the
Director of Family Support Services or Administrator of MCH programs.

Family Support Worker will represent them in a professional manner at all times.

Family Support Staff will maintain professional attire.

Maintain client confidentiality

Attend community groups or board meetings as assigned by the Director of Family Support
Services.

Alt equipment issued by the Family Resource Center (Cell phone and laptop} is to be used for
professional use only.

Family Support Staff will review and answer e-mails on a daily basis

Family Support Staff will follow all Family Resource Center policies as set by the Board of
Directors.

Program Requirements:

*

Receive referrals from Administrator MCH programs or Director Family Support Services

Family Support Workers are to maintain and arrange all of their client appointments to meet the
required guidelines of all contracts and grants.

Call all referrals and make intake appointments

Complete ali intake paperwork and signed releases during first appointment

Enter all new clients into required databases for each program

Maintain a clean organized client record log with all required program paperwork




Complete monthly report forms by the 5™ of each month
Maintain client progress note for each visit conducted
Maintain client progress note for each correspondence with client.

Complete a closing form for each client ending services with the Family Resource Center Family
Support Program.




VALERIE CHRISTOPHER

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Over 15 years™ of professional experience in the office management field.

WORK OF EXPERIENCE

December 2015 - present Home Visitor Family Resource Center at Gorham
Support families to have positive, nurturing relationships.

2013 -2014  Property Manager, AHEAD
. Managed low income housing. -

2009 - 2013  Case Manager/Service Coordinator, Northern Human Services
Provide direct service. case management and family supports to a dually
diagnosed population.

1996 - present  Personnel/Office Manager - Albrite Signs
Oversee all aspects of daily operation, bookkeeping

1994 - 1996  Financial Assistance Social Worker Dept of Transitional Assistance
Intake and Assessment of individual and family financial situations.
Counseled and/ or referred to appropriate agency for assistance.

1990-1994 Employment Counselor, Department of Employment & Training
Stationed in Public Assistance Office as a pilot program to provide
counseling and training to assist individuals and families to gain

independence from the public assistance programs.

EDUCATION
1987 University of Massachusetts
Bachelors in Human Service Management
REFERENCES

Provided upon request




Annette Lucas

Administrative Assistant, Billing Specialist and Medical Assistant

Wit

WORK EXPERIENCE

Family Support Worker
Family Resource Center Gorham - Gorham, NH - January 2016 to Present

Responsibitities
Visit individual Families in their home 1o work on topics such as positive discipline or infant growth and
deveiopment.

Maintain and arrange client appointments to meet the required guidelines of all contracts and grants.

Maintain a clean organized client record log with all required program paperwork.

Property Manager/Collections
Century 21 Winn Associates - Littlleton, NH™ - August 2014 to May 2015

Responsibitities

List and advertise all rental properties available.

Show properties to potential tenants.

Verify references and complete Cradit Checks.

Maintain compliance to alf lease agreemerts.

Review current leases and make adjustments to rental fees.
Provide Move-In and Move-Out inspections and document findings.
Posilive dialogue between Property Management and Tenants.
Oversee daily operations of Front Office

Collect, record and foliow-up on Rental Fees due

Communication with prospective visitors, including Home Buyers & Sellers.
Office Procedures and Fractices.

Administrative Assistant, Billing Specialist and Medical Assistant
Tri-County CAP, Inc - Whitefield, NH - June 2009 to February 2011

Staff Guardian

+ Meet with ward and/or treaiment team according to ward's needs and programs policy.

Advocate and assure that treatment is provided in the ward's best interest, in the least

restrictive setting and with the uimost confidentiality.

+ Provide informed consent as necessary to make appropriate decisions for appointed ward.

« Maintain records and documentation in a manner that reflects current status of ward.

- Complete guardianship reports and plans accurately in accordance with State of NH and program
requirements.

- Demonstrate and implement a working knowledge of stale standards and regulations.

Billing Specialist/Administrative Assistant
North Country Oral Surgery - Litleton, NH - May 2006 to June 2009

Patient Scheduling and Medical Records.




» Prepare and maintain medical records.

» Daily contact with medical insurance companies to verify and confirm benefits,
+ Daily billing to multiple insurance companies including Medicaid.

+ Daily recording and reconciliation of Account Receivabies.

Dental Assistant
David Taylor, D.D.5 - Littleton, NH - June 2005 to May 2006

Assist the Doctor in all aspects of dental procedures and patient care.
+ Set-up dental kits and maintain all aspects of proper sanitation.
+ Provide friendly and calm communication to assure patient comfort.

ADDITIONAL iNFORMATION

Although my resume does not reflect my Food Service Experience, | have a total of 6 years experience in
the industry. My experience has been at the School Food Service level, § began as a Dietary Aide and was
promoted to Food Service Director shortly afterwards. § also have experience warking in a nursing home facility
presently and in the past. Along with this experience | have several years working as a cook in the Hospitality
business. | would fove to speak to you further regarding the Food Service Director position you are currently
seeking. Thank you.




Gina Belanger

Experience

April 2015 — present Family Resource Center Gorham, NH

North Country Outreach Coordinator for “Ask the Question”
Identification of and outreach to providers in the region
Deliver presentations to local/regional organization and groups
Help identify agencies to receive military culiure training

Provider data, assessment and evaluations

September 2012 - ongoing Family Resource Center Gorham, NH

Y

Licensed Practical Nurse for Home Visiting Programs
Administration and coordination of nursing home visits for Home Visiting NH and Healthy Families
America

Pre-natal and post-natal visits, nursing assessment, screening and identification for mother and infant
Tracking, reporting and data analysis

Supervision and audit for program nurses

April 2008 - 2015 Family Resource Center Gorham, NH

Maternal and Child Health Programs Administrator

Licensed Practical Nurse and Family Educator

Administration and management for Maternal and Child Health NH funded programs including the
Home Visiting NH for Berlin/Gorham plus Child and Family Health Support Programs for Berlin, Gorham
and Colebrook NH

Supervision of 3 home visitors

Coordinator of services with colfaborating partners and oversight of budgets and Medicaid billing

November 2000 — 2008 Family Resource Center Gorham, NH

Community Coordinator implementing family strengthening programs

Coordinator for youth leadership and training programs

Participant in the Coos County Coalition activities and community awareness campaigns and events
Community Coordinator and Master Trainer for the Frameworks Youth Suicide Prevention project
Family Readiness Lead for the New Hampshire National Guard Deployment year 2003-2005

April 1990-2001 Coos County Nursing Home Berlin, NH

*

Charge Nurse for a 50 bed geriatric unit
Staffing and management of 10 ticensed Nursing Assistants
Medication administration, daily nursing assessments, implementation of physicians order, primary care

for residents




* Accurate documentation in resident medical records, physician awareness reports

* Worked with an interdisciplinary team for resident care, quarterly reporting and the Minimum Data Set
Assessment

s Management and implementation of comprehensive Plans of Care for residents

s Resident and Staff Advocate

1987 — 1989 School Lunch Program Assistant Gorham School District Gorham, NH
e Preparation and administration of 200 youth meals daily

1977-1980 St Vincent de Paul Nursing Home Berlin, NH
Licensed Practical Nurse
¢ Medication administration, daily nursing assessments, implantation of physician’s orders, resident care
Education
s 1976-1977 Diploma Nursing Degree Berlin Vocational Technical College
e 1975 Graduated High School Gorham, NH
Volunteer .
e Past president of Local Union #3421 AFSME Berlin NH
e Executive Board Member Coos County Coalition
s  Member Berlin Area Health Consortium
¢ Executive Board member Androscoggin Valley Community Partners
¢ Past Board member Androscoggin Valley Cancer Fund
e Past Advisory Board for UNH Coop Extension
s Present board member for Northern Granite United Way
Accomplishments
e Completed the Dare to Be YOU Train the Trainer Series 2000
» Completed the Strengthening Families Program Train 2003
 Successfully implemented, pianned and ran over 20 Dare To Be You Programs in the North Country
e Successfully implemented, planned and coordinated 15 Strengthening Family Program
¢ Participated and completed the North Country Leadership Program 2004
o Participated in the Family Support Unit for the NH National Guard 2003 — 2005
¢ Completed the Frameworks Youth Suicide Prevention Program as a Master Trainer 2004 — 2006
e American Health Association Basis Life Saver Coordinator/Instructor and Trainer 2003 —~ 2015
e Executive Chair for the Androscoggin Valley Community Partners 2015 and ongoing

Activities:
Crafting in different mediums, painting, stained glass and knitting
Enthusiastic about camping, outdoor activities and spending time with my family and friends.




Kristen H.J. Kennett

Objective

To obtain a position within the Family Resource Center at Gorham as a family support worker.

Work Experience

08/2G15- Present Family Resource Center Lancaster, NH

Family Support Worker

= Provide in home support to at risk families

*  Create support plans based on family’s needs including: budgeting
assistance, parenting skills, child development, and referrals to outside
services.

»  Use reflective and active listening skills, practice high confidentiality, record
keeping, and provide creativity and flexibility with planning for each family.

10/2013-10/2015 Easter Seals Lancaster, NH
Residential Instructor Shift Charge

»  Teach social, recreational, emotional management, and independent living
skills

* Provide direct supervision of 1:1 or group clients

» Develop or coordinate and participate in on-campus or in the community
activities

s Trained in: Diabetic Care, Medication Passing, CPR/First Aid, Therapeutic
Crisis Intervention

» Keeping a safe and healthy environment for all clients

* Currently a Residential Instructor and Shift Charge

09/2012- 10/2013 Northway Bank Berlin, NH

Customer Service Representative
»  Responsible for being organized, confidential, and professional
= Responsible for superior customer service
»  Responsible for processing transactions efficiently and accurately
= Use of a computer system with multiple programs on a daily basis




Fducation

Current- May 2016 Plymouth State University Plymouth, NH

= Currently completing Bachelors of Science in Social Work
» Estimated Graduation Date: May 2016

= (Consistent Dean’s List Recipient

»  Cumulative GPA: 3.61

2010-2012 White Mountains Community College Berlin, NH

*  Graduated in May of 2012 with dual Associates Degrees in Teacher Preparation and Special -
Education

*  Cumulative GPA of 3.68

*  Graduated as a Presidents List recipient

Certifications and Training:

» CPR/ First Aid certified

»  (Complex Trauma and Attachment, 3 hour training

= Mental Health First Aid USA, 8 hour training

» Standards of Quality for Family Strengthening & Support, 8 hour training

References

Available upon request




VITAE

Scott Meyer
Professor Emeritus of Social Work

EDUCATION:

1987 Ph.D. Boston University Sociology
Concentrations: Organizational Behavior, Medical Sociology. and Mental Health
1976 M.S.W. Adelphi University Social Work
1975 B.S.W. Adelphi University Social Work
1974 AA. Queensboro Community Collége

WORK/TEACHING EXPERIENCE:

9/87 - Present: Plymouth State University, Plymouth, N.H. Faculty member in Social
Work and Sociology. Taught courses in Introduction to Social Work, Introduction to
Sociology, Social Research Methods, Mental Health and Society, Human Behavior in the
Social Environment, Sociology of Healthcare, Social Work Administration, and Socio
Economic Aspects of Health, and Human Services, Families. Schools and the
Community as well as Serving as Director of Field Education teaching the Social Work
Seminar and Practicum. Served as Interim Dept. Chair Spring 1994, Falls of 2000, 2007
and 2014. Served as Coordinator of Institutional Research 88-90.

11/84 - 6/87: Boston University School of Medicine, Division of Psychiatry, Boston.
MA. Executive Director of Social Rehabilitation Services at the Dr. Solomon Carter
Fuller Mental Health Center. Responsible for fiscal, administrative, policy and planning.
supervisory and clinical functions of 12 MH/MR programs with a $1.5 million budget

with 110 employees.

PROFESSIONAL __ ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP, LICENSURE AND
PARTICIPATION:

Pi Gamma Mu - International Social Science Honor Society.

American Board of Examiners in Clinical Social Work - Board Certified Diplomate in
Clinical Social Work #011708.

New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker #226.

National Association of Social Workers.




Scott Meyer 2-

Consultation Experience includes:

Belknap County CoRe Coalition, Meredith. NH

New Hampshire Employee Assistance Program, Concord. NH

Pemi Baker Home Health and Hospice, Plymouth, NH

Pemi-Bridge House, Plymouth, NH, Community Health and Hospice, Laconia, NH
RI Dept. of Mental Health, Retardation and Hospitals, Cranston, Rl
Mass. Rehabilitation Commission, Boston, MA

Taylor Community, Laconia. NH

Androscoggin Valley Hospital, Berlin, NH

Smith College, Northampton. MA

Speare Memorial Hospital, Plymouth, NH

Hillsboro School System, Hillsboro, NH

Connery Psychological Services, Plymouth, NH

New Hampshire Division of Children, Youth And Families, Concord. NH
Belknap County Citizens Council on Children and Families, Laconia. NH
Hinsdale School District, Hinsdale. NH

Morgan Stanley, Manchester, NH

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority, Bedford, NH

St. Joseph’s Hospital, Nashua. NH

Brewster Academy, Wolfeboro. NH

New Hampshire Veteran’s Home, Tilton, NH

UNH Cooperative Extension, Durham, NH

Goldenview Healthcare Center, Meredith, NH

Lakes Region Community Services Council, Laconia. NH

Types_of training, consultation and program evaluation areas include:
Leadership Skills

Diversity in the Workforce

Effective Employee Supervision

Management Skills

Coping with Death and Loss in the Workplace

Enhancing Quality of Work Life/ Improving Employee Motivation
Stress Management

Communication Skills

Customer Service Skills

Coping with Difficult Clients and Colleagues

Time Management and Managing Multiple Priorities

Caregiver Stress

Community Service

Past President of the Plymouth Regional Clinic that provides free health care to
qualifying individuals in Plymouth and surrounding towns.

Prior Board member and Treasurer of NH Chapter of the National Association of Social
Workers.

Past Commissioner serving on the New Hampshire Commission on the Status of Men.




Family Resource Center at Gorham
Key Personnel Grafton

Namg Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Jen Buteau Director of Family Supports | $35,490 27.8% $9.866.22

Peggy Brickley Programs Administrator $27,775 28% $7.777

Open Family Support Specialist $25,683.78 100% $25,683.78

Valeric Christopher | Family Support Specialist $10,000 50% $5,000

(per diem)

Annctte Lucas | Family Support Specialist $27,300 | 85% $23,205

Gina Belanger Nurse $24,000 28% $6,720

Kristen Kennett Family Support Specialist $25,480 35% $8.918

Dr. Scott Meyer Clinical Director $7,000 19% $1.330




FORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 5/8/13)

Subject: Home Visiting New Hampshire — Health Families America {17-DHHS-DFHS-MCH-01- 04)
Fotice. This agrccrrent and all of its nr.r_acl.n chits shall becor e public upan subrrssion e Governgr and
Excevtive Councl for approsal, Any inforreation shat is private, conficientiol ar proprictary euss
b clearly identificd to the agency 8 1d agrecd 1 0 writng pror Lo sighing the conmract,
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION,
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
VNA at HCS, Inc. 312 Marlboro Street, PO Box 564
Keene, NH 03431
1.5 Contractor Phone Number 1.6 Account Number: 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
603-352-2253 05-95-90-902010- . | June 30, 2018 $272,115
58963 f
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin 603-271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Cathy J. Sorenson, President/BEO

%// \ﬁwwd)f

1.13 Ackﬁg‘&]edgé'ment: State of NH ,County of Cheshire

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be tl?—e petson whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Pubjic ot
i

[Seal]
1.12.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

tice of the Peace

KAREN M. CAMPBELL. Notary Public
My Commission Expires June 4, 2019

Karen M. Campbell, Notary
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

WM@ Marcﬂ( {AﬂJ—ZBvLm ‘Lﬂ \ qu Drceter

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

T sy sl

1.18 Aple by the Govem('%ld Executl\/g\Counl:ll
By:

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment unti! such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Centractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the contractor. In addition, the Contractor shall
comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60}, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials
Date ;




Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™).

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10, TERMINATION., In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contraclor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repont
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12.  ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whaole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 4.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials Ui
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,
Contracter shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{“Workers’ Compensation”).

152 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials :
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

11 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisiative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

1.3 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.4 The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) requires all grantees
receiving funds through this program to use the following acknowledgement and
disctaimer on all products produced by HRSA grant funds:

“This project is/was supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount (specify grant number, title,
total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental sources).
This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and should
not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any
endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”

2. Scope of Work

2.1 The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to pregnant women and
newly parenting families with children up to the age three (3) in Cheshire County
to improve health and development outcomes for at-risk children through
evidence-based home visiting programs, with priority given to individuals who:

2.1.1  Are first time mothers.
2.1.2 Have low incomes.
2.1.3 Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

214 Have a history of child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with
| child welfare services.

215 Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment.
2.1.6 Are users of tobacco products in the home.
2.1.7 Have or have had children with low student achievement.

2.1.8 Have children with developmental delays or disabilities.

VNA at HCS Contractor Initials:
Exhibit A — Scope of Services ? z
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services
1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

1.2

1.3

1.4

Hampshire General Court or federa! or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that
are applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of
funds.

The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
service they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) requires all grantees
receiving funds through this pregram to use the following acknowledgement and
disclaimer on all products produced by HRSA grant funds:

“This project is/was supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount (specify grant number, title,
total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental sources).
This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and should
not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any
endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”

2. Scope of Work

2.1

VNA at HCS

The Contractor shall provide home visiting services to pregnant women and
newly parenting families with children up to the age three (3) in Strafford County
to improve health and deveiopment outcomes for at-risk children through
evidence-based home visiting programs, with priority given to individuals who:

2.1.1 Are first time mothers.
2.1.2 Have low incomes.
2.1.3 Are less than twenty-one (21) years of age.

2.1.4 Have a history of child abuse or neglect or have had interactions with
child welfare services.

2.1.5 Have a history of substance abuse or need substance abuse treatment.
2.1.6 Are users of tobacco products in the home.

2.1.7 Have or have had children with low student achievement.

2.1.8 Have children with developmental delays or disabilities.

Contractor Initials: Cp
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

22

2.3

24

25

VNA at HCS

2.1.9 Are in families that include individuals who are serving or have formerly
served in the armed forces, including such families that have members of
the armed forces who have had multiple deployments outside of the
United States.

The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services using a two-step process.
The Contractor shall

2.2.1 Accept referrals from referral sources that have been screened for
services.

2.2.2 Utilize the Parent Survey on the first visit/intake to gather comprehensive
information about the family and prioritize clients for services.

The Contractor shall maintain enrcliment at a minimum of 85% capacity, through
monthly reviews of caseloads. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1 Review the capacity report on a monthiy basis.

2.3.2 Implement strategies around outreach when enroliment rates fall below
85% capacity.

The Contractor shall ensure program staff establish a relationship with each
family in order to keep families interested and connected over time. The
Contractor shall:

2.41 Provide flexible service delivery, including late afterncon and early
evening visits for families who have no other option but to meet during
those times.

2.4.2 Foster respectful parinerships between parents and home visitors.

2.4.3 Engage all family members and promote the involvement of all family
members, including fathers/father figures, while explaining the importance
of their role within the family.

2.4.4 Remain consistent with visits and supports, in order to build on existing
strengths while encouraging and coaching families to build on skills,
including but not limited to communication skills that are needed for self-
sufficiency and to advocate for their children.

The Contractor shall provide home visiting services that include home visits by
nurses during the prenatal and post-partum. The Contractor shall ensure the
nurse:

2.51 Conducts one home visit per trimester in order to focus on specific
pregnancy health issues to ensure the mother’s understanding of:

2.5.1.1 All health and nutritional recommendations.
2.5.1.2 8Signs and symptoms of premature labor.

2.5.1.3 The effects of harmful substances including, but not limited to,
tobacco, alcohol, and drugs, on the unborn child.

2.5.1.4 Risk factors including but not limited to:

Contractor Initials: G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

25141 History of depression.
25142 Symptoms of postpartum depression.
2.5.1.5 Importance of receiving early treatment for depression.

2.5.2 Conducts one (1) nurse visit within three (3) months of the baby’s birth in
order to conduct a maternal and newborn health assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.2.1 The Edinburgh screening for postpartum depression
2.5.2.2 Assessment of breastfeeding success, as applicable.

2.5.3 Conducts a minimum of two (2) additional visits prior to the baby turning
one, which will focus on;

2.5.3.1 The maternal-infant attachment.
2.5.3.2 Family planning.

2.5.3.3 Child health and safety issues, including but not fimited to, well-
child visits and immunizations.

2.5.4 Administers the Edinburgh screening at regular intervals, which may be
administered by either the nurse or home visitor staff:

2.5.4.1 Prenatal visit.
2.5.4.2 Within three (3) months postpartum.

2543 Follow up within two (2) weeks from the date of receiving
positive results.

2.6 The Contractor shall collaborate with families to ensure participation based on
parent availability. The Contractor shall:

26.1 Use text messaging to communicate the scheduling of visits, as
appropriate and preferred by the family.

2.6.2 Reach out to families on a weekly basis using hand written notes at the
family home to respectfully reach out to families who may not be home at
the scheduled visit time.

2.6.3 Explain the HFA level system to families at enrollment, emphasizing the
first six (6) months of involvement with a family, after a baby's birth, is
critical for:

2.6.3.1 Parent-infan{ relationship development.
2.6.3.2 Newborn care and safety.
2.6.3.3 Adjustment to parenthood.

2.7 Provide home visiting services in accordance with HFA Best Practice Standards.
The Contractor shall:

2.7.1 Implement Creative Qutreach to reach out to families for ninety (90) days
when necessary as described in the HFA Model.

VNA at HCS Contractor Initials: {)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.7.2 Create Family Goal Plans with the family that show family-identified
measurable goals broken down into small steps.

2.7.3 Work to attain HFA Accreditation. The Contractor shall;

2.7.3.1 Complete Step 2 — The Site Visit in the Accreditation process by
January 1, 2016 and submit a copy of the Accreditation Site Visit
Report (SVR) to MCH.

|

; 27.3.2 Complete Step 3 — Response Period in the Accreditation
} process within the time period indicated in the Accreditation SVR
| and submit a copy of final approval by HFA to MCH.

2.7.4 Implement, at minimum, one of the following curricula for home visits:

i 2.7.41 Parents as Teachers (PAT) as an annually trained approved
| user.

2.7.4.2 Growing Great Kids {GGK) with certification training.
2.7.5 Develop creative outreach efforts to engage families to receive services.

2.7.6 Provide services that support the parent, parent-chiid interaction and child
development.

2.7.7 Coordinate with other local service providers including health care
providers, social workers and early interventionists.

2.7.8 Collaborate with other early childhood serving agencies including those
that provide home visiting and family support services.

2.7.9 Ensure the twelve (12) critical elements that make up the essential
components of the Healthy Families America Model (HFA) are addressed
in agency policies.

2.8  The Contractor shall provide case management services, which shall include, but
is not limited to:

2.8.1 Entering participant health data into the Home Visiting Data System
(ETO).

2.8.2 Documenting case notes for all home visits.
2.8.3 Making referrals to other agencies, as appropriate.
2.8.4 Following up on referrals to other agencies.

2.9 The Contractor shall develop a broad-based advisory group with a variety of
stakeholders to collect input that will assist with the planning, implementation and
assessment of sit-related activities.

2.10 The Contractor shall develop a release of information authorization form for
Department approval. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1 Ensure the Department-approved release of information authorization
form is properly executed by program participants and maintained in the
client's case file.

VNA at HCS Contractor Initials: (_/1[ ?
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

2.10.2 Maintain the release of information authorization form in the client file in
accordance with federal regulations and state laws.

2.11  The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to collect participant and
program data and other pertinent information used for the purpose of program
evaluation. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1 Ulilize staff and family surveys to solicit feedback on programs and
services offered.

2.11.2 Review program files on a quarterly basis to determine whether each
family is receiving the appropriate level of services, in accordance with
the HFA model.

2.11.3 Evaluate the progress of program participant, performance of programs
and services provided on a quarterly basis.

3. Staffing

3.1 The Contractor shall hire staff in accordance with the HFA Best Practice
Standards. The Contractor shall providing staff training that includes, but is not
limited to:

3.1.1 Cultural Competency

3.1.2 Reporting Child Abuse

3.1.3 Home Safety

3.1.4 Substance Abuse

3.1.5 Managing Crisis Situations
3.1.6 Domestic Violence

3.1.7 Responding to Mental Health
3.1.8 Drug-exposed infants

3.1.9 Community services availability

3.2  The Contractor shall ensure staff receive supervision in accordance with the
requirements of the HFA Best Practice Standards, including, but not limited to:

3.2.1 Weekly individual supervision that inciudes, but is not limited to,
discussions that reflect brainstorming to overcome barriers to:

3.2.1.1 Completing home visits.
3.2.1.2 Referrals.
3.2.2 Bi-weekly team meetings for support, reflection and case review.

3.3 The Contractor shall ensure direct service staff supervisors and program
managers meet the minimum qualifications outlined in the HFA Best Practice
Standards.

VNA at HCS Contractor Initials: C}2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

3.4 The Contractor shall ensure Registered Nurses (RN’s) have a minimum of two
(2) years of maternal and child health nursing experience and are currently
licensed to practice in accordance with RSA 326-B.

3.5 The Contractor shall ensure staff attend meetings and trainings as required by
the Division of Public Health Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, which
shall include but not be limited to:

‘ 3.5.1 Maternal Child Health (MCH) Agency Directors’ Meetings.
| 3.5.2 MCH Home Visiting Meetings.
3.5.3 MIECHYV Staff Training.
3.5.4 MCH Home visiting CQI coaching calls.
4 Reporting Requirements

4.1 The Contractor shall provide a monthly caseload analysis report for each
individual staff member who provides home visits.

4.2 The Contractor shall complete and submit data reports using form Exhibit A-1, on
a quarterly basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the unmet
targets for the performance measures outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance
Measures.

4.3 The Contractor shall provide a narrative report that includes, but is not limited to:
4.3.1 Highlights of program activities conducted.
4.3.2 Goals for the following quarter.
4.3.3 Goals met for the previous quarter.

44  The Contractor shall complete and submit Exhibit A-1, Reports on an annual
basis, detailing action plans for improvement to meet the performance measures
outlined in Exhibit A-2, Performance Measures along with a narrative that
includes, but is not limited to:

4.4.1 Information regarding accomplishments and challenges for the program.
4.4.2 Systemic barriers.
4.4.3 Action plans to address barriers.

4.4 4 Family satisfaction survey results that demonstrate a minimum of eighty
(80) percent rating of consumer satisfaction each year.

4.5 The Contractor shall complete three (3) quarterly reports and one (1) annual report
as described in Section 4, Reporting, according to the foliowing schedule:

451 Quarter 1, July — September DUE 10/15/2016
452 Quarter 2, October — December DUE 1/15/2017

4.5.3 Quarter 3, January — March DUE 4/15/2017
4.5.4 Quarter 4, April ~ June Due 7/15/2017
455 Annual, July — June DUE 7/31/2017
VNA at HCS Contractor Initials: ('40
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

5. Deliverables

5.1 The Contractor shall complete and submit the Inputs, Activities, and Evaluation sections
of Exhibit A-1 within thirty (30) days from the contract effective date.

5.2  The contractor shall maintain at ieast 85% of HFA defined capacity based on the
number of Home visitors listed in the staffing plan.

53 The Contractor shall complete a minimum of three (3) nurse visits after a baby's
birth prior to the baby’s first (1%} birthday

5.4  The Contractor shall ensure each pregnant program participant receives a
minimum of one (1) nurse visit per trimester.

55 The Contractor shall submit the release of information authorization form in
Section 2.10 to the Department for approval within ten (10) business days from
the contract effective date.

5.6  The Contractor shall attend 100% of meetings, as described in Section 3.5 or
submit an action plan describing the reason for absence and a plan to obtain the
information/materials presented.

VNA at HCS Contractor Initials: ﬂ_/‘l/)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Visiting New Hampshire — Healthy Families America

Exhibit B
Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to supporting funding for this
project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.505 (https /iwww.cfda.gov), U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form
P37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for allowable costs, as
detailed in Exhibits B-1 and B2.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10™) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month along with any monthly and/or quarterly reports due in accordance with
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4 3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Financial Administrator

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

E-mail: dphscontractbiling@dhhs.state.nh.us

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days after the
Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result
in nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
the adjustment of the amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years, related
items, and amendments of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of
both parties and do not required additional approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

VNA at HCS, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials )(l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinaticns shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall inciude all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the perfermance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees aor agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, orat a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

il
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shali be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

7
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department o be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Centract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Pericd, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility {(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

8.2.  Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shali return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
proguced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

.
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17.

18.

19.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEQP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www 0jp.usdojlaboutiocr/pdfs/cert. pdf.

Limited English Proficiency {LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of imited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Contrel and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistieblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

{(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

N
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5.  DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT. NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Cantractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole cr in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language,;

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of natice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but net limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CU/DHHSM 10713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-890, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1890 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out helow is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2.  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it 2 requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

"
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
16. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
312 Marlboro St., Keene, Cheshire, NH 03431

Arborway, PO Box 343, Charlestown, Sullivan,NH 03603
45 Main St., PO Box 496, Peterborough, Hillsboro, NH 03458
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

o lithy sz

Date Cathy, gﬁ Screnson
Presideént/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Chitd Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cangress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 2 Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.}

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upen which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this cenrtification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure,

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

7

ey

Date

thy J. Sorenson
esident/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract}, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. MHowever, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The cedtification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” "proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter inte any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the cavered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erronecus. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Cenrtification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials fzo
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
| principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year pericd preceding this proposal (contract} been convicted of or had
| a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I(b)
of this certification; and
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Yo/l &/%; oy

Date Nfs\meyqz-athy J. Sorenson
Title: v President/CEO
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tohacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indeor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

b/2 ) I, / sd@wwx/

Date Name/, thy J. Sorenson
resident/CEO

Exhibit H = Certification Regarding Contractor Initials !
Environmental Tobacco Smoke b .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above,

Contractor Name: VNA at HCS, Inc.

Vil s dbsunre

Date Name//Gathy J. Sorenson
Title: V President/CEOQ

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials /
Certification of Complianca with requirements pertaining to Federal Nandiscrimination, £qual Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblower protections 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TQ
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;,

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity),

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation,;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 {42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 {UU.S. Department of Justice Regulations — QJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 {Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protecticns, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initiaig
Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblowar protections
627114 4’/
Date CJ

Rev. 10/21/14 Page 1 of 2




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009,

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually 1dentifiable Heaith
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 180.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

1
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initialsf 2

Health Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

l. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PH1 in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials 02é
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shali not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health infermation involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made,;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Contractor Initials 422
Health Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

32014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, bocks, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Desighated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PH! in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

tn the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

4)

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Contractor Initials CQ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
‘ conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) [, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.
)_caesszsz t%i‘: g@ ﬂ“m ;;;wéd VNA at HCS, Inc.

The State F/L«ﬂ Name of the Contractor

W Q g "%}QMCM)

Signatvire of Authorizéq/ Represe tative SignatLﬁ'ff cﬁyAuthorized Representative

M [.l 1 \E ( :( E Cathy J. Sorenson
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Ao Docecter President/CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
elrefre mry 2, 20/
Date ' / [fjle
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Octaber 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

S OONOO~WN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: vNA at HCS, Inc.

s /sz/ / .// V2 A

Date Nameu . hy J. Sorenson
Title! president/CEO

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials __ )
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 4/, 92/
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _ 789867421

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or crganization through periedic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

7
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that VNA AT HCS, INC. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
November 18, 1981. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of April A.D. 2016

g Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




VNA at HCS, Inc.
ABSTRACT OF CORPORATE MINUTES

The following is a true abstract of a vote of the Board of Directors of VNA at HCS, In¢. on June 2,
2016, at which a quorum was polled:

“On motion duly made and seconded, it was voted to authorize the President/CEQ to accept grants
and awards and enter into contracts, and contract amendments from time to time with the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services, Healthy Families America Program, to sign and otherwise fully
execute such acceptances and contracts, and contract amendments or modifications thereto, and any related
documents requested by the Healthy Families America Program; this authorization to continue until revoked
by vote of this governing board.”

1 certify the foregoing vote is still in effect and has not been revoked, rescinded or modified.

I further certify that Cathy Sorenson is the duly elected President/CEO of this corporation and is still

qualified and serving in such capacity.

June 2. 2016
Date Betsy Cotter
VNA at HCS Board Chairperson
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF CHESHIRE

On June 2, 2016, before the undersigned officer personally appeared the person identified in the
foregoing certificate, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the Chairperson of the corporation
identified in the foregoing certificate, and acknowledged that she executed the foregoing certificate.

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

b H (Bl

Karen CampBel], Notady Public

My commission expires:

KAREN M. CAMPBELL. Notary Public
My Commission Expires June 4 2019
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AC/ORD’ DATE (MMW/DDIYYYY
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 3,(2,2016 )

’ THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
TERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

ELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER EONIACT Nancy Wallace, AINS

Kennebunk Savings Insurance _mg”fo Extl: (207) 985-2941 mé Nol: 1207} 985-3122
50 Portland Road ronhEcc nancy .wallacel@kennebunksavings.com

PO Box 770 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NALC #
Kennebunk ME 04043 INSURER A :Philadelphia Indemnity

INSURED INSURER B-Atlantic Charter Insurance Company

Home Healthcare Hospice & Community Svcs., INSURER C :

VNA at HCS Inc. INSURER O :

312 Marlbero St PO Box 564 INSURER E :

Keene NH 03431 INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATENUMBERMaster 2016/2017 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL]SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE tresp | wvp POLICY NUMBER {MM/DDIYYYY) | {MMDDIYYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TG RENTED
A X } CLAIMS-MADE @ OCCUR PREM%ES (Ea occurrence) $ 100,000
X | Employee Benefits X PHPK1437277 1/4/2016 | 1/4/2017 | MEDEXP (Any one persor) | § 5,000
Claims made PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $ 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
X eouer | 5B [x]ioc PRODUGTS - COMPIOP AGG | 3 3,000,000
OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 3,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea accident) 4 1,000,000
a ¥ |anyauto BODILY INJURY (Per persony | §
ALLOWNED | g ; SCHEDULED x PHPK1437288 1/4/2016 | 1/4/2017 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
X % | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE P
HIRED AUTCS AUTOS {Per accident)
$500 ded comp $1000 coll Underinsured motorist 3 1,000,000
UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EAGH OCCURRENCE s 4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE H 4,000,000
A
DED | X | RETENTION $ 10,000 X PHUB526157 1/4/201¢ 1/4/2017 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION x | FER OTH:
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | Sthrure |18
ANY PROPRIETOR/FPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.1. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
B |(Mandatory in NH) WCAO0539604 7/1/2015 | 7/1/2016 | E1. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER § 1,000,000
If yas, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Professional PHPK1437277 1/4/2016 1/4/2017 | Limit of Liability $1,000,000
Crime PHPK1437277 1/4/2016 | 1/4/2017 | $5,000 Ded. $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required}
The Package Policy includes a blanket automatic Additional Insured endorsement that provides Additional

Insured status to the Certificate Holder, only when there is a written contract between the Named Insured
and the Certificate Holder that requires such status, and only with regard to work performed on behalf of
the named insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
reismanfdhhs.state.nh.us

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

State of New Hampshire Department ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

of Health and Human Services
Ruth Eisman

129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301-3857

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Danny Edgecomb/NW ﬁfW

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Afi rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
INS025 2014011
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VALUES AND MISSION STATEMENT

Because we value:

<

<

The worth and dignity of all people and their right to privacy
The right of people to make informed choices

A creative, holistic approach to individuals' and families' needs
Health and wellness throughout life

Access to health care and support services to encourage maximum
independence

A commitment by all staff to acquire and share knowledge through
education and research

Continuous self and agency improvement to meet the changing needs
of individuals and our communities

Collaboration with other providers;

Our mission is;

To provide services which enable people to function throughout life at their
optimal level of health, well-being and independence, according to their
personal beliefs and choices.

Adopted By Board: September 4, 1997

312 Marlooro Street Arborway 45 Main Street
PO Box 564 PO Box 343 PC Box 496
Keene, NH 03431 Charlestown, NH 03603 Peterborough, NH 03458
603-352-2253 + B00-541-4145 603-826-3322 603-532-8353

Fax 603-358-3904 + www.HCSservices.org = info@hcsservices.org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
VNA at HCS, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VNA at HCS, Inc., which comprise the
balance sheet as of June 30, 2015, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangorn, ME e Portiand, M e Manchoston, NHD e Chiarleston, WY
wwvy berrydunn.com




Board of Directors
VNA at HCS, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of VNA at HCS, Inc. as of June 30, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Prior Period Financial Statements
The financial statements as of June 30, 2014 were audited by Brad Borbidge, P.A., who merged with

Berry Dunn McNeil & Parker, LLC as of January 1, 2015, and whose report dated September 22, 2014,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Bessy Dusrn MYl f Furder, L0

Manchester, New Hampshire
November 5, 2015




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Balance Sheets

June 30, 2015 and 2014

ASSETS

2015 2014
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 557,502 $ 661607
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $332,144 and $357,315 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively 2,719,167 2,939,096
Other receivables 481,598 415,210
Prepaid expenses 27,061 23,127
Due from affiliates 4,355,625 4.918,954
Total current assets 8,140,953 8,957 994
Assets limited as to use 25,489 45114
Property and equipment, net 256,438 355,312
Total assets $_8,422.880 $_9,358420
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 189172 3 201,660
Accrued payroll and related expenses 764,341 727,805
Deferred revenue 588,360 547 217
Total current liabilities 1,541.873 1,476,682
Net assets
Unrestricted 6,855,518 7,836,624
Temporarily restricted 6,866 26,456
Permanently restricted 18.623 18.658
Total net assets 6.881.007 7.881.738

Total liabilities and net assets

$_8.422.880 $_9358420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue
Provision for bad debt
Net patient service revenue
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenue
Operating expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Management fees
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Other revenue and gains
Contributions and fundraising income
Net assets released for operations
Investment income, net
Total other revenue and gains

Deficit of revenues over expenses

Net assets released for capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets

201

2014

$14,672,512 $15,377,206

(564,481) _ (287.740)
14,108,031 15,089,466
3,027,860 _2.986.827
17,135,891 18,076,293
12,012,754 12,064,302
2,893,618 3,131,049
381,193 330,038
3054725 _3.045680
18,342,290 18,571,069
1,206.399) 494.776)
204,399 293,438
20,125 71437
769 1,356
225,293 366,231
(981,106)  (128,545)
: 165,816

i ]

(981,106) $ 37,271

-4-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014

Unrestricted net assets
(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses $ (981,106) $ (128,545)

Net assets released for capital acquisition 165,816
Change in unrestricted net assets {981,106) 37.271
Temporarily restricted net assets

Contributions 500 165,816

Reclassification from permanently restricted net assets 35 -

Investment income - 225

Net assets released for operations (20,125) (71,437)

Net assets released for capital acquisition - (165.816)
Change in temporarily restricted net assets {19.590) (71.212)
Permanently restricted net assets

Reclassification to temporarily restricted net assets (35) -
Change in permanently restricted net assets (35) -

Change in net assets (1,000,731) (33,941)
Net assets, beginning of year 7,881,738 7,915 679
Net assets, end of year $_6.881,007 3$_7.881,738

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
(Increase) decrease in the following assets
Temporary investments
Patient accounts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Due from affiliate
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease in assets limited as to use
Capital expenditures
Net cash used by investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2015 2014

$(1,000,731) $  (33,941)
381,193 330,038
564,481 287,740

. 38,487
(344,552) (1,184,336)
(66,388) 182,462
(3,934) 1,255
563,329 (182)
(12,488) 56,920
36,536 794
41,143 (139,837)
158,589 (460,600)
19,625 71,212
(282,319) _ (435.620)
(262,694) _ (364.,408)
(104,105)  (825,008)
661,607 _1.486.615

$_ 557,502 $__ 661,607

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

VNA at HCS, Inc. (the Association), is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New Hampshire
whose primary purpese is to provide home health care and hospice services to residents residing
in the City of Keene and surrounding communities. The sole member of the Association is Home
Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc.

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose primary purposes are to act as a holding company and provide
management services to VNA at HCS, Inc.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions in accordance with the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may
or will be met by actions of the Association and/or the passage of time. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Absent explicit
donor stipulations about how long-lived assets must be maintained, the Association reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the asset is placed in service.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Association. Generally, the donors of these assets permit
the Association to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or
specific purposes.

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal
income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that the
Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to
the financial statements.




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible accounts by analyzing its past history
and identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In addition, balances in excess of 365
days are fully reserved. Management regularly reviews data about revenue in evaluating the
sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable
collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible
accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 357,315 $ 320,768
Provision 564,481 287,740
Write-offs (589,652) (251,183)
Balance, end of year $__332144 $__357.315

The increase in the current year provision is primarily due to Medicare billing inquiries, a home
health industry wide issue.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use includes designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
restricted contributions.




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Patient Service Revenue

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health henefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a fee-for-
service basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount.

Standard charges for services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered
at the net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and
in future periods as final settiements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not
have other third party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's
published sliding fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or
permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations as net assets released from
restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same year as received
are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial statements.

Cost Allocations

The Association operates several related programs. Costs directly attributable to a program are
charged to the respective program services. Management and generai costs of the Association
have been allocated between the programs on the basis of actual direct program costs.




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

(Deficit) Excess Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, are contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired

using contributions which, by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such
assets).

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is as follows:

2015 2014
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment $ 1,602,366 $ 1,527,057
Less accumulated depreciation 1,345,928 1,171,745
Total property and equipment, net $__256.438 $__355.312
Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Tempeorarily and permanently restricted net assets are as follows:
2015 2014
Temporarily restricted
Meal sites $ 2,777 3 3,137
Respite 4,089 6,629
Shea charitable gifts - 16,690
Total $ 6.866 $ 26,456
Permanently restricted
Hospice $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Operations 8,623 8.658
Total $ 18,623 3 18.658

In 2015 the Association reviewed historical data relating to permanently restricted net assets and
reclassified certain gifts to temporarily restricted net assets based upon interpretation of the initial
donor intent.

-10 -




VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

4, Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is as follows:

2015 2014
Medicare $ 9,881,992 $10,452,131
Medicaid 1,111,787 1,221,733
Other third-party payers 1,859,583 1,862,515
Municipalities - fee for service 184,362 149,068
Private pay 1,634,788 1.691.759
Total $14.672.512 $15.377.206

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated with providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred in these activities amounted to
$2,879,336 and $2,704,549 for the years June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and federal and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions
received directly from the public, United Way, municipal appropriations, and investment income
earned from assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from
the State of New Hampshire.

-11 -




VNA AT HCS, INC,
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents advances on episcedic payments that have not yet been earned.
Revenue is recognized over the period in which treatment is provided (80 days) on a straight-line
basis.

Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2015 2014
Program services $15,287,565 $15,525,389
Administrative and general 3,064,725 3.045 680
Total $18.342.290 $18,571.069

Malpractice Insurance

The Association insures its malpractice risks on a claims-made basis. There were no known
malpractice claims outstanding at June 30, 2015 and 2014, nor are there any unasserted claims or
incidents which require loss accrual. The Association intends to renew coverage on a claims-made
basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $119,444 and $112,136 for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

The Association purchased management services from Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community
Services, Inc. amounting to $3,054,725 and $3,045,680 and $219,444 and $73,043 in contract
services for the years ended 2015 and 2014, respectively. The amounts due from Home
Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. for these services was $ 4,355,625 in 2015 and
4,918,954 in 2014.

Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are local residents and
are insured under third-party payer agreements. At June 30, 2015, Medicare and Medicaid
represented 51% and 10% of gross accounts receivable, respectively. No other individua! payor
source exceeded 10% of the gross receivable balance.
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VNA AT HCS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2015 and 2014

10. Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

11. Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management through
November 5, 2015, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Penelope R Vaine '

Objective

Emp'loyment

To use my knowledge, energy and expertise to provide support and
advocacy to those who need it.

{April 2010 — Present) Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community
Services (VNA at HCS, Inc.)

Matemal & Child Health Coordinator
Coordination of program, supervision and scheduling of home visits

{March 2009- Aprit 2010) Home Health Care Hospice and Community
Services

Social Worker Maternal Child Health Program

Responsible for a caseload of 50 children and pregnant women needing
parenting education, health care, connection to community resources
and developmental screenings. Coordinated and collaborated with other
agencies to advocate for each client. Maintained appropriate
documentation.

{ May 2008 — present) The United Church of Winchester

Director of Christian Education

Responsible for designing and implementing a vibrant Christian
Education program for the Congregation.

{March 2007- present) Mobile Home Supply of New England
Owner/Manager

Self taught to manage, market, and sell supplies for retail mobile home
supply shop.

{2000-2007) The Winchester Learning Center

Executive Director

From dream to reality, organized a nonprofit community supported Child
Care, Preschool and Family Resource Program. Implemented unique,
Waldort-inspired curriculum to meet the needs of the children and their
families. Under the direction of a Board of Directors, managed daily
operations, programming, staffing, fiscal management, fundraising and
grant writing. Developed an extensive parent education and support
network for families.

(1999-1999) Winchester Elementary School

Substitute Teacher

Provided one on one tuloring care for preschool children with special
needs. Coordinated care and educational plans with professional team.

{1993-2000) Home Child Care




Education

References

Volunteer
experience

Director

Created a joyful home child care program which was Licensed by the
State of NH and registered with Family Works. Provided a variety of
developmentally appropriate activities to promote creativity, confidence
and independence. Established support network for parents. Supervised
two high school interns.

(1989-1993) Home Health Care Hospice and Community Services
Director

Responsible for managing and operating the Castle Center for Adult Day
Care. Program provided guality care and socialization for elderly and
handicapped participants. Supervised team of RN's CNA's and aides; and
dozens of volunteers. Secured funding annually from the United Way and
the NH Dept of Elderty and Adult Services.

“

(September 1980- May 1985) Wheelock College, Boston Mass
Bachelor of Social Work

Roberta Royce The Winchester Learning Center, Winchester, NH 03470
{603) 239-7347

Jed Butterfield 60 Colony Hill Road, Richmond, NH 03470 (603) 239-8780

2009 ~ present C.A.5.T.
Co facilitator of Community and School Together, a network of
concerned citizens who desire to improve the quality of life for all
residents. The group has been meeting monthly for 14 years in the town
of Winchesier.

2007 — present Town of Winchester

Participant in the Revitalization Committee which is preparing a plan to
revitalize downtown Winchester.

1994-present The United Church of Winchester
Sunday School teacher, Vacation Bible School Co-Coordinator, Fabulous
Family Friday Organizer, Religious Education Board Chair, Tweens Leader,
Assistant Moderator, Search Team

1898-2000

Board of Directors Winchester Leaming Center

1996-2000

Vice Chair~ Board of Trustees Conant Public Library




Education

Experience

Rebecca Joki RN, BSN

r‘ioki@hcsservices.urg

Master of Nursing student, present
Southern New Hampshire University
On-line, Manchester, NH.

Bachelor of Science in Nursing, May 1999
Fitchburg State College

Fitchburg, Ma.

Pediatric Manager, October 2013-Present
Home Healthcare Hospice and Community Services
Keene, NH

Supervision of RNs, LPNs and LNAs in the Pediatric
program. Manage each child’s medical needs, scheduling
and psych-social needs with a family-centered approach.
Provide education and training for staff and families.
Increascd caseload by 150% in a year.

Customized Care Clinical Manager, September 2009-
Qctober 2013

Home Healthcare Hospice and Community Services
Keene, NH

Supervision of RNs, LPNs, and LNAs in the Customized
Care department as well as the Choices For Independence
program. Responsible for the coordination of the Katie
Beckett(pediatric) prograin.

Support Services Manager, May 2006-September 2009
Home Health Hospice & Community Services

Keene, NH.
Manage the Home Health Aids in the VNA, as well as the
Choices For Independence program.

Registered Nurse, September 2001-May 2006

Home Health Hospice & Community Services

Worked in pediatric private duty. Also worked as
substitute RN supervisor in private duty. Made routine
VNA visits as well as assisted with telemonitoring
installations.

28




Community
Activities

RN/LNA supervisor, Scpt 1999-Sept 2001

Cedarcrest Inc. Keene, NH.

Medication administration and ireatments, assessments,
scheduled and supervised 2™ shift LNAs.

¥
Medical Assistant/RN, Summer 1999

Dr. J. B. Krasner, Sudbury, MA.
General practice, assisted with the flow of the office.
Phlebotomy, intake and triage.

Monadnock Center for Violence Prevention
Board Member serving on governance commiftee
May 2010-present

Board Chair 2012, 2013

Big Brothers Big Sisters
August 2010-August 2014

Girl Scouts of America:
Lifetime member
Received the Gold Award in 1995.




Melinda Vonderhorst

Work Experience

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Keene NH, 2009-present
Registered Nurse Katie Becket Program: Provides skilled nursing care to
medically-complex children in their home. Administers medications and
treatments, documenting all assessed data. Communicates effectively with child’s
family and members of interdisciplinary team. Provides client and family
education, taking time to listen and respond to questions and concerns with
compassion.

Licensed Nursing Assistant, Customized Care & Katie Becket Program (2009-
2014): Assisted with ADLs, nutrition and exercise. Worked under direct
supervision of RN and part of interdisciplinary team that provided quality care to
the client and their families.

Credentials/Education

. State of New Hampshire Licensed Registered Nurse, valid through 4/2016
. American Heart Association BLS for Healthcare Providers through 6/2017
. Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Southern New Hampshire University,

(online RN-BSN program) expected 10/2016
. Associate of Science in Nursing, River Valley Community College, Keene,NH

Graduated 5/2014 Magna Cum Laude

Other

Volunteer, David's House Lebanon, NH 2000-2012
Hospitality Assistant: Welcome and acquaint guests with the house and its
policies, field incoming calls. Provide emotional support to families.

Volunteer, Pregnancy Resource Center of the Monadnock Region

Keene, NH 2001-2012
Peer Counselor: Provide support for women and their partners facing unplanned
pregnancy, Training in Parenting Series mentored classes,provides referrals to

community agencies.

Member, Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society
Member, American Nursing Association and New Hampshire Nursing Association
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Staci J. Branon

OBJECTIVE
Seeking a professional position that will allow me to continue my professional
career path.

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Lowell
Bachelor of Science in Criminal Justice
Minor in Psychology

WORK HISTORY
8/2010- Social Worker, Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services

As a Maternal Child Health Social Worker, I provide assists clients and families
in developing and implementing an appropriate plan of care o meet their needs. I
conduct case finding activities in the community, and help families access all available
support services for a healthy family.

6/2009-Monadnock Family Service, Family Intervention Specialist

In the position of Family Intervention Specialist, I visit families in their home and
try to prevent abuse and neglect in potential situations. Often times, the families are in
crises, whether it be food, shelter or financial short comings. More often than not, there
are mental illnesses or substance abuse problems and we help families through those
circumstances as well by referring them to appropriate agencies. When the crisis 1s
stabilized, we can then focus on our primary goals of empowering parents to use proper
parenting techniques.

2/2009- Monadnock Family Services, Children’s’ Group Leader & CFSA

As a Children’s Group Leader, I monitor children while their parents attend
classes to better themselves. I tend to the children’s needs and ensure that their needs are
met. I also maintain a curriculum to parallel what the parents are learning in their class,
so children and parents are both educated on the same topics.

As a Community & Family Services Associate, I bring children to my home to try
to portray what a healthy environment is where as they may not get that at home. I follow
guidelines to initiate treatments (o individual children, to work on certain goals, and to
give them a break from their family and the family a break from them.

2004-2009 Stay at home mom

2002-2004 Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Services,
Family Services Specialist
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Interviewed clients one on one to determine cligibility of benefits. Personally
oversaw cases and reviewed them until the bencfits were available to the client.
Conducted monthly eligibility reviews with clients to cnsure eligibility had not lapsed.
Also, maintained consistent, quality customer scrvice to clients by mecting with them.
Made the effort to meet with clicnts and answer their questions (o the fullest of my
ability, either in person or by phone and make sure they had all resources available to
them.

2001-2002 Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Family Services,
Clerical Interviewer

Interviewed clients to determine the proper service for their specialized needs.
Prepared clients’ applications for processing and intake interviews. Also performed
routine clerical duties such as data entry, mailings, answering phones and typing reports.

2001-2005 Daniel Webster College, Head Volleyball Coach

Organized and conducted structured team practices in preparation for games.
Also, trained and instructed players on proper techniques and implementation of their
skills.

2000-2001 Kitchen Etc., Cashier/ Merchandiser

Greeted customers as they entered the store and assisted in any manner necessary
to insure customer’s needs were met. Services included customer service, cashing
customers out, merchandising and answering the phone.

1999-2001 Esleeck Manufacturing Company, Secretary/ Clerical

Completed multi-task assignments in the administrative assistant position.
Accomplished several duties at once including data entry, answering telephones and
professional client relations. Also, performed numerous skills such as balancing monthly
books and fixed asset accounts and reviewing invoices.

2000 University of Massachusetts, Work Environment Department

Organized and analyzed data for an asthma study which was conducted by the
university. Also structured tasks which were to be carried out within the department,
including professional relations, answering phones, and various operations for a
successful department.




Mary Mullen-LaValley

Objective
Acquisition of a teaching position that will render use of my talents and educational expertisc as

well as provide me with the opportunity to serve those in nced of care and support.

Experience
Monadnock Family Services, Educator/Home Visitor 2006 - Present

Keene, NH

Provide education and home visiting services to young at-risk mothers in collaboration with the
VNA at HCS Maternal Child Health Program. NH Certified education, K-5 (2009) and NH
CAD Certified Advocate/Counselor, Domestic and Sexual Abuse {20006).

Westmoreland Elementary School/Middle School, Special Ed Teacher 1999 - 2006
Westmoreland, NH

Special education tutor, K-5 and 8, as well as continued education service contract (21 year old
student). Provided differentiated, appropriate and motivated education techniques for various
behavioral and emotional needs. Originated and implemented academic plans, individual and
whole class.

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Public Relations Facilitator 1995 - 1996

Claremont, NH
Public Relations Facilitator of Adult Education

Bessie C. Rowell Elementary School, Kindergarten Teacher 1976 - 1978
Education
University of New Hampshire 1976

BA Elementary Education
Special education concentration

Keene State College Currently Enrolled
Masters of Education
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Rebecca Landry

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Home Healthcare, Hospice, & Community Services
Keene, NH

Position: Home Visitor {January 2013 — Present)

* Community laison for HCS programs with families and individuals thoughout the service
area.

* Provide safe, efficient personal interaction with pregnant and parenting families while
promoting independence.

* Teach prenatal care, parenting skills, early intervention and children’s health, help establish
goals and encouraging achievement of these goals.

* Reports and documents pertinent observations, including changes in client’s condition and

‘ need, appropriately.

Monadnock Community Hospital
! Peterborough, NH

Pasition: Reception {January 2010 - March 2012}

* Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or
personal computer,

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

* Transmit correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

* Operate office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and use word processing,
spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices, financial statements,
letters, case histories and medical records.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

* perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an
inventory of supplies.

* Receive and route messages and documents to appropriate staff.

* Schedule and confirm patient diagnostic appointments.

| Monadnock Family Services
| Keene, New Hampshire




Position: Children's Intake Coordinator {June 2009 - January 2010)

* Verify Insurance benefits, obtain, and maintain authorizations.

* Set payment plan based on sliding fee scale.

* Perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an
inventory of supplies.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Interview patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and
insurance forms.

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

* Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or
personal computer.

* Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

Bard Chiropractic
Peterborough, New Hampshire

Position: Chiropractic Assistant {June 2004 - June 2009}

* Verify insurance coverage.

* perform various clerical and administrative functions, such as ordering and maintaining an
inventory of supplies.

* Greet visitors, ascertain purpose of visit, and direct them to appropriate staff.

* Assist with physiological therapy.

* Transcribe recorded messages and practitioners' diagnoses and recommendations into
patients' medical records.

* Compile and record medical charts, reports, and correspondence, using typewriter or
personal computer.

* Operate office equipment such as voice mail messaging systems, and use word processing,
spreadsheet, and other software applications to prepare reports, invoices, financial statements,
letters, case histories and medical records.

* Answer telephones, and direct calls to appropriate staff.

* prepare correspondence and assist physicians or medical scientists with preparation of
reports, speeches, articles and conference proceedings.

* Interview patients to complete documents, case histories, and forms such as intake and
insurance forms.

* Obtain and maintain authorizations.

* Maintain medical records, technical library and correspondence files.

* Schedule and confirm patient diagnostic appointments, surgeries and medical consultations.

* perform boaokkeeping duties, such as credits and collections, preparing and sending financial
statements and bills, and keeping financial records.

* Transmit correspondence and medical records by mail, e-mail, or fax.

* Receive and route messages and documents such as laboratory results to appropriate staff.




EDUCATION

Conant High School
Jaffrey, New Hampshire
Diploma, June 1994

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

* Ability to work well under pressure.
* Ability to communicate well.

* Ability to multi-task.

* Great with people.




VNA at HCS

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Penny Vaine Program Manager $50,719 100% $50,719

Bekki Joki Pediatric Manager $68,924 6% $4173

Melinda Vonderhorst RN $62,595 10% $4173

Staci Branon SW $31,403 6.5% $2.067

Mary Mullen-LaValley Home Visitor $34,021 100% $34,921

Rebecca Landry Home Visitor $18,130 83% $15,084




